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Common Stock, $0.001 par value, and associated Preferred Share Purchase Rights

(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.    Yes  ¨    No  þ

Indicated by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act.    Yes  ¨    No  þ

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes  þ    No  ¨
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for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).    Yes  þ    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant�s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements or any amendment to this Form 10-K.  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting
company. See definition of �large accelerated filer,�, �accelerated filer� and �smaller reporting company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check
one):

Large accelerated filer  ¨ Accelerated filer  þ Non-accelerated filer  ¨ Smaller Reporting Company    ¨
(do not check if smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).    Yes  ¨    No  þ

Based on the closing sale price of the Registrant�s Common Stock on the NASDAQ National Market System on June 30, 2011, the last business
day of the Registrant�s most recently completed second fiscal quarter, the aggregate market value of Common Stock held by non-affiliates of the
Registrant was $99,041,243.

At March 26, 2012, the registrant had outstanding 59,107,945 shares of Common Stock, excluding 618,400 shares held in treasury.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Designated portions of the Company�s Proxy Statement and Notice of Annual Meeting to be filed within 120 days after the Registrant�s fiscal year
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Identive Group and the Identive logo are trademarks of Identive Group, Inc. Other product and brand names not belonging to Identive that
appear in this document are trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective owners.

Statement Regarding Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the documents incorporated by reference in this Annual Report, contains forward-looking
statements for purposes of the safe harbor provisions under Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. For example, statements, other than statements of historical facts regarding our strategy, future
operations and growth, financial position, projected results, estimated revenues or losses, projected costs, prospects, plans, market trends,
competition and objectives of management constitute forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements
by terms such as �will,� �believe,� �could,� �should,� �would,� �may,� �anticipate,� �intend,� �plan,� �estimate,� �expect,� �project� or the negative of these terms or
other similar expressions. Although we believe that our expectations reflected in or suggested by the forward-looking statements that we make in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, performance or achievements. You should not place undue
reliance on these forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
While we may elect to update forward-looking statements at some point in the future, we specifically disclaim any obligation to do so, even if
our expectations change, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. We also caution you that such forward-looking
statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, not all of which are known to us or within our control, and that actual events or
results may differ materially from those indicated by these forward-looking statements. We disclose some of the factors that could cause our
actual results to differ materially from our expectations in the �Customers,� �Research and Development,� �Competition,� �Proprietary Information and
Technology,� �Risk Factors� and �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations� sections and elsewhere
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. These cautionary statements qualify all of the forward-looking statements included in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K that are attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf.

PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview of the Company

Identive Group, Inc. (�Identive,� the �Company,� �we� and �us�) provides secure identification (�Secure ID�) solutions that combine the convenience of
radio frequency identification (�RFID�) with the security of smart card technology to enable people to easily and securely interact with and
manage digital devices, systems and data. Our offerings include hardware products, software, integrated systems and services to address the
global markets for credential management, physical and logical/cyber access control, integrated ID solutions and a host of NFC and
RFID-enabled applications for customers in the government, enterprise, consumer, education, healthcare and transportation sectors. Our business
model is principally based on strong technology-driven organic growth, supported by disciplined acquisitive expansion. Our common stock is
listed on the NASDAQ Global Market in the U.S. under the symbol �INVE� and the Frankfurt Stock Exchange in Germany under the symbol
�INV.�

We operate in two segments, �Identity Management Solutions & Services� (�Identity Management�) and �Identification Products & Components� (�ID
Products�):

� In our Identity Management segment we design, supply and manage solutions, systems and services that enable the secure
management of credentials in diverse markets. These credentials are used for the identification of people and the granting of rights
and privileges based on defined policies. Our Identity Management offerings include integrated physical and logical (i.e., PC,
network or cyber) access systems, integrated ID solutions, cashless payment solutions and cloud-based credential management
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systems, all of which are designed to enable organizations to enhance convenience and speed for users while supporting greater
security and compliance to regulatory requirements. We sell our Identity Management solutions under our Hirsch Identive,
idOnDemand and Multicard brands, as well as additional country or market specific brands. Our Identity Management end
customers operate in the government, education, enterprise and commercial markets and can be found in multiple vertical market
segments including healthcare, banking, industrial, retail and critical infrastructure.

� In our ID Products segment we design and manufacture both standard and highly specialized RFID and smart card technology-based
products and components, including NFC products and components, that are used in the government, enterprise and consumer
markets for a number of identity-based and related applications, including logical access, physical access, eHealth, eGovernment,
citizen ID, mobile payments, loyalty schemes, and transportation and event ticketing. The ID Products segment includes the results
of our ID Infrastructure and Transponder business units. Through our ID Infrastructure business unit, we design and manufacture
readers and terminals based on both contact and contactless smart card technology, as well as related software components. Through
our Transponder business unit, we design and manufacture RFID inlays as well as inlay-based RFID tags, labels, stickers and cards.
Our ID Infrastructure and Transponder products are primarily sold under the Identive brand.

Sales from our Identity Management segment accounted for approximately 55% of our total revenue in 2011, 56% of our total revenue in 2010
and 42% of our total revenue in 2009. Sales from our ID Products segment accounted for approximately 45% of our total revenue in 2011, 44%
of our total revenue in 2010 and 58% of our total revenue in 2009. Additional information about our results for the last three years for these
segments is provided in Item 7, �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations� of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K. See Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 below for further details about revenue and assets by
region.

Our corporate headquarters are located in Santa Ana, California and our European and operational headquarters are located in Ismaning,
Germany. The Company�s books and records and financial reporting process is performed in Ismaning, Germany. We maintain facilities in
Chennai, India for research and development and in Australia, Canada, Germany, Hong Kong, Japan, the Netherlands, Singapore, Switzerland
and the U.S. for individual business unit operations and sales. The Company was founded in 1990 in Munich, Germany and incorporated in 1996
under the laws of the State of Delaware.

Industry Background

We operate in the market for secure identification, or Secure ID solutions, which utilize both RFID and/or smart card technologies to produce,
manage and work with electronic identity credentials that help people and companies manage access to data and resources as well as protect
people and assets. Electronic identity credentials most commonly take the form of cards or tokens and also are beginning to be embedded within
mobile phones. Common card-type credentials include smart chip-based cards, building or network access cards, drivers� licenses, national IDs,
employee IDs and student IDs. In addition to identifying the holder, electronic credentials are used to authorize the granting of rights and
privileges, for example to gain access to a building or network, to use funds from a merchant, bank wallet or bank account, or to access
information or services, such as tax records or healthcare data and equipment.

Electronic identity credentials require a corresponding infrastructure of readers, software and systems with which to interact and process the data
they hold. This infrastructure includes various types of identity or access cards and tokens, readers, as well as software- and hardware-based
systems such as those that control physical and network access or those that process payment transactions. In addition, because each electronic
identity credential is used to identify a specific individual or object, or to grant privileges based on specific criteria, it is critical that the
credentials are issued and managed in a secure and systematic manner. This often involves compliance with various specifications and standards
of issuing organizations such as government agencies or corporations.
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Our Strategy

Our mission is to be the world�s signature company in Secure ID, and our goal is to build a lasting business of scale and technology to both
enable and capitalize on the growth of smart card and RFID technologies and the adoption of NFC, converged access and other trends within the
Secure ID market. To accomplish this, our strategy is to provide innovative products, systems and services that address the need for solutions
across the Secure ID value chain that are differentiated by being interoperable, easy to integrate and easy to use. Our current organization
comprises significant core technology and expertise in key areas of Secure ID, including RFID and smart card technologies and their application
in vertical markets including physical access, cybersecurity, credential issuance and management, payment and ID systems integration. Our
business model centers on technology-driven organic growth using our existing capabilities, complemented by disciplined acquisitive activity.
We pursue investments and acquisitions with a focus on increasing our scale, reinforcing our market position in targeted areas and fully
leveraging our strengths and opportunities to enter new markets, as well as driving consolidation in the rapidly growing, yet fragmented markets
for identification-based technologies.

We believe the market for Secure ID solutions offers significant opportunities for growth, both in terms of the continued use of core
identification technologies and the emergence of newer technologies that are being leveraged for Secure ID applications. We believe the
following technologies and trends are among the most important to drive opportunities for our business:

Smart Cards � A smart card is a credit card-sized plastic card with a built-in microcontroller or secure memory chip that allows the card to store
large amounts of data, carry out on-card functions such as encryption and mutual authentication, and interact intelligently with a smart card
reader. The self-contained processing and memory capabilities of smart cards makes them resistant to attack as they do not need to depend upon
potentially vulnerable external resources. Because of this, smart cards are often used in applications that require a high level of security
protection and authentication. Traditional �contact� smart cards connect to a reader with direct physical electronic contact while �contactless� smart
cards require only close proximity to a reader to connect via a radio frequency interface. In addition to traditional cards, smart card technology is
also available in fobs, subscriber identity modules (SIMs) used in GSM mobile phones, and USB-based tokens.

The market research firm Eurosmart reported in November 2011 that more than 6.1 billion smart cards shipped globally in 2011 and forecasts
that over 6.9 billion smart cards will ship in 2012, a growth rate of 13%. Major drivers of this growth include an estimated 25% increase in the
use of contactless smart cards for national ID, eGovernment and electronic health card programs. Second, there is a trend towards the use of
multi-application contactless cards that combine two or more of identity, payment, social benefits and transport services on a single card. Third,
there is a movement towards embedding smart card elements within mobile phones to enable these devices to act as secure credentials for a
variety of applications, including NFC and cloud computing.

We are a leading global supplier of contact and contactless smart card reader technology for secure authentication, including readers for
logical/cyber access, national ID, eGovernment and eHealth applications. Our capabilities also include patent pending processes for
manufacturing advanced smart card technology in a card�s inner layers, under our Smartcore� brand. In addition, we have significant experience in
deploying smart card-based systems that leverage multiple applications on a single card, primarily in the higher education market. We believe
that the continued growth in demand for smart card technology provides ongoing and new opportunities for our products and services.

RFID � Radio frequency identification, or RFID, is a wireless, short-range communications technology that uses radio waves to automatically
identify people or objects. An RFID system consists of a reader and a transponder, or tag, which includes an integrated circuit (IC) or chip
containing the information to be transmitted, and an antenna for receiving and transmitting the signal, both of which are affixed to a thin
substrate called an inlay. Primarily because of the convenience it offers users, RFID is rapidly emerging as the replacement for traditional
identification devices, such as those utilizing simple barcodes and smart cards requiring direct contact
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with a reader. IDTechEx estimates the value of the overall RFID market in 2011 to be $5.84 billion, up from $5.63 billion in 2010. Applications
for which RFID is increasingly being used include mobile payment and banking, student and government IDs, physical and network access
control, mass transit, event ticketing and library media tracking.

We have significant expertise in the design and production of RFID technology as well as a deep understanding of the security needs inherent in
application areas that are increasingly using RFID, such as government ID and access control. Building on a robust foundation of patented
technologies, we specialize in combining and connecting integrated circuit chips from external suppliers with our own antenna designs to
produce RFID inlays that can withstand the physical and environmental stresses in the applications in which the products are used. We also offer
significant versatility in converting our inlays into finished RFID tags, labels and cards to address a range of applications, including asset
tracking, transit and event ticketing, access control, secure mobile payment and animal identification. In addition to RFID inlays and tags we
also supply RFID readers for a variety of applications. We believe we are very well positioned to address the growing demand for RFID
technology with our technology base, expertise in design and manufacturing and knowledge of the Secure ID applications market.

NFC � An important development in the market for Secure ID is the expected rapid growth of a specific type of RFID technology known as near
field communications, or NFC. NFC is an emerging standard for short-range connectivity that enables secure interactions between mobile
devices, such as smartphones, and other devices, including NFC tags, readers or point-of-sale terminals. The adoption of NFC is still in an early
stage, but the broad availability of NFC-enabled smartphones and the corresponding deployment of an NFC infrastructure and applications are
expected to result in significant growth in NFC products and applications over the next several years. Applications for which NFC is expected to
be widely used include mobile payment, access control, ticketing, advertising and data sharing, as well as many others. To address the expected
growth of NFC, during 2011 we formed a dedicated Mobility & NFC Solutions group that is focused on coordinating Identive�s NFC strategy
and activities.

In 2011, only 5% of new mobile phones were NFC-enabled, but it is estimated that this number will rise to approximately 46% by 2016,
according to a February 2012 report from the research firm MarketsandMarkets. The firm further predicts that the NFC applications market will
grow from $7.7 billion in 2011 to $34.5 billion by 2016, at an estimated compound annual growth rate of 35%, with mobile payments, ticketing
and access control among the most attractive applications. While NFC makes it possible for people to use their smartphones to purchase items or
services in the same way they would use a credit or debit card, the availability of such systems is expected to expand well beyond the large
�open-loop� payment networks such as Visa and Mastercard. Indeed, we believe there will be a widespread and relatively rapid adoption of NFC
for �closed loop� payment transactions, in which a financial institution or an individual merchant issues limited-purpose, private-label payment
cards to its customers for use only with a particular merchant or service provider.

We have experience and know-how in developing and providing both prepaid (stored value) and credit-based closed-loop NFC payment
solutions, and have deployed such systems for retailers, fuel companies and stadium operators. We also have extensive experience in deploying
our own software-based payment solutions, including Cashless Betalen�, which we developed to enable a secure digital wallet program for the
Dutch financial institution, Rabobank, and polypurse�, which is a multi-function credential management and cashless payment platform for the
Swiss education market.

Outside payment, we believe that there is also a significant opportunity for NFC-enabled ticketing, advertising and access control. For example,
in a February 2012 report Juniper Research predicts that one in eight (13%) of North American and western European mobile users will use their
NFC-enabled mobile phones as a metro rail or bus ticket by 2016, compared with less than 1% today. Moreover, worldwide mobile ticketing
transactions are set to quadruple to 23 billion and NFC-based tickets to represent 50% of all mobile ticket revenue by 2016. We believe our
strength in both RFID and smart card technologies, our payment capabilities
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and our company-wide focus on NFC put us in a strong position to take advantage of the emerging opportunities for NFC technology in the
Secure ID market.

Converged Access � Within the Secure ID market, there is a pronounced trend towards the integration, or convergence of systems that provide
physical access to buildings and logical access to PCs, IT/cyber networks or electronic log-on systems. Traditionally, organizations have had
disparate systems and policies for physical and logical access. This often caused gaps in security as breaches can occur due to the inability of the
different systems to communicate. Increasingly, physical and logical access control systems are now being combined into a single system, which
enables an organization to provide integrated, policy-based logical and physical access as well as network provisioning throughout a user�s
lifecycle. Converged access is particularly relevant in the U.S. Government market, as Homeland Security Presidential Directive (�HSPD�)-12 and
Federal Information Processing Standards (�FIPS�) 201 mandate that personal identification verification cards utilizing secure contactless interface
technologies be issued to all personnel, across federal agencies, both to provide secure authentication of employees and to provide secure access
to both facilities and computer networks. The goal behind these mandates is to increase the security of personnel and assets through the use of
converged access control systems.

We are a leading provider of logical access readers and of physical access control and integrated, identity-based security systems, and our
Velocity� software is one of the most highly regarded security and access management platforms in the market. We have been a trusted supplier
of both physical and logical access solutions to the U.S. Government for many years and have been deeply involved in the development of new
standards designed to address the convergence of physical and logical access systems. To further strengthen our ability to address the need for
converged systems, in early 2012 we formed a dedicated Converged Access group within our ID Infrastructure business unit that is focused on
developing a new range of converged readers and secure credentials that work across a large number of different proprietary and standards-based
technologies. These new offerings will build and expand on innovative technology that was developed by our idOnDemand business unit as part
of their Software as a Service (�SaaS�)-based credential management offering, as well as on our strength in network access smart card reader
technology. We are also expanding our capabilities to produce secure identity credentials. We believe we are well positioned to benefit from the
trend towards convergence as the federal government, state and local agencies as well as corporate organizations invest in the migration towards
new integrated systems based on the federal identity credential guidelines.

To strengthen and expand our capabilities in the Secure ID market, from time to time we acquire other companies that we believe can provide us
with important technology, market coverage or other benefits. During the last two years, we have acquired the following companies:

� On January 4, 2010, we acquired Bluehill ID, a publicly-held RFID technology and ID solutions company based in Switzerland.

� On April 14, 2010, we acquired RockWest Technology Group LLC (now doing business as Multicard U.S.), a privately-held
provider of identification and security solutions based in Denver, Colorado.

� On November 19, 2010 we acquired Smartag, a Singapore-based manufacturer of high frequency (�HF�) and ultra high frequency
(�UHF�) RFID inlays and inlay-based solutions.

� On May 2, 2011, we acquired approximately 95.8% of the outstanding shares of idOnDemand, a privately-held provider of
cloud-based credential management solutions based in Pleasanton, California. We acquired the remaining shares of idOnDemand in
January 2012.

� On July 18, 2011, we acquired polyright SA, a privately-held provider of identity management platforms and open-ended rights and
services management solutions for higher education, healthcare and industry, based in Switzerland.

� On January 30, 2012, we acquired approximately 58.8% of the outstanding shares of payment solution AG, a privately-held German
company that provides cashless payment solutions for stadiums, arenas and other event venues.
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We believe our robust technology portfolio and our significant capabilities in the areas of physical and logical access, credential issuance and
management, ID systems integration and RFID and NFC applications position us to become the signature company in Secure ID.

Our Offerings and Brands

Currently, we address the market for Secure ID solutions with the following products, systems and services:

Transponder products � Our Transponder products include RFID inlays and inlay-based cards, labels, tags and stickers, including NFC inlays and
tags and other radio frequency (�RF�) and IC components. We manufacture our Transponder products at state of the art facilities in Sauerlach,
Germany and Singapore, and we market and sell our Transponder products from these facilities as well as from operations in the U.S. and
Canada. Our inlays and converted inlay products are used in a diverse range of applications, including transport and event ticketing, asset
tracking, secure mobile payments and NFC-based applications. The majority of our Transponder products are currently sold as RFID inlays
under the Identive brand, although previously these were sold under multiple brands, including TagStar and Smartag. We sell our converted
inlay products, such as tags and labels, under our Smartag brand and we sell specialty inlays for card manufacturing under our Smartcore brand.
(www.identive-transponders.com)

ID Infrastructure products � Our ID Infrastructure products include a broad range of contact, contactless and mobile smart card readers and
terminals as well as digital identity and transaction platforms that are utilized around the world to enable logical and physical access, security
and identification applications, transaction systems, and eHealth- and eGovernment programs. Our ID infrastructure products are designed at our
research and development center in India and manufacturing is outsourced. We serve our global ID Infrastructure customer base from
operational headquarters in Germany and sales offices in the U.S., Tokyo, and Hong Kong. The majority of our ID Infrastructure products are
currently sold under the Identive brand, although previously these were sold primarily under the SCM Microsystems brand and to a lesser extent
under the Arygon brand. We also offer a range of smart card-based security, productivity and time recording solutions for small and
medium-size businesses under our retail CHIPDRIVE® brand. (www.identive-infrastructure.com)

Integrated ID solutions � Under our Multicard brand, we offer customized integration services that enable a diverse range of ID applications,
including credential issuance and personalization, �smart city� and e-Government service provisioning, multi-application campus ID solutions and
cashless payments. Through our local operations in Australia, Germany, the Netherlands, Switzerland and the U.S., we work with customers in
the government, education, healthcare, corporate, financial and retail markets to design, build, install and support integrated ID solutions.
(www.multicard.com)

Identity as a Service � Under our idOnDemand brand, we market and sell cloud-based credential management services that allow organizations to
quickly, easily and cost effectively grant trusted access for employees, customers and partners to information and assets such as IT systems,
remote access, data encryption, secure email, building access and mobile authentication. We deliver our credential management solutions using
standards-based technology and a Software as a Service, or SaaS, model. (www.idondemand.com)

Integrated physical access and identity-based security systems � We market and sell enterprise-class physical access control and integrated
identity-based security systems under our Hirsch Identive brand. Our Hirsch Identive security systems integrate access control, video
surveillance, intrusion detection, building management and other network-based systems using a wide range of credentials, including digital
certificates, smart cards, RFID cards and biometrics in order to successfully secure facilities, digital assets and electronic transactions. We
design and support our Hirsch Identive systems from our facility in Santa Ana, California. (http://hirsch-identive.com)

6

Edgar Filing: IDENTIVE GROUP, INC. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 11



Table of Contents

Customers

We sell to customers worldwide in a diverse range of markets, including government, enterprise, commercial banking, consumer, education,
healthcare and transportation. A significant amount of our revenue comes from various entities of the U.S. federal government sector. The
majority of our federal government sales are made through our indirect sales network or priced using published General Service Administration
schedules and we do not believe that we are subject to any material risk of renegotiation or termination at the election of these government
entities. Sales to our top ten customers accounted for approximately 25% of total revenue in 2011, 24% of total revenue in 2010 and 42% of total
revenue in 2009. No customer accounted for more than 10% of the Company�s total revenue in 2011, 2010 or 2009.

Sales and Marketing

For the most part, each of the business units within Identive conducts its own sales and marketing activities in the markets in which it competes,
utilizing its own sales and marketing organization to solicit prospective channel partners and/or end customers, provide technical advice and
support with respect to products, systems and services, and manage relationships with customers, distributors and/or OEMs. Increasingly, we are
working to leverage our sales and marketing support resources and programs across our business units in order to maximize our efforts and
coordinate our efforts in our target markets. The majority of our Transponder and ID Infrastructure products are currently sold under the Identive
brand, utilizing indirect sales channels including dealers, systems integrators, value added resellers, resellers and Internet sales. We sell our
physical access control and integrated security and identity systems under our Hirsch Identive brand directly to end users, with fulfillment of the
order primarily provided through a channel of local systems integrator partners. We sell and deliver our integrated ID solutions under our
Multicard brand primarily through a direct sales effort. We sell our cloud-based credential management solutions under our idOnDemand brand,
primarily utilizing a direct selling model. In support of our sales efforts, we participate in trade shows and conduct sales training courses,
targeted marketing programs and advertising, and ongoing customer and third-party communications programs.

Competition

The market for secure identification products, systems and solutions is competitive and characterized by rapidly changing technology, as well as
fragmentation of solutions providers. We believe that competition in this market is likely to intensify as a result of an ongoing increase in
demand for RFID technology, integrated access control systems, credential issuance and management, cashless payment solutions and other
identification-based solutions.

We face a range of competition for our products, systems and solutions. In our ID Products segment, competition for our smart card readers and
reader technology primarily comes from a few companies, including Gemalto NV and HID Global (a division of ASSA ABLOY AB), as well as
from a number of smaller suppliers in Asia. Competition for our RFID inlays and inlay-based products comes from a small number of
organizations that understand the specialized processes and have the capital equipment required to serve the transponder market. Competitors in
this market include SMARTRAC NV, which in the last few years has acquired former competitors UPM RFID and KSW Microtec, as well as a
number of inlay conversion companies in Asia. In the market for NFC tags, readers and other solutions, we face competition from traditional
smart card reader and RFID technology providers, including Gemalto and ASSA ABLOY for NFC readers, and SMARTRAC and other inlay
converters for NFC tags.

In our Identity Management segment, enterprise-class physical access control and integrated security and identity systems are available from
numerous suppliers. In this market we primarily compete with AMAG Technology (a division of G4S plc), Lenel Systems International (a
division of United Technologies Corp.), Software House (a division of Tyco International Ltd.) and Honeywell International Inc. In the market
for ID systems integration and credential issuance, we compete primarily with system integrators that focus on providing card-based identity
systems. These integrators vary by market and geography and include large
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international firms as well as local suppliers focused on serving specific countries or regions. Competition for our credential management
systems includes HID Global in the physical access sector, but in the logical access sector centers around whether or not the customer chooses to
deploy a traditional in-house system assisted by vendors such as ActivIdentity (a division of ASSA ABLOY) and Intercede Group plc, or adopt
a cloud-based model, which we have pioneered.

We also experience indirect competition from certain of our customers who currently offer alternative products or are expected to introduce
competitive products in the future. We may in the future face competition from these and other parties that develop security and RFID products
based upon approaches similar to or different from those employed by us. In addition, the market for security and RFID products may ultimately
be dominated by approaches other than the approach marketed by us. We believe that the principal competitive factors affecting the market for
our products, systems and solutions include:

� the extent to which products and systems must support evolving industry standards and provide interoperability;

� the extent to which standards are widely adopted and product interoperability is required within industry segments;

� technical features;

� the ability of suppliers to effectively integrate multiple products and systems in order to address customer requirements including full
system capabilities, cost of ownership and ease of use;

� quality and reliability;

� the ability of suppliers to quickly develop new products and integrated solutions quickly to satisfy new market and customer
requirements;

� ease of use;

� strength of sales and distribution channels; and

� price and total cost of system ownership.
While we believe that we compete favorably within our market environment, we may not be able to continue to successfully compete due to a
variety of factors, as further discussed in �Risk Factors.�

Seasonality

In our business overall, we may experience significant variations in demand for our products quarter to quarter, and overall we typically
experience a stronger demand cycle in the second half of our fiscal year. Sales of our Hirsch Identive security systems are subject to U.S.
Government budget cycles and are generally highest in the third quarter of each year. Sales of our ID Infrastructure smart card readers and chips
for government programs are impacted by testing and compliance schedules of government bodies as well as roll-out schedules for application
deployments, both of which contribute to variability in demand from quarter to quarter. Further, this business is typically subject to seasonality
based on governmental budget cycles, with lowest sales in the first half, and in particular the first quarter of the year, and highest sales in the
second half of each year. In our global Multicard business, a variety of local market factors including government budget cycles and retail
demand cycles typically result in stronger demand in the second half of the year. In general, sales of our global Transponder products also are
marginally stronger in the second half of the year.
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We typically do not maintain a significant level of backlog. As a result, revenue in any quarter depends on contracts entered into or orders
booked and shipped in that quarter. Sales are made primarily pursuant to purchase orders for current delivery or agreements covering purchases
over a period of time. Our customer
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contracts generally do not require fixed long-term purchase commitments. In view of our order and shipment patterns, and because of the
possibility of customer changes in delivery schedules or cancellation of orders, we do not believe that such agreements provide meaningful
backlog figures or are necessarily indicative of actual sales for any succeeding period.

Research and Development

We have made substantial investments in research and development (�R&D�), particularly in the areas of NFC products and software systems for
payment and credential management applications, including our SaaS-based Identity as a Service offering, RFID inlays and related technology,
smart card-based physical and network access devices, and physical access controllers, readers and security management software. We will
continue to invest in R&D that advances key areas of our business. To ensure the effective use of R&D resources within each of our product and
solutions areas and to facilitate sharing of technologies and expertise across the organization, we have an Executive Vice President of
Technology and Product Management that oversees the application of resources. Within each product and solutions area and as needed between
these areas, our engineering design teams work cross-functionally with marketing managers, applications engineers and customers to develop
products, product enhancements, software and systems to meet customer and market requirements. We also strive to develop and maintain close
relationships with key suppliers of components and technologies in order to be able to quickly introduce new offerings that incorporate the latest
technological advances.

We focus the bulk of our R&D activities on the development of products and solutions for new and emerging market opportunities. R&D
expenses were approximately $7.0 million in 2011, $4.7 million in 2010 and $4.3 million in 2009. The majority of our R&D activities for smart
card reader products and technologies occurs in India; the majority of R&D activities for our SaaS, NFC solutions and physical access control
systems occurs in California; the majority of R&D activities for our RFID inlays and inlay-based products occurs in Germany and Singapore;
and the majority of R&D activities for our card and payment software systems occurs in the Netherlands. During 2011, through our acquisitions
of idOnDemand and polyright we added significant software development capabilities in California for SaaS-based credential management and
in Switzerland for campus payment and identification systems.

Proprietary Technology and Intellectual Property

Our success depends significantly upon our proprietary technology. We currently rely on a combination of patent, copyright and trademark laws,
trade secrets, confidentiality agreements and contractual provisions to protect our proprietary rights, which afford only limited protection.
Additionally, for Hirsch Identive we utilize Intellectual Property Infringement Abatement Insurance to partially mitigate the risk of infringement
of our primary patents. Although we often seek to protect our proprietary technology through patents, it is possible that no new patents will be
issued, that our proprietary products or technologies are not patentable, and that any issued patent will fail to provide us with any competitive
advantages.

There has been a great deal of litigation in the technology industry regarding intellectual property rights and from time to time we may be
required to use litigation to protect our proprietary technology. This may result in our incurring substantial costs and there is no assurance that
we would be successful in any such litigation. Despite our efforts to protect our proprietary rights, unauthorized parties may attempt to copy
aspects of our products or to use our proprietary information and software without authorization. In addition, the laws of some foreign countries
do not protect proprietary and intellectual property rights to the same extent as do the laws of the U.S. Because many of our products are sold
and a substantial portion of our business is conducted outside the U.S., our exposure to intellectual property risks may be higher. Our means of
protecting our proprietary and intellectual property rights may not be adequate. There is a risk that our competitors will independently develop
similar technology, duplicate our products or design around our patents or other intellectual property rights. If we are unsuccessful in protecting
our intellectual property or our products or technologies are duplicated by others, our business could be harmed.
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In addition, we have from time to time received claims that we are infringing upon third parties� intellectual property rights. Future disputes with
third parties may arise and these disputes may not be resolved on terms acceptable to us. As the number of products and competitors in our target
markets grow, the likelihood of infringement claims also increases. Any claims or litigation may be time-consuming and costly, divert
management resources, cause product shipment delays, or require us to redesign our products, accept product returns or to write off inventory.
Any of these events could have a material effect on our business and operating results.

We are expanding our portfolio of more than 30 patent families (designs, patents, utility models, patents pending and exclusive licenses) in
individual or regional filings, covering products, electrical and mechanical designs, software system and methods and ideas for our various
businesses. In the past year we have added filings in RFID tags, converged access readers and systems, our Smartcore� card family, and NFC
products. Additionally, we leverage our own ASIC designs for smart card interface in some of our reader devices. However, none of our patents
are currently material to our business.

Manufacturing and Sources of Supply

We utilize a combination of our own manufacturing facilities and the services of contract manufacturers in various countries around the world to
manufacture our products and components. Our physical access keypads, controllers and software are manufactured primarily in California,
using locally sourced components. The majority of our smart card reader products and components are manufactured in Singapore and China
and are certified to the ISO 9001:2000 quality manufacturing standard, and our remaining smart card readers and components are manufactured
in Germany and India. Our RFID inlays and inlay-based products are manufactured and assembled by our own internal manufacturing teams in
Singapore using locally sourced components and in Sauerlach, Germany using components sourced both locally and in Asia.

To meet increasing customer demand for RFID inlays and finished transponder products such as tags, labels and cards, during 2010 we doubled
our transponder manufacturing capacity with the addition of new manufacturing equipment and lines in Germany and during 2011 we again
nearly doubled existing capacity with the addition of new equipment and lines both in Germany and also at our facility in Singapore, which we
acquired in late 2010.

We have implemented formal quality control programs to satisfy customer requirements for high quality and reliable products. To ensure that
products manufactured by third parties are consistent with internal standards, our quality control programs include management of all key
aspects of the production process, including establishing product specifications, selecting the components to be used to produce products,
selecting the suppliers of these components and negotiating the prices for certain of these components. In addition, we may work with suppliers
to improve process control and product design.

We believe that our success will depend in large part on our ability to provide quality products and services while ensuring the highest level of
security for our products during the manufacturing process. In the event any of our contract manufacturers are unable or unwilling to continue to
manufacture our products, we may have to rely on other current manufacturing sources or identify and qualify new contract manufacturers. Any
significant delay in our ability to obtain adequate supplies of our products from current or alternative sources would harm our business and
operating results.

For the majority of our product manufacturing, we utilize a global sourcing strategy that serve all business solutions areas within the company,
which allows us to achieve economies of scale and uniform quality standards for our products, and to support gross margins.

On an ongoing basis, we analyze the need to add alternative sources for both our products and components. For example, we currently utilize the
foundry services of external suppliers to produce our ASICs for smart cards readers and inlays, and we use chips and antenna components from
third-party suppliers in our RFID inlays and
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contactless smart card readers. Wherever possible, we have added additional sources of supply for components. However, a risk remains that we
may be adversely impacted by an inadequate supply of components, price increases, late deliveries or poor component quality. In addition, some
of the basic components used in our reader products, such as semiconductors, may at any time be in great demand. This could result in
components not being available to us in a timely manner or at all, particularly if larger companies have ordered more significant volumes of
those components, or in higher prices being charged for components.

Employees

As of December 31, 2011, we had 436 full-time employees, of which 97 were in research and development, 126 were in sales and marketing, 83
were in general and administrative and 130 were in manufacturing and related functions. We are not subject to any collective bargaining
agreements and, to our knowledge, none of our employees are currently represented by a labor union. To date, we have experienced no work
stoppages and believe that our employee relations are generally good.

Foreign Operations; Properties

We operate globally, with corporate headquarters in Santa Ana, California and European operational headquarters in Ismaning, Germany. We
also maintain leased facilities in Australia, Canada, Germany, Hong Kong, India, Japan, the Netherlands, Singapore, Switzerland and the U.S.
We consider these properties adequate for our business needs.

Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we could become subject to claims arising in the ordinary course of business or could be a defendant in lawsuits. While the
outcome of such claims or other proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, our management expects that any such liabilities, to the extent
not provided for by insurance or otherwise, would not have a material effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

We are not currently nor in the past twelve months have we been a party to any pending legal, governmental or arbitration proceeding, nor is, or
was in the past twelve months our property the subject of any pending legal, governmental or arbitration proceeding, that is not in the ordinary
course of business or otherwise material to the financial condition of our business nor are we aware that such proceedings are threatened.

Availability of SEC Filings

We make available through our website our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and
amendments to those reports free of charge as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such reports with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (�SEC�). Our Internet address is www.identive-group.com. The content on our website is not, nor should be deemed to be,
incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Additionally, documents filed by us with the SEC may be read and copied at
the Public Reference Section of the SEC, 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Information on the operation of the Public Reference
Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Our filings with the SEC are also available to the public through the SEC�s
website at www.sec.gov.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Our business and results of operations are subject to numerous risks, uncertainties and other factors that you should be aware of, some of which
are described below. The risks, uncertainties and other factors described in these risk factors are not the only ones facing our company.
Additional risks, uncertainties and other factors not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also impair our business
operations. Any of
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the risks, uncertainties and other factors could have a materially adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash
flows or product market share and could cause the trading price of our common stock to decline substantially.

Risks of Market Dynamics

Continuing weakness in global economic markets may adversely impact customers and customer spending patterns.

In recent times global economies have been impacted by disruptive financial events, economic uncertainty and most recently concerns about the
possible breakup of the Euro Zone. Continuing weakness or uncertainty in global economic markets may cause consumers, businesses and
governments to defer purchases in response to tighter credit, decreased cash availability and low consumer confidence. Accordingly, demand for
our products could fail to grow or could decrease and differ materially from our current expectations. In addition, some of our customers may
require substantial financing in order to fund their operations and make purchases from us. The inability of these customers to obtain sufficient
credit to finance purchases of our products and meet their payment obligations to us, or possible insolvencies of our customers, could result in
decreased customer demand, an impaired ability for us to collect on outstanding accounts receivable, significant delays in accounts receivable
payments, and significant write-offs of accounts receivable, each of which could adversely impact our financial results.

We are exposed to credit risk on our accounts receivables.

We are exposed to credit risk in our accounts receivable, and this risk is heightened in times of economic weakness. We distribute our products
both through third-party resellers and directly to certain customers and a majority of our outstanding trade receivables are not covered by
collateral or credit insurance. We may not be able to monitor and limit our exposure to credit risk on our trade and non-trade receivables, and we
may not be effective in limiting credit risk and avoiding losses.

Continuing weakness in global markets may adversely impact our suppliers.

Our ability to meet customers� demands depends, in part, on our ability to obtain timely and adequate delivery of quality materials, parts and
components or products from our suppliers. Certain of our components are available only from a single source or limited sources. If certain key
suppliers were to become capacity constrained or insolvent for any reason, including a weak economic environment, it could result in a
reduction or interruption in supplies or a significant increase in the price of supplies, each of which would adversely impact our financial results.
In addition, credit constraints at key suppliers could result in accelerated payment of accounts payable by us, impacting our cash flow.

Our markets are highly competitive and technology is rapidly evolving. If we are unable to introduce new products and solutions, we may
experience a decrease in sales or lose customers.

The markets for our products are competitive and characterized by rapidly changing technology. Additionally, the demand for higher security
environments including rapid certified identity authentication has led to new standards driving the need for new technology solutions. We
believe that the principal competitive factors affecting the markets for our products and solutions include:

� the extent to which products and systems must support evolving industry standards and provide interoperability;

� the extent to which standards are widely adopted and product and system interoperability is required within industry segments;

� the extent to which products are differentiated based on technical features, quality and reliability, ease of use, strength of distribution
channels and price;
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� the ability of suppliers to quickly develop new products and integrated solutions to satisfy new market and customer requirements;

� the total cost of ownership including installation, maintenance and expansion capability of systems; and

� the ability to commercialize custom solutions for common customer requests.
We currently experience competition from a number of companies in each of our target market segments and we believe that competition in our
markets is likely to intensify as a result of anticipated increased demand for secure identification products, systems and solutions. We may not be
successful in competing against offerings from other companies and could lose business as a result.

We also experience indirect competition from certain of our customers who currently offer alternative products or solutions or are expected to
introduce competitive offerings in the future. For example, in our ID Infrastructure business, we sell our products to OEMs who incorporate our
products into their offerings or who resell our products in order to provide a more complete solution to their customers. If our OEM customers
develop their own products to replace ours, this would result in a loss of sales to those customers, as well as increased competition for our
products in the marketplace. In addition, these OEM customers could cancel outstanding orders for our products, which could cause us to write
down inventory already designated for those customers. In our Hirsch Identive business, many of our dealer channel partners act as system
integrators, providing installation and service, and therefore carry competitive lines of products and systems. This is a common practice within
the industry as the integrators need access to multiple lines in order to support all potential service and user requirements. Depending on the
technical competence of their sales forces, comfort level of their technical staff with our systems and price pressure from customers, these
integrators may choose to offer a competitive system. There is also business pressure to provide some level of sales to all vendors to maintain
access to a range of products and systems.

We may, in the future, face competition from these and other parties that develop secure identification products based upon approaches similar
to or different from those employed by us. In addition, the market for secure identification products and solutions may ultimately be dominated
by approaches other than the approach marketed by us.

Many of our current and potential competitors have significantly greater financial, technical, marketing, purchasing and other resources than we
do. As a result, our competitors may be able to respond more quickly to new or emerging technologies or standards and to changes in customer
requirements. Our competitors may also be able to devote greater resources to the development, promotion and sale of products or solutions and
may be able to deliver competitive products or solutions at a lower end user price. Current and potential competitors have established or may
establish cooperative relationships among themselves or with third parties to increase the ability of their products or solutions to address the
needs of our prospective customers. Therefore, new competitors, or alliances among competitors, may emerge and rapidly acquire significant
market share. Increased competition is likely to result in price reductions, reduced operating margins and loss of market share.

Strategic Risks

Our future success will depend on our ability to keep pace with technological change and meet the needs of our target markets and customers.

The markets for our products are characterized by rapidly changing technology and the need to meet market requirements and to differentiate
our products and solutions through technological enhancements, and in some cases, price. Our customers� needs change, new technologies are
introduced into the market, and industry standards continue to evolve. As a result, product life cycles are often short and difficult to predict, and
frequently we must develop new products quickly in order to remain competitive in light of new market
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requirements. Rapid changes in technology, or the adoption of new industry standards, could render our existing products obsolete and
unmarketable. Changes in market requirements could render our existing solutions obsolete or could require us to expend more on research and
development efforts.

Our future success will depend upon our ability to enhance our current products and solutions and to develop and introduce new offerings with
clearly differentiated benefits that address the increasingly sophisticated needs of our customers and that keep pace with technological
developments, new competitive product offerings and emerging industry standards. We must be able to demonstrate that our products have
features or functions that are clearly differentiated from existing or anticipated competitive offerings, or we may be unsuccessful in selling these
products. Our failure to develop, manufacture, launch and sell next-generation security products and solutions could significantly affect our
financial performance. In addition, in cases where we are selected to supply products or solutions based on features or capabilities that are still
under development, we must be able to complete our design, delivery and implementation process on a timely basis, or risk losing current and
any future revenue from those offerings. In developing our offerings, we must collaborate closely with our customers, suppliers and other
strategic partners to ensure that critical development, marketing and distribution projects proceed in a coordinated manner. Also, this
collaboration is important because these relationships increase our exposure to information necessary to anticipate trends and plan product
development. If any of our current relationships terminate or otherwise deteriorate, or if we are unable to enter into future alliances that provide
us with comparable insight into market trends, our product development and marketing efforts may be adversely affected, and we could lose
sales. We expect that our product development efforts will continue to require substantial investments and we may not have sufficient resources
to make the necessary investments.

In some cases, we depend upon partners who provide one or more components of the overall solution for a customer in conjunction with our
products. If our partners do not adapt their products and technologies to new market or distribution requirements, or if their products do not work
well, then we may not be able to sell our products into certain markets.

Because we operate in markets for which industry-wide standards have not yet been fully set, it is possible that any standards eventually adopted
could prove disadvantageous to or incompatible with our business model and product lines. If any of the standards supported by us do not
achieve or sustain market acceptance, our business and operating results would be materially and adversely affected.

Sales of our products depend on the development of emerging applications in our target markets and on diversifying and expanding our
customer base in new markets and geographic regions, and with new products.

We sell our products, systems and services primarily to address emerging applications that have not yet reached a stage of mass adoption or
deployment. For example, in our Multicard business, our solutions are used in various identity-based programs in Europe, such as cashless
payment, �smart city� offerings and, national and regional IDs, which are applications that are not yet widely implemented. We are also focused on
sales of products and solutions for the emerging near field communication (NFC) market, which is expected to grow as a result of the
availability of NFC-enabled mobile phones. As NFC phones are not yet widely deployed, this market for our products is also still in an early
stage. Additionally, we are investing in �cloud-based� solutions, also known as Software as a Service (SaaS), which are also in an early phase of
adoption.

Because the markets for our products and solutions are still emerging, demand for our offerings is subject to variability from period to period.
There is no assurance that demand will become more predictable as additional identity-based programs, NFC applications or SaaS solutions
demonstrate success. If demand for our products and solutions does not develop further and grow sufficiently, our revenue and gross profit
margins could decline or fail to grow. We cannot predict the future growth rate, if any, or size or composition of the market for any of our
offerings. Our target markets have not consistently grown or developed as quickly as we have expected, and we have experienced delays in the
development of new products designed to take advantage of new market opportunities. Since new target markets are still evolving, it is difficult
to assess the competitive environment or
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the size of the market that may develop. The demand and market acceptance for our offerings, as is common for new technologies, is subject to
high levels of uncertainty and risk and may be influenced by various factors, including, but not limited to, the following:

� our ability to demonstrate to our potential customers and partners the value and benefits of new products;

� the ability of our competitors to develop and market competitive solutions for emerging applications in our target markets and our
ability to win business in advance of and against such competition;

� the adoption and/or continuation of industry or government regulations or policies requiring the use of products or solutions such as
our smart card readers or access control solutions;

� the timing of large scale security programs involving smart cards, RFID and related technology by governments, banks and
enterprises;

� the ability of financial institutions, corporate enterprises, the U.S. government and other governments to agree on industry
specifications and to develop and deploy security applications that will drive demand for products and solutions such as ours;

� the widespread availability of certain technologies, such as NFC-enabled mobile phones, required to spur demand for our products,
such as our NFC tags and readers; and

� general economic conditions, for example economic uncertainty.
Acquisitions and strategic investments expose us to significant risks.

A component of our ongoing business strategy is to seek to buy businesses, products and technologies that complement or augment our existing
businesses, products and technologies. Acquiring and integrating acquired businesses into our business exposes us to certain risks. The
combination of companies is a complex, costly and time-consuming process. As a result, we must devote significant management attention and
resources to finalizing transaction terms and to integrating the diverse business practices and operations of the acquired companies. These
processes may divert the attention of our executive officers and management from day-to-day operations and disrupt our business and, if
implemented ineffectively, preclude realization of the full benefits expected from the transactions. Failure to meet the challenges involved in
successfully integrating another company�s operations with ours or otherwise to realize any of the anticipated benefits of an acquisition could
cause an interruption of, or a loss of momentum in, the activities of our combined company and could adversely affect our results of operations.
In addition, the integration of acquired companies may result in unanticipated problems, expenses, liabilities, competitive responses and loss of
customer relationships, may cause dilution of shareholder value, and may cause our stock price to decline.

Any future acquisition could expose us to additional significant risks, including, without limitation:

� the use of our limited cash balance or potentially dilutive stock offerings to fund such acquisitions;

� costs of any necessary financing, which may not be available on reasonable terms or at all;

� accounting charges we might incur in connection with such acquisitions;
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� the difficulty and expense of integrating personnel, technologies, customer, supplier and distributor relationships, marketing efforts
and facilities acquired through acquisitions;

� integrating internal controls over financial reporting; discovering and correcting deficiencies in internal controls and other regulatory
compliance, data adequacy and integrity, product quality and product liabilities;

� diversion of management resources;

� failure to realize anticipated the benefits of the acquisition;

� costly fees for legal and transaction-related services; and

� the unanticipated assumption of liabilities.
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Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. We may not be successful with
any such acquisition. Acquisitions and strategic investments may also lead to substantial increases in non-current assets, including goodwill.
Write-downs of these assets due to unforeseen business developments may materially and adversely impact our financial condition and results of
operations.

Additionally, we have in the past acquired or made, and from time to time in the future may acquire or make, investments in companies,
products and technologies that we believe are complementary to our existing businesses, products and technologies. These investments may not
yield positive results.

We may not be able to secure additional financing.

We may seek or need to raise additional funds for general corporate and commercial purposes or for acquisitions. Our ability to obtain financing
depends on our historical and expected future operating and financial performance, and is also subject to prevailing economic conditions and to
financial, business and other factors beyond our control. If we are unable to secure additional financing when desired, our ability to fund our
business operations, make capital expenditures, pursue additional expansion or acquisition opportunities, or make another discretionary use of
cash could be limited, and this could adversely impact our financial results.

We currently expect that our current capital resources and available borrowings should be sufficient to meet our operating and capital
requirements at least through the end of 2012. We may, however, seek additional debt or equity financing prior to that time. There can be no
assurance that additional capital will be available to us on favorable terms or at all. The sale of additional debt or equity securities may cause
dilution to existing stockholders.

We may not recognize anticipated benefits from the strategic disposition or divestiture of portions of our business.

Our business strategy may also contemplate divesting portions of our business from time to time, if and when we believe we would be able to
realize greater value for our stockholders in so doing. We have in the past sold, and may from time to time in the future sell, all or one or more
portions of our business. Any divestiture or disposition could expose us to significant risks, including, without limitation, costly fees for legal
and transaction-related services; diversion of management resources; loss of key personnel; and reduction in revenue. Further, we may be
required to retain or indemnify the buyer against certain liabilities and obligations in connection with any such divestiture or disposition and we
may also become subject to third-party claims arising out of such divestiture or disposition. In addition, we may not achieve the expected price
in a divestiture transaction. Failure to overcome these risks could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations.

Operational Risks

We have incurred and may in the future incur significant expenses as a result of acquisitions, which reduces the amount of capital available to
fund our business.

We have incurred, and in the future may continue to incur, significant expenses related to acquisitions. These expenses include investment
banking fees, legal fees, accounting fees, printing and mailing of stockholder materials, integration and other costs, as well as past and possible
future outlays of cash. There may also be unanticipated costs related to acquisitions on an ongoing basis, including expenditures on acquisition
opportunities that do not result in completed transactions. As a result, the capital available to fund our activities has been and is expected to be
further reduced. If we are unsuccessful in securing sufficient sales from established markets or in generating sufficient new revenues from
emerging markets, then we would likely continue to require cash to fund our operations. The remaining cash available to us might not be
adequate in subsequent years.
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A material impairment in the carrying value of acquired goodwill or other intangible assets could negatively affect our consolidated operating
results and net worth.

A significant portion of our assets is goodwill and other intangible assets, which are reviewed on an annual basis and whenever events and
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If the carrying value of these assets exceeds the
current fair value, the asset is considered impaired and is reduced to fair value, resulting in a non-cash charge to earnings during the period in
which any impairment is determined. Events and conditions that could result in impairment include a sustained drop in the market price of our
common stock, increased competition or loss of market share, product innovation or obsolescence, or a decline of our business related to
acquired companies. We cannot accurately predict the amount and timing of any impairment of assets.

We have incurred operating losses and may not achieve or maintain profitability.

We have a history of losses. In the future, we may not be able to achieve expected results, including any guidance or outlook we may provide
from time to time; we may continue to incur losses and we may be unable to achieve or maintain profitability.

Our results may fluctuate greatly from quarter to quarter and, as a result, may not be a valid indicator of our future performance.

Our quarterly and annual operating results have varied greatly in the past and will likely vary greatly in the future depending upon a number of
factors. Many of these factors are beyond our control. Our revenues, gross profit and operating results may fluctuate significantly from quarter to
quarter due to, among other things:

� business and economic conditions overall and in our markets;

� the timing and amount of orders we receive from our customers that may be tied to budgetary cycles, seasonal demand, product plans
or program roll-out schedules;

� cancellations or delays of customer orders or the loss of a significant customer;

� our ability to obtain an adequate supply of quality components on a timely basis;

� the absence of significant backlog in our business;

� our inventory levels and the inventory levels of our customers and indirect sales channels;

� competition;

� new product announcements or introductions;

� our ability to develop, introduce, market and deliver new products and product enhancements on a timely basis, if at all;

� our ability to successfully market and sell our products and solutions into new geographic or market segments;
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� the sales volume, product configuration and mix of offerings that we sell;

� technological changes in the markets for our products and solutions;

� the rate of adoption of industry-wide standards;

� reductions in the average selling prices that we are able to charge due to competition or other factors;

� strategic acquisitions, sales and dispositions;

� fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies against the U.S. dollar;

� the timing and amount of marketing and research and development expenditures;
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� loss of key personnel; and

� costs related to events such as dispositions, organizational restructuring, headcount reductions, litigation or write-off of investments
or goodwill.

Due to these and other factors, our revenues may not increase or even remain at their current levels. Because a majority of our operating
expenses are fixed, a small variation in our revenues can cause significant variations in our operational results from quarter to quarter and our
operating results may vary significantly in future periods. Therefore, our historical results may not be a reliable indicator of our future
performance.

The unpredictable purchase patterns of customers in our ID Products segment impacts our budgeting process and may adversely affect our
results if orders are not placed in line with expectations.

In our Identity Management segment, sales tend to be relatively linear (regularly spaced throughout the quarter), as orders are tied to projects
with relatively predictable timelines. In our ID Products segment, the largest component of revenue in any given quarter is sales of smart card
reader technology. Historically, many of our smart card reader customers have tended to make a significant portion of their purchases towards
the end of the quarter, in part because they believe they are able to negotiate lower prices and more favorable terms. As a result, smart card
reader revenue in any quarter depends on contracts entered into or orders booked and shipped in that quarter. This makes it difficult to predict
revenues both in our smart card reader business, and for the company overall. Across both our segments, the timing of closing larger orders
increases the risk of quarter-to-quarter fluctuation in revenues. If orders forecasted for a specific group of customers for a particular quarter are
not realized or revenues are not otherwise recognized in that quarter, our operating results for that quarter could be materially adversely affected.
In addition, from time to time, we may experience unexpected increases or decreases in demand for our products resulting from fluctuations in
our customers� budgets, purchasing patterns or deployment schedules. These occurrences are not always predictable and can have a significant
impact on our results in the period in which they occur.

If we do not accurately anticipate the correct mix of products that will be sold, we may be required to record charges related to excess
inventories.

Due to the unpredictable nature of the demand for our products, we are required to place orders with our suppliers for components, finished
products and services in advance of actual customer commitments to purchase these products. Significant unanticipated fluctuations in demand
could result in costly excess production or inventories. In order to minimize the negative financial impact of excess production, we may be
required to significantly reduce the sales price of the product to increase demand, which in turn could result in a reduction in the value of the
original inventory purchase. If we were to determine that we could not utilize or sell this inventory, we may be required to write down its value,
which we have done in the past. Writing down inventory or reducing product prices could adversely impact our cost of revenues and financial
condition.

We may choose to take back unsold inventory from our customers.

If demand is less than anticipated, our distribution customers may ask that we accept returned products that they do not believe they can sell. We
do not have a policy relating to product returns for the majority of our products. However, we may determine that it is in our best interest to
accept returns in order to maintain good relations with our customers. If we were to accept product returns, we may be required to take
additional inventory reserves to reflect the decreased market value of slow-selling returned inventory, even if the products are in good working
order.

We are subject to a lengthy sales cycle and additional delays could result in significant fluctuations in our quarterly operating results.

In much of our business, the initial sales cycle for a new customer usually takes a minimum of six to nine months, and even in the case of
established customers, it may take up to a year for us to receive approval for a
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given purchase from the customer. During this sales cycle, we may expend substantial financial and managerial resources with no assurance that
a sale will ultimately result. The length of a new customer�s sales cycle depends on a number of factors, many of which we may not be able to
control. These factors include the customer�s product and technical requirements and the level of competition we face for that customer�s
business. Any delays in the sales cycle for new customers could delay or reduce our receipt of new revenue and could cause us to expend more
resources to obtain new customer wins. If we are unsuccessful in managing sales cycles, our business could be adversely affected.

Our business could be adversely affected by significant changes in the contracting or fiscal policies of governments and governmental entities.

We derive a substantial portion of our revenues from indirect sales to U.S. federal, state and local governments and government agencies, as well
as from subcontracts under federal government prime contracts. Large government programs are an important target for our business, as higher
security systems employing smart cards, RFID or other access control technologies are increasingly used to enable applications ranging from
authorizing building and network access for federal employees to paying taxes online, to citizen identification, to receiving health care. We
believe that the success and growth of our business will continue to be influenced by our successful procurement of government business either
directly or through our indirect sales channels. Accordingly, changes in government purchasing policies or government budgetary constraints
could directly affect our financial performance.

Among the factors that could adversely affect our government-related business are:

� changes in fiscal policies or decreases in available government funding or grants;

� changes in government programs or applicable requirements;

� delays in developing technology standards;

� the adoption of new laws or regulations or changes to existing laws or regulations pertaining to security;

� changes in political or social attitudes with respect to security or electronic identification issues;

� potential delays or changes in the government appropriations process; and

� delays in the payment of its invoices by government payment offices.
These and other factors could cause governments and governmental agencies to reduce their purchases or to defer or cancel new identity
management programs that might have utilized our products, any of which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations. Many of our government end customers are subject to stringent budgetary constraints. The award of additional orders from
government agencies could be adversely affected by existing or future spending reduction efforts or budget cutbacks at these agencies.

For example, in our Hirsch Identive business, budget and project delays in the deployment of access control systems by U.S. government
agencies resulted in an estimated $3.6 million decrease in revenues in 2011 compared with the prior year. As a general trend, U.S. federal
agencies continue to be subject to federal security improvement mandates that require the implementation of systems such as ours, but budget
and funding constraints will likely continue to impact our sales with certain agencies.

We anticipate that an increasingly significant portion of our future revenues will come from government programs outside the U.S., such as
national identity, eGovernment, eHealth and others applications. We currently supply smart card readers, RFID stickers and credential
management solutions for various government programs in Europe and Asia and are actively targeting additional programs in these areas as well
as in Latin America. However, the timing of government smart card programs is not always certain and delays in program implementation are
common. The delay of government projects in any country for any reason could negatively impact our sales.
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Fluctuations in the valuation of foreign currencies could impact costs and/or revenues we disclose in U.S. dollars, and could result in foreign
currency losses.

A significant portion of our business is conducted in foreign currencies, principally the euro. Fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies
relative to the U.S. dollar will continue to cause currency exchange gains and losses. If a significant portion of operating expenses are incurred in
a foreign currency such as the euro, and revenues are generated in U.S. dollars, exchange rate fluctuations might have a positive or negative net
financial impact on these transactions, depending on whether the U.S. dollar devalues or revalues compared to the euro. In addition, the
valuation of current assets and liabilities that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency can result in currency exchange
gains and losses. For example, when one of our subsidiaries uses the euro as the functional currency, and this subsidiary has a receivable in
U.S. dollars, a devaluation of the U.S. dollar against the euro of 10% would result in a foreign exchange loss of the reporting entity of 10% of
the value of the underlying U.S. dollar receivable. We cannot predict the effect of exchange rate fluctuations upon future quarterly and annual
operating results. The effect of currency exchange rate changes may increase or decrease our costs and/or revenues in any given quarter, and we
may experience currency losses in the future. To date, we have not adopted a hedging program to protect against risks associated with foreign
currency fluctuations.

We derive a substantial portion of revenue through the sale of our Hirsch Identive solutions for U.S. government programs that involve
competitive bidding and may be subject to significant delay, which may produce volatility in our revenues and earnings.

In our Hirsch Identive business a substantial portion of revenues are related to orders received from government agencies through our indirect
channel partners, and to a lesser extent, from direct sales governed by pricing as published in the General Services Administration (�GSA�)
schedules. Government orders are frequently awarded only after a formal competitive bidding process, which typically is protracted and
dependent upon necessary funds being available to the public agency. We may not be awarded orders for which we bid directly and our dealers
may not be successful in their bids that would utilize our offerings. In some cases, unsuccessful bidders for government agency orders are
provided the opportunity to formally protest certain order awards through various agency, administrative and judicial channels. The protest
process may substantially delay a successful bidder�s award or result in cancellation of the order entirely. Furthermore, local government agency
awards may be contingent upon availability of matching funds from federal or state entities and law enforcement and other government agencies
are subject to political, budgetary, purchasing and delivery constraints. Any of these factors can make it difficult to predict our quarterly and
annual revenues and operating results.

Our U.S. government business is dependent upon receipt of certain governmental approvals or certifications, and failure to receive such
approvals or certifications could have a material adverse effect on our sales in those market segments for which such approvals or certifications
are customary or required.

While we are not able to quantify the amount of sales made to the U.S. government due to the indirect nature of our selling process, we believe
that orders for U.S. government agencies represent a significant portion of our revenues. Failing to obtain certain government approvals or
certifications could have a material adverse effect in those environments for which such approvals or certifications are customary or required. As
newer versions of existing products, or new products in development, are released, they may require certifications or approvals. In addition, the
U.S. government may introduce new requirements that some existing products will be required to meet. If we fail to obtain any required
approvals or certifications for our products, our business will suffer.

Our business could be adversely affected by negative audits by government agencies; we could be required to reimburse the U.S. government for
costs that we have expended on government orders; and our ability to compete successfully for future orders could be materially impaired.

Government agencies may audit our business as part of their routine audits and investigations of government orders. As part of an audit, these
agencies may review our performance on orders, cost structures and

20

Edgar Filing: IDENTIVE GROUP, INC. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 29



Table of Contents

compliance with applicable laws, regulations and standards. These agencies may also review the adequacy of, and our compliance with, our own
internal control systems and policies, including our purchasing, property, estimating, compensation and management information systems. If any
of our costs are found to be improperly allocated to a specific order, the costs may not be reimbursed and any costs already reimbursed for such
order may have to be refunded. An audit could materially affect our business� competitive position and result in a material adjustment to our
financial results or statement of operations. If a government agency audit uncovers improper or illegal activities, we may be subject to civil and
criminal penalties and administrative sanctions, including termination of orders, forfeiture of profits, suspension of payments, fines and
suspension or debarment from doing business with the federal government. In addition, our business could suffer serious harm to its reputation if
allegations of impropriety were made against us.

While our business has never had a negative audit by a governmental agency, we cannot assure you that one will not occur. If we were
suspended or barred from supplying solutions to the federal government generally, or if our reputation or relationships with our distribution
channel or government agencies were impaired, or if the government otherwise ceased doing business with us or significantly decreased the
amount of business it does with us, our revenues and prospects would be materially harmed.

A significant portion of our sales is made through an indirect sales channel, and the loss of dealers, systems integrators, resellers, or other
channel partners could result in decreased revenue.

We currently use an indirect sales channel that includes dealers, systems integrators, value added resellers and resellers to sell a significant
portion of our products and solutions, primarily into markets or customers where the channel partner may have closer relationships or greater
access than we do. Some of these channel partners also sell our competitors� products, and if they favor our competitors� products for any reason,
they may fail to market our products as effectively or to devote resources necessary to provide effective sales, which would cause our sales to
suffer. Indirect selling arrangements are intended to benefit both us and the channel partner, and may be long- or short-term relationships,
depending on market conditions, competition in the marketplace and other factors. If we are unable to maintain effective indirect sales channels,
there could be a reduction in the amount of product we are able to sell, and our revenues could decrease.

Our business could suffer if our third-party manufacturers cannot meet production requirements.

Many of our products are manufactured outside the U.S. by contract manufacturers. Our reliance on foreign manufacturing poses a number of
risks, including, but not limited to:

� difficulties in staffing;

� currency fluctuations;

� potentially adverse tax consequences;

� unexpected changes in regulatory requirements;

� tariffs and other trade barriers;

� export controls;

� political and economic instability;
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� lack of control over the manufacturing process and ultimately over the quality of our products;

� late delivery of our products, whether because of limited access to our product components, transportation delays and interruptions,
difficulties in staffing, or disruptions such as natural disasters;

� capacity limitations of our manufacturers, particularly in the context of new large contracts for our products, whether because our
manufacturers lack the required capacity or are unwilling to produce the quantities we desire; and

� obsolescence of our hardware products at the end of the manufacturing cycle.
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The use of contract manufacturing requires us to exercise strong planning and management in order to ensure that our products are manufactured
on schedule, to correct specifications and to a high standard of quality. If any of our contract manufacturers cannot meet our production
requirements, we may be required to rely on other contract manufacturing sources or identify and qualify new contract manufacturers. We may
be unable to identify or qualify new contract manufacturers in a timely manner or at all or with reasonable terms and these new manufacturers
may not allocate sufficient capacity to us in order to meet our requirements. Any significant delay in our ability to obtain adequate supplies of
our products from our current or alternative manufacturers would materially and adversely affect our business and operating results. In addition,
if we are not successful at managing the contract manufacturing process, the quality of our products could be jeopardized or inventories could be
too low or too high, which could result in damage to our reputation with our customers and in the marketplace, as well as possible write-offs of
excess inventory.

We have a limited number of suppliers of key components, and may experience difficulties in obtaining components for which there is significant
demand.

We rely upon a limited number of suppliers for some key components of our products. For example, we currently utilize the foundry services of
external suppliers to produce our ASICs for smart cards readers and inlays, and we use chips and antenna components from third-party suppliers
in our contactless smart card readers. Our reliance on a limited number of suppliers may expose us to various risks including, without limitation,
an inadequate supply of components, price increases, late deliveries and poor component quality. In addition, some of the basic components used
in our reader products, such as semiconductors, may at any time be in great demand. This could result in components not being available to us in
a timely manner or at all, particularly if larger companies have ordered more significant volumes of those components, or in higher prices being
charged for components. For example, limited availability of certain semiconductor chips used in our RFID and smart card reader products had a
negative impact in our sales during 2010. Disruption or termination of the supply of components or software used in our products could delay
shipments of our products. These delays could have a material adverse effect on our business and operating results and could also damage
relationships with current and prospective customers.

Cybersecurity breaches in systems we sell or maintain could result in the disclosure of sensitive government information or private personal
information that could result in the loss of clients and negative publicity.

Many of the systems we sell manage private personal information and protect information involved in sensitive government functions. A
cybersecurity breach in one of these systems could cause serious harm to our business as a result of negative publicity and could prevent us from
having further access to such systems or other similarly sensitive areas for other governmental clients.

As part of our technical support services, we agree, from time to time, to possess all or a portion of the security system database of our
customers. This service is subject to a number of risks. For example, despite our security measures our systems may be vulnerable to cyber
attacks by hackers, physical break-ins and service disruptions that could lead to interruptions, delays or loss of data. If any such compromise of
our security were to occur, it could be very expensive to correct, could damage our reputation and could discourage potential customers from
using our services. Although we have not experienced attempted cyber or physical attacks, we may experience such attempts in the future. Our
systems may also be affected by outages, delays and other difficulties. Our insurance coverage may be insufficient to cover losses and liabilities
that may result from such events.

Failure to properly manage the implementation of customer projects in our business may result in costs or claims against us, and our financial
results could be adversely affected.

In our business, deployments of our solutions often involve large-scale projects. The quality of our performance on such projects depends in
large part upon our ability to manage relationships with our customers
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and to effectively manage the implementation of our solutions in such projects and to deploy appropriate resources, including our own project
managers and third-party subcontractors, in a timely manner. Any defects or errors or failures to meet clients� expectations could result in
damage to our reputation or even claims for substantial monetary damages against us. In addition, we sometimes provide guarantees to
customers that we will complete a project by a scheduled date or that our solutions will achieve defined performance standards. If our solutions
experience a performance problem, we may not be able to recover the additional costs we will incur in our remedial efforts, which could
materially impair profit derived from a particular project. Moreover, a portion of our revenues are derived from fixed price contracts.

Our products may have defects, which could damage our reputation, decrease market acceptance of our products, cause us to lose customers
and revenue and result in costly litigation or liability.

Products such as our smart card readers, access control panels and RFID inlays may contain defects for many reasons, including defective design
or manufacture, defective material or software inoperability issues. Often, these defects are not detected until after the products have been
shipped. If any of our products contain defects or perceived defects or have reliability, quality or compatibility problems or perceived problems,
our reputation might be damaged significantly, we could lose or experience a delay in market acceptance of the affected product or products and
we might be unable to retain existing customers or attract new customers. In addition, these defects could interrupt or delay sales. In the event of
an actual or perceived defect or other problem, we may need to invest significant capital, technical, managerial and other resources to investigate
and correct the potential defect or problem and potentially divert these resources from other development efforts. If we are unable to provide a
solution to the potential defect or problem that is acceptable to our customers, we may be required to incur substantial product recall, repair and
replacement and even litigation costs. These costs could have a material adverse effect on our business and operating results.

We provide warranties on certain product sales, which range from 12 to 24 months, and allowances for estimated warranty costs are recorded
during the period of sale. The determination of such allowances requires us to make estimates of product return rates and expected costs to repair
or to replace the products under warranty. We currently establish warranty reserves based on historical warranty costs for each product line
combined with liability estimates based on the prior twelve months� sales activities. If actual return rates and/or repair and replacement costs
differ significantly from our estimates, adjustments to recognize additional cost of sales may be required in future periods.

In addition, because our customers rely on our smart card readers to prevent unauthorized access to PCs, networks or facilities, a malfunction of
or design defect in our products (or even a perceived defect) could result in legal or warranty claims against us for damages resulting from
security breaches. If such claims are adversely decided against us, the potential liability could be substantial and have a material adverse effect
on our business and operating results. Furthermore, the possible publicity associated with any such claim, whether or not decided against us,
could adversely affect our reputation. In addition, a well-publicized security breach involving smart card-based or other security systems could
adversely affect the market�s perception of products like ours in general, or our products in particular, regardless of whether the breach is actual
or attributable to our products. Any of the foregoing events could cause demand for our products to decline, which would cause our business and
operating results to suffer.

We have global operations, which require significant financial, managerial and administrative resources.

Our business model includes the management of separate product lines that address disparate market opportunities that are geographically
dispersed. While there is some shared technology across our products, each product line requires significant research and development efforts to
address the evolving needs of our customers and markets. To support our development and sales efforts, we maintain company offices and
business operations in several locations around the world, including Australia, Canada, Germany, Hong Kong, India, Japan, the Netherlands,
Singapore, Switzerland and the U.S. We also maintain manufacturing facilities in Germany and
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Singapore and manage contract manufacturers in multiple countries, including China and Singapore. Managing our various development, sales,
administrative and manufacturing operations places a significant burden on our financial systems and has contributed to a level of operational
spending that is disproportionately high compared to our current revenue levels.

Operating in diverse geographic locations also imposes significant burdens on our managerial resources. In particular, our management must:

� divert a significant amount of time and energy to manage employees and contractors from diverse cultural backgrounds and who
speak different languages;

� travel between our different company offices;

� maintain sufficient internal financial controls in multiple geographic locations that may have different control environments;

� manage different product lines for different markets;

� manage our supply and distribution channels across different countries and business practices; and

� coordinate these efforts to produce an integrated business effort, focus and vision.
Any failure to effectively manage our operations globally could have a material adverse effect on our business and operating results.

We conduct a significant portion of our operations outside the U.S. Economic, political, regulatory and other risks associated with international
sales and operations could have an adverse effect on our results of operation.

We conduct a substantial portion of our business in Europe and Asia. Approximately 57% of our revenue in 2011 and 45% of our revenue in
2010 was derived from customers located outside the U.S.

Because a significant number of our principal customers are located in other countries, we anticipate that international sales will continue to
account for a substantial portion of our revenues. As a result, a significant portion of our sales and operations may continue to be subject to risks
associated with foreign operations, any of which could impact our sales and/or our operational performance. These risks include, but are not
limited to:

� changes in foreign currency exchange rates;

� changes in a specific country�s or region�s political or economic conditions and stability, particularly in emerging markets;

� unexpected changes in foreign laws and regulatory requirements;

� export controls;
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� potentially adverse tax consequences;

� longer accounts receivable collection cycles;

� difficulty in managing widespread sales and manufacturing operations; and

� less effective protection of intellectual property.
Personnel Risks

Our key personnel and directors are critical to our business, and such key personnel may not remain with us in the future.

We depend on the continued employment of our senior executive officers and other key management and technical personnel. If any of our key
personnel were to leave and not be replaced with sufficiently qualified and experienced personnel, our business could be adversely affected.
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We also believe that our future success will depend in large part on our ability to attract and retain highly qualified technical and management
personnel. However, competition for such personnel is intense. We may not be able to retain our key technical and management employees or to
attract, assimilate or retain other highly qualified technical and management personnel in the future.

Likewise, as a small, publicly-traded company, we are challenged to identify, attract and retain experienced professionals with diverse skills and
backgrounds who are qualified and willing to serve on our Board of Directors. The increased burden of regulatory compliance under the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and Dodd-Frank Act creates additional liability and exposure for directors; financial losses in our business and lack
of growth in our stock price make it difficult for us to offer attractive director compensation packages. If we are not able to attract and retain
qualified board members, our ability to practice a high level of corporate governance could be impaired.

Qualified management, marketing, and sales personnel are difficult to locate, hire and train, and if we cannot attract and retain qualified
personnel, it will harm the ability of our business to grow.

The success of our company depends, in part, on the continued service of key managerial, marketing and sales personnel. Competition for
qualified management, technical, sales and marketing employees is intense. We cannot assure you that we will be able to attract, retain and
integrate employees to develop and continue our business and successfully implement strategic acquisitions.

Risks of Financial and Capital Markets

Our stock price has been and is likely to remain volatile.

Over the past few years, the NASDAQ Stock Market and the Frankfurt Stock Exchange have experienced significant price and volume
fluctuations that have particularly affected the market prices of the stocks of technology companies. Volatility in our stock price on either or
both exchanges may result from a number of factors, including, among others:

� low volumes of trading activity in our stock;

� variations in our or our competitors� financial and/or operational results;

� the fluctuation in market value of comparable companies in any of our markets;

� expected, perceived or announced relationships or transactions with third parties;

� announcements of significant contract wins or losses;

� comments and forecasts by securities analysts;

� trading patterns of our stock on the NASDAQ Stock Market or the Frankfurt Stock Exchange;

� the inclusion or removal of our stock from market indices, such as groups of technology stocks or other indices;

� loss of key personnel;
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� announcements of technological innovations or new products by us or our competitors;

� announcements of dispositions, organizational restructuring, headcount reductions, litigation or write-off of investments;

� litigation developments; and

� general market downturns.
In the past, companies that have experienced volatility in the market price of their stock have been the object of securities class action litigation.
If we were the object of securities class action litigation, it could result in substantial costs and a diversion of our management�s attention and
resources.
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You may experience dilution of your ownership interests due to the future issuance of additional shares of our stock, and future sales of shares
of our common stock could have an adverse effect on our stock price.

We have issued a significant number of shares of our common stock, together with warrants to purchase shares of our common stock, in
connection with a number of acquisitions in recent years. In May 2011 we issued approximately 7.8 million shares of Identive common stock in
an underwritten public offering. As of December 31, 2011, warrants to purchase approximately 8.6 million shares of Identive common stock
were outstanding. From time to time, in the future we also may issue additional previously authorized and unissued securities, resulting in the
dilution of the ownership interests of our current stockholders. We are currently authorized to issue up to 130,000,000 shares of common stock.
As of March 26, 2012, 59,107,945 shares of common stock were outstanding, excluding 618,400 shares held in treasury.

In addition, the Company maintains various incentive plans under which equity may be issued. As of December 31, 2011, an aggregate of
approximately 12.1 million shares of common stock are reserved for future grants and 2.3 million shares are reserved for future issuance
pursuant to outstanding equity awards under the various equity incentive plans. In addition, as of December 31, 2011, an aggregate of
approximately 5.9 million shares of common stock are reserved for future issuance in connection with the Company�s acquisition of Bluehill ID,
idOnDemand and polyright. We may issue additional shares of our common stock or other securities that are convertible into or exercisable for
shares of common stock in connection with the hiring of personnel, future acquisitions, future private placements, or future public offerings of
our securities for capital raising or for other business purposes. If we issue additional securities, the aggregate percentage ownership of our
existing stockholders will be reduced. In addition, any new securities that we issue may have rights senior to those of our common stock.

The issuance of additional shares of common stock or preferred stock or other securities, or the perception that such issuances could occur, may
create downward pressure on the trading price of our common stock.

One of our directors indirectly holds significant amounts of our common stock and could have significant influence over the outcome of
corporate actions requiring board and stockholder approval.

As of March 1, 2012, Mountain Partners AG, together with its affiliates (collectively �Mountain Partners�), had the right to vote approximately
13% of the outstanding shares of our common stock. Daniel Wenzel, a director of our Company, is a co-founder of Mountain Partners. As of
March 1, 2012, the directors and officers of Identive Group collectively held approximately 7% of our common stock. Accordingly, our directors
and officers could have influence over the outcome of corporate actions requiring board and stockholder approval, including the election of
directors, any merger, consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of our assets or any other significant corporate transaction.

Provisions in our agreements, charter documents, Delaware law and our rights plan may delay or prevent the acquisition of Identive by another
company, which could decrease the value of your shares.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and Delaware law contain provisions that could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us
or enter into a material transaction with us without the consent of our Board of Directors. These provisions include a classified Board of
Directors and limitations on actions by our stockholders by written consent. Delaware law imposes some restrictions on mergers and other
business combinations between us and any holder of 15% or more of our outstanding common stock. In addition, our Board of Directors has the
right to issue preferred stock without stockholder approval, which could be used to dilute the stock ownership of a potential hostile acquirer.

We have adopted a stockholder rights plan. The triggering and exercise of the rights would cause substantial dilution to a person or group that
attempts to acquire us on terms or in a manner not approved by our Board of Directors, except pursuant to an offer conditioned upon redemption
of the rights. While the rights are not intended to prevent a takeover of our Company, they may have the effect of rendering more difficult or
discouraging an acquisition of us that was deemed to be undesirable by our Board of Directors.
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These provisions will apply even if the offer were to be considered adequate by some of our stockholders. Because these provisions may be
deemed to discourage a change of control, they may delay or prevent the acquisition of our Company, which could decrease the value of our
common stock.

Legal and Regulatory Risks

Our business could be adversely affected by changes in laws or regulations pertaining to security.

The U.S. federal government, suppliers to the federal government and certain industries in the public sector currently fall, or may in the future
fall, under particular regulations pertaining to security. Some of the laws, regulations, certifications or requirements that may stimulate new
security systems sales include the following:

� Homeland Security Presidential Directive (HSPD) 12 and Federal Information Processing Standards (FIPS) 201 produced by
National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST);

� Federal Information Security Management Act (FISMA);

� Transportation Security Administration�s (TSA) Transportation Worker Identification Credential (TWIC) program;

� Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (also known as the Public Company Accounting Reform and Investor Protection Act);

� Dodd-Frank Act;

� Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA);

� Gramm-Leach Bliley Act of 1999 (GLBA, a.k.a., the Financial Modernization Act);

� Customs-Trade Partnership Against Terrorism (C-TPAT);

� Free and Secure Trade Program (FAST);

� Chemical Facility Anti Terrorism Standards (CFATS); and

� various codes of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR).
Discontinuance of, changes in, or lack of adoption of laws or regulations pertaining to security could adversely affect our performance.

We are subject to extensive government regulation, and any failure to comply with applicable regulations could subject us to penalties that may
restrict our ability to conduct our business.
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Our business is affected by and must comply with various government regulations that impact its operating costs, profit margins and its internal
organization and operations. Furthermore, our business may be audited to assure compliance with these requirements. Any failure to comply
with applicable regulations, rules and approvals could result in the imposition of penalties, the loss of government orders or the removal of our
products from the GSA approved list, any of which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Among the
most significant regulations affecting our business are the following:

� the Federal Acquisition Regulations, or the FAR, and agency regulations supplemental to the FAR, which comprehensively regulate
the formation and administration of, and performance under government contracts;

� the Truth in Negotiations Act, which requires certification and disclosure of all cost and pricing data in connection with contract
negotiations;

� the Cost Accounting Standards, which impose accounting requirements that govern our right to reimbursement under cost-based
government contracts;

� the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act; and

� laws, regulations and executive orders restricting the use and dissemination of information classified for national security purposes
and the exportation of certain products and technical data.
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These regulations affect how our customers can do business with us, and, in some instances, the regulations impose added costs on our business.
Any changes in applicable laws and regulations could restrict our ability to conduct our business. Any failure to comply with applicable laws
and regulations could result in contract termination, price or fee reductions or suspension or debarment from contracting with the federal
government generally.

If we are unable to continue to obtain U.S. government authorization regarding the export of our products, or if current or future export laws
limit or otherwise restrict our business, we could be prohibited from shipping our products to certain countries, which could cause our business,
financial condition and results of operations to suffer.

In our business, we must comply with U.S. and European Union (�EU�) laws, among others, regulating the export of our products. In some cases,
explicit authorization from the U.S. or an EU government is needed to export our products. The export regimes and the governing policies
applicable to our business are subject to changes. We cannot be certain that such export authorizations will be available to us or for our products
in the future. In some cases, we rely upon the compliance activities of our prime contractors, and we cannot be certain they have taken or will
take all measures necessary to comply with applicable export laws. If we or our prime contractor partners cannot obtain required government
approvals under applicable regulations, we may not be able to sell our products in certain international jurisdictions.

We face risks from future claims of third parties and litigation.

From time to time, we may be subject to claims of third parties, possibly resulting in litigation, which could include, among other things, claims
regarding infringement of the intellectual property rights of third parties, product defects, employment-related claims, and claims related to
acquisitions, dispositions or restructurings. Any such claims or litigation may be time-consuming and costly, divert management resources,
cause product shipment delays, require us to redesign our products, require us to accept returns of products and to write off inventory, or have
other adverse effects on our business. Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and could require us
to pay significant monetary damages.

We expect the likelihood of intellectual property infringement and misappropriation claims may increase as the number of products and
competitors in our markets grows and as we increasingly incorporate third-party technology into our products. As a result of infringement
claims, we could be required to license intellectual property from a third-party or redesign our products. Licenses may not be offered when we
need them or on acceptable terms. If we do obtain licenses from third parties, we may be required to pay license fees or royalty payments or we
may be required to license some of our intellectual property to others in return for such licenses. If we are unable to obtain a license that is
necessary for us or our third-party manufacturers to manufacture our allegedly infringing products, we could be required to suspend the
manufacture of products or stop our suppliers from using processes that may infringe the rights of third parties. We may also be unsuccessful in
redesigning our products. Our suppliers and customers may be subject to infringement claims based on intellectual property included in our
products. We have historically agreed to indemnify our suppliers and customers for patent infringement claims relating to our products. The
scope of this indemnity varies, but may, in some instances, include indemnification for damages and expenses, including attorney�s fees. We may
periodically engage in litigation as a result of these indemnification obligations. Our insurance policies exclude coverage for third-party claims
for patent infringement.

We may be exposed to risks of intellectual property infringement by third parties.

Our success depends significantly upon our proprietary technology. We currently rely on a combination of patent, copyright and trademark laws,
trade secrets, confidentiality agreements and contractual provisions to protect our proprietary rights, which afford only limited protection. We
may not be successful in protecting our proprietary technology through patents, it is possible that no new patents will be issued, that our
proprietary products or technologies are not patentable or that any issued patent will fail to provide us with any competitive advantages.
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There has been a great deal of litigation in the technology industry regarding intellectual property rights, and from time to time we may be
required to use litigation to protect our proprietary technology. This may result in our incurring substantial costs and we may not be successful in
any such litigation.

Despite our efforts to protect our proprietary rights, unauthorized parties may attempt to copy aspects of our products or to use our proprietary
information and software without authorization. In addition, the laws of some foreign countries do not protect proprietary and intellectual
property rights to the same extent as do the laws of the U.S. Because many of our products are sold and a significant portion of our business is
conducted outside the U.S., our exposure to intellectual property risks may be higher. Our means of protecting our proprietary and intellectual
property rights may not be adequate. There is a risk that our competitors will independently develop similar technology or duplicate our products
or design around patents or other intellectual property rights. If we are unsuccessful in protecting our intellectual property or our products or
technologies are duplicated by others, our business could be harmed.

Changes in tax laws or the interpretation thereof, adverse tax audits and other tax matters may adversely affect our future results.

A number of factors may impact our tax position, including:

� the jurisdictions in which profits are determined to be earned and taxed;

� the resolution of issues arising from tax audits with various tax authorities;

� changes in the valuation of our deferred tax assets and liabilities;

� adjustments to estimated taxes upon finalization of various tax returns;

� increases in expenses not deductible for tax purposes; and

� the repatriation of non-U.S. earnings for which we have not previously provided for U.S. taxes.
Any of these factors could make it more difficult for us to project or achieve expected tax results. An increase or decrease in our tax liabilities
due to these or other factors could adversely affect our financial results in future periods.

We face costs and risks associated with maintaining effective internal controls over financial reporting, and if we fail to achieve and maintain
adequate internal controls over financial reporting, our business, results of operations and financial condition, and investors� confidence in us
could be materially affected.

Under Sections 302 and 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, our management is required to make certain assessments and certifications
regarding our disclosure controls and internal controls over financial reporting. We have dedicated, and expect to continue to dedicate,
significant management, financial and other resources in connection with our compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. The
process of maintaining and evaluating the effectiveness of these controls is expensive, time-consuming and requires significant attention from
our management and staff. During the course of our evaluation, we may identify areas requiring improvement and may be required to design
enhanced processes and controls to address issues identified through this review. This could result in significant delays and costs to us and
require us to divert substantial resources, including management time from other activities. We have found a material weakness in our internal
controls in the past and we cannot be certain in the future that we will be able to report that our controls are without material weakness or to
complete our evaluation of those controls in a timely fashion.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of disclosure controls or internal control over financial reporting, we may not be able to rely on the
integrity of our financial results, which could result in inaccurate or late reporting of our financial results and investigation by regulatory
authorities. If we fail to achieve and maintain adequate internal controls the financial position of our business could be harmed; current and
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shareholders could lose confidence in us and/or our reported financial results, which may cause a negative effect on the trading price of our
common stock; and we could be exposed to litigation or regulatory proceedings, which may be costly or divert management attention.

In addition, all internal control systems, no matter how well designed and operated, can only provide reasonable assurance that the objectives of
the control system are met. Because there are inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of control can provide absolute assurance,
that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been or will be detected. Projections of any evaluation of controls
effectiveness to future periods are subject to risks. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or deterioration
in the degree of compliance with policies or procedures. Any failure of our internal control systems to be effective could adversely affect our
business.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Our corporate headquarters are located in Santa Ana, California and we maintain European operational headquarters in Ismaning, Germany. We
lease additional facilities around the world to house our engineering, sales and marketing, administrative and manufacturing functions.
Additionally, we own an office building in the Netherlands which houses the software development, sales and marketing operations of our
Multicard Netherlands business. At December 31, 2011, our major facilities consisted of the following:

Location Function
Square

Feet Lease Expiration Used by

Santa Ana, California Corporate headquarters.
Co-located with Hirsch Identive
business headquarters

34,599 November 2012 Corporate; Identity management
segment

Ismaning, Germany European operational
headquarters and sales facility
for ID Infrastructure business

22,000 November 2013 Both segments

Chennai, India Research and development 10,398 April 2013 ID Products segment

Wallisellen, Switzerland Product development, sales and
marketing for Multicard
Switzerland

15,478 October 2014 Identity Management segment

Sauerlach, Germany Transponder manufacturing 11,647 November 2012 ID Products segment

Singapore Transponder manufacturing 16,060 May 2014 ID Products segment

Oud-Beijerland, The
Netherlands

Product development, sales and
marketing for Multicard
Netherlands

18,622 N/A Identity Management segment

Los Angeles, California Sales and marketing for
Multicard U.S.

5,160 June 2012 Identity Management segment

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
From time to time, we could be subject to claims arising in the ordinary course of business or could be a defendant in lawsuits. While the
outcome of such claims or other proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, our management expects that any such liabilities, to the extent
not provided for by insurance or otherwise, will not have a material effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.
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ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not Applicable
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT�S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Price Range of Common Stock; Number of Holders; Dividends

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Stock Market�s Global Market under the symbol �INVE� and on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange
under the symbol �INV.� According to data available at March 1, 2012, we estimate we had approximately 3,000 stockholders of record and
beneficial stockholders. Not represented in this figure are individual stockholders in Germany whose custodian banks do not release stockholder
information to us. The following table sets forth the high and low closing prices of our common stock for the periods indicated.

NASDAQ
National Market

Prime Standard
(Quoted in Euros)

High Low High Low
Fiscal 2011:
First Quarter $ 3.20 $ 2.24 �1.61 �2.29
Second Quarter $ 5.69 $ 2.21 �3.92 �1.52
Third Quarter $ 2.45 $ 1.51 �1.79 �1.00
Fourth Quarter $ 2.55 $ 1.76 �1.81 �1.34

Fiscal 2010:
First Quarter $ 2.49 $ 1.45 �1.76 �1.13
Second Quarter $ 1.92 $ 1.55 �1.41 �1.26
Third Quarter $ 1.86 $ 1.40 �1.33 �1.13
Fourth Quarter $ 2.65 $ 1.82 �1.87 �1.30

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock or other securities. We currently anticipate that we will retain all of our
future earnings for use in the expansion and operation of our business and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

The disclosure required by Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K is included in Item 12 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following performance graph compares the cumulative total return to holders of our common stock since December 31, 2006, to the
cumulative total return over such period of the NASDAQ Composite index and the RDG Technology Index.

The performance graph assumes that $100 was invested on December 31, 2006 in our common stock and in each of the comparative indices.
The performance graph further assumes that such amount was initially invested in our common stock at a price of $3.11 per share, the closing
price on December 31, 2006.

Our historic stock price performance is not necessarily indicative of future stock price performance.

Measurement Period

(Fiscal Year Covered)
Identive
Group

NASDAQ
Composite

RDG
Technology

Dec-06 $ 100.00 $ 100.00 $ 100.00
Dec-07 107.40 110.26 115.01
Dec-08 72.35 65.65 65.30
Dec-09 76.21 95.19 105.06
Dec-10 81.03 112.10 118.52
Dec-11 71.70 110.81 118.29
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

In May 2011, we issued 3,328 shares of our common stock to one holder in exchange for 6,400 shares of Bluehill ID AG not previously tendered
in our combination with Bluehill ID AG. The shares were exchanged at a ratio of 0.52 shares of our common stock for each share of Bluehill ID
AG, the same exchange ratio as in the Bluehill ID AG combination.

In June 2011, we issued an aggregate of 15,170 shares of our common stock, having an approximate value of $35,000, in satisfaction of a
previously disclosed earn-out payment to the former owners of Bluehill ID AG under an agreement assumed in our combination with Bluehill
ID AG. In addition, we issued an aggregate of 122,098 shares of our common stock, having an approximate value of $281,000, in satisfaction of
a previously disclosed earn-out payment to the former owners of RockWest Technology Group LLC under the RockWest purchase agreement.

These shares were issued in reliance upon exemptions from registration provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act, including Regulation D
and Regulation S thereunder.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

None.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The comparability of our operating results for the years shown in the table below is impacted by our acquisitions of Hirsch on April 30, 2009;
Bluehill ID on January 4, 2010; RockWest (now doing business as Multicard U.S.) on April 14, 2010, Smartag on November 19, 2010,
idOnDemand on May 2, 2011 and polyright on July 18, 2011. Results of these businesses have been included since their respective acquisition
dates.

IDENTIVE GROUP, INC.

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

(In thousands, except per share data)
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Net revenue $ 102,708 $ 84,843 $ 41,315 $ 28,362 $ 30,435
Cost of revenue 59,906 47,485 21,971 15,358 17,145

Gross profit 42,802 37,358 19,344 13,004 13,290

Operating expenses:
Research and development 7,025 4,715 4,253 3,118 2,408
Selling and marketing 23,563 20,375 12,886 7,875 5,092
General and administrative 22,440 21,809 16,431 11,063 9,990
Amortization of intangibles �  �  �  �  272
Impairment of intangibles �  �  647 �  �  
Restructuring 337 �  �  �  
Gain on sale of assets �  �  (1,417) (1,455) �  

Total operating expenses 53,028 47,236 32,800 20,601 17,762

Loss from operations (10,226) (9,878) (13,456) (7,597) (4,472) 
Loss and impairment on equity investments �  �  (2,244) (256) �  
Other income 262 264 �  �  �  
Interest (expense) income, net (1,049) (865) (487) 757 1,639
Foreign currency gains (losses), net (398) (234) 76 (2,638) (346) 

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes and noncontrolling
interest (11,411) (10,713) (16,111) (9,734) (3,179) 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 1,441 345 1,549 (752) (113) 

Loss from continuing operations (9,970) (10,368) (14,562) (10,486) (3,292) 
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes 0 220 383 376 1,371

Consolidated net loss (9,970) (10,148) (14,179) (10,110) (1,921) 
Less: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest 468 630 �  �  �  

Net loss attributable to Identive Group, Inc. $ (9,502) $ (9,518) $ (14,179) $ (10,110) $ (1,921) 

Basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to Identive Group Inc.:
Loss from continuing operations $ (0.18) $ (0.23) $ (0.66) $ (0.66) $ (0.21) 
Income from discontinued operations $ �  $ 0.01 $ 0.02 $ 0.02 $ 0.09
Net loss $ (0.18) $ (0.22) $ (0.64) $ (0.64) $ (0.12) 
Weighted average shares used to compute basic and diluted loss per share 53,748 42,722 22,047 15,743 15,725
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December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,239 $ 10,799 $ 4,836 $ 20,550 $ 32,444
Working capital(1) 16,744 9,305 4,114 23,931 34,027
Total assets 144,111 125,985 64,571 41,138 48,564
Long-term earn-out liability 5,663 �  �  �  �  
Long-term liability to related party 7,303 7,615 7,899 �  �  
Total other long-term obligations(2) 1,818 2,248 456 184 200
Total equity 97,471 79,804 37,940 28,126 37,039

(1) Working capital is defined as current assets less current liabilities
(2) Other long-term obligations excludes long-term deferred tax liability
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following information should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in Item 8
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We also urge readers to review and consider our disclosures describing various factors that could affect
our business, including the disclosures under the headings �Risk Factors� in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Overview

Identive Group, Inc. (�Identive,� the �Company�,�we� and �us�) provides secure identification (�Secure ID�) solutions that combine the convenience of
radio frequency identification (�RFID�) with the security of smart card technology to enable people to easily and securely interact with and
manage digital devices, systems and data. Our offerings include hardware products, software, integrated systems and services to address the
global markets for credential management, physical and logical/cyber access control, integrated ID solutions and a host of NFC and
RFID-enabled applications for customers in the government, enterprise, consumer, education, healthcare and transportation sectors. Our growth
model is principally based on strong technology-driven organic growth, supported by disciplined acquisitive expansion. Our common stock is
listed on the NASDAQ Global Market in the U.S. under the symbol �INVE� and the Frankfurt Stock Exchange in Germany under the symbol
�INV.�

We operate in two segments, �Identity Management Solutions & Services� (�Identity Management�) and �Identification Products & Components� (�ID
Products�):

� In our Identity Management segment we design, supply and manage solutions, systems and services that enable the secure
management of credentials in diverse markets. These credentials are used for the identification of people and the granting of rights
and privileges based on defined security policies. Our Identity Management offerings include integrated physical and logical (i.e.,
PC, network or cyber) access systems, integrated ID solutions, cashless payment solutions and cloud-based credential management
systems, all of which are designed to enable organizations to enhance security and better meet compliance and regulatory
requirements while providing the benefits of ease of use and convenience. We sell our Identity Management solutions under our
Hirsch Identive, idOnDemand and Multicard brands, as well as additional country or market specific brands. Our Identity
Management end customers operate in the government, education, enterprise and commercial markets and can be found in multiple
vertical market segments including healthcare, banking, industrial, retail and critical infrastructure.

� In our ID Products segment we design and manufacture both standard and highly specialized RFID and smart card technology-based
products and components, including NFC products and components, that are used in the government, enterprise and consumer
markets for a number of identity-based and related applications, including logical access, physical access, eHealth, eGovernment,
citizen ID, mobile payments, loyalty schemes, and transportation and event ticketing. The ID Products segment includes the results
of our ID Infrastructure and Transponder business units. Through our ID Infrastructure business unit, we design and manufacture
readers and terminals based on both contact and contactless smart card technology. Through our Transponder business unit, we
design and manufacture RFID inlays as well as inlay-based RFID tags, labels, stickers and cards. Our ID Infrastructure and
Transponder products are primarily sold under the Identive brand.

Each of the business units within Identive conducts its own sales and marketing activities in the markets in which it competes, primarily utilizing
its own sales and marketing organization to solicit prospective channel partners and customers, provide technical advice and support with respect
to products, systems and services, and manage relationships with customers, distributors and OEMs. Increasingly, we also leverage common
resources between business units to optimize our sales and marketing efforts across multiple regions and market opportunities. The majority of
our sales are made through indirect sales channels that may include dealers, systems integrators, value added resellers, resellers or Internet sales.
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Our corporate headquarters are located in Santa Ana, California and our European and operational headquarters are located in Ismaning,
Germany. We maintain facilities in Chennai, India for research and development and in Australia, Canada, Germany, Hong Kong, Japan, the
Netherlands, Singapore, Switzerland and the U.S. for individual business unit operations and sales. The Company was founded in 1990 in
Munich, Germany and incorporated in 1996 under the laws of the State of Delaware.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an on-going basis, management evaluates its estimates and
judgments, including those related to product returns, customer incentives, bad debts, inventories, asset impairment, deferred tax assets, accrued
warranty reserves, restructuring costs, contingencies and litigation. Management bases its estimates and judgments on historical experience and
on various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates
under different assumptions or conditions.

Management believes the following critical accounting policies, among others, contain our more significant judgments and estimates used in the
preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

� Revenue is recognized when all of the following criteria have been met:

� Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists. We generally rely upon sales contracts or agreements, and customer purchase
orders to determine the existence of an arrangement.

� Delivery has occurred. We use shipping terms and related documents, or written evidence of customer acceptance, when
applicable, to verify delivery or performance.

� Sales price is fixed or determinable. We assess whether the sales price is fixed or determinable based on the payment terms
and whether the sales price is subject to refund or adjustment.

� Collectability is reasonably assured. We assess collectability based on creditworthiness of customers as determined by our
credit checks and their payment histories. We record accounts receivable net of allowance for doubtful accounts, estimated
customer returns, and pricing credits.

In 2011, we adopted the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (�ASU�) No. 2009-13, Revenue Recognition (Topic 605) �
Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements (�ASU 2009-13�). ASU 2009-13 changes the requirements for establishing separate units of
accounting in a multiple element arrangement and eliminates the residual method of allocation and requires the allocation of arrangement
consideration to each deliverable to be based on the relative selling price. The relative selling price method allocates any discount in the
arrangement proportionately to each deliverable on the basis of the deliverable�s estimated fair value. Concurrently with issuing ASU 2009-13,
the FASB also issued ASU No. 2009-14, Software (Topic 985) � Certain Revenue Arrangements That Include Software Elements (�ASU 2009-14�)
which amends the scope of software revenue guidance in Accounting Standards Codification (�ASC�) Subtopic 985-605, Software-Revenue
Recognition (�ASC 985-605�), to exclude tangible products containing software and non-software components that function together to deliver
the product�s essential functionality. ASU 2009-14 provides that tangible products containing software components and non-software
components, that function together to deliver the tangible product�s essential functionality, are no longer within the scope of the software revenue
guidance in ASC 985-605 and should follow the guidance in ASU 2009-13 for multiple-element arrangements. All non-essential and standalone
software components will continue to be accounted for under the guidance of ASC 985-605.
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ASU 2009-13 and ASU 2009-14 are effective prospectively for revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years
beginning on or after June 15, 2010. We prospectively adopted the provisions of ASU 2009-13 and ASU 2009-14 effective January 1, 2011. We
have assessed the effects of ASU 2009-13 and ASU 2009-14 and have concluded that the adoption of these standards had no material impact on
our condensed consolidated results of operations and financial position for the year ended December 31, 2011. This was because the Company�s
determination of separate units of accounting in a multiple element arrangement under the previous standard (ASC 605-25is not impacted by
ASU 2009-13. ASU 2009-13 generally does not change the determination of units of accounting for our revenue arrangements. Our revenue is
derived primarily from sales of hardware products, and to a lesser extent, from the license of proprietary software products and software
components in revenue arrangements that are considered standalone. As a result, ASU 2009-14 did not have any impact during the year ended
December 31, 2011 and revenues from such software products will continue to be recognized under the guidance of ASC 985-605. We cannot
reasonably estimate the effect of adopting these standards on future financial periods as the impact will vary depending on the nature and volume
of new or materially modified deals in any given period.

ASU 2009-13 establishes a selling price hierarchy for determining the selling price of a deliverable in revenue arrangements. The revenue is
generated from sales to direct end-users and to distributors. When a sales arrangement contains multiple elements and software and non-software
components function together to deliver the tangible products� essential functionality, we allocate revenue to each element based on a selling
price hierarchy. The selling price for a deliverable is based on its vendor-specific objective evidence (�VSOE�) if available, third-party evidence
(�TPE�) if VSOE is not available, or estimated selling price (�ESP�) if neither VSOE nor TPE is available. We then recognize revenue on each
deliverable in accordance with our policies for product and service revenue recognition. VSOE of selling price is based on the price charged
when the element is sold separately. TPE of selling price is established by evaluating largely interchangeable competitor products or services in
stand-alone sales to similarly situated customers. The best estimate of selling price is established considering multiple factors, including, but not
limited to, pricing practices in different geographies and through different sales channels, gross margin objectives, internal costs, competitor
pricing strategies and industry technology lifecycles. Some of our products contain a significant element of proprietary technology and our
solutions offer substantially different features and functionality; as a result, the comparable pricing of products with similar functionality
typically cannot be obtained. Additionally, as we are unable to reliably determine what competitors products� selling prices are on a stand-alone
basis, typically we are not able to determine TPE for such products. Therefore ESP is used for such products in the selling price hierarchy for
allocating the total arrangement consideration.

We evaluate each deliverable in an arrangement to determine whether it represents a separate unit of accounting in accordance with the
provisions of ASU 2009-13. Certain sales arrangements of our hardware products are bundled with our professional services and maintenance
contracts, and in some cases with our software products. Professional services include security system integration, system migration, and
database conversion services, among others. In such multiple element arrangements, revenue is allocated to each separate unit of accounting for
each of the non-software deliverables and to the software deliverables using the relative selling prices of each of the deliverables in the
arrangement based on the aforementioned selling price hierarchy. Allocation of the consideration is determined at arrangement inception on the
basis of each unit�s relative selling price. We account for software sales in accordance with ASC 985-605 and hardware sales in accordance with
ASU 2009-13, when all the revenue recognition criteria noted above have been met. The revenue from professional services contracts is
recognized upon completion of such services and the revenue from maintenance contracts is deferred and amortized ratably over the period of
the maintenance contracts. If the professional services project includes independent milestones, revenue is recognized as milestones are met and
upon acceptance from the customer.
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� We typically plan our production and inventory levels based on internal forecasts of customer demand, which are highly
unpredictable and can fluctuate substantially. We regularly review inventory quantities on hand and record an estimated provision for
excess inventory, technical obsolescence and inability to sell based primarily on our historical sales and expectations for future use.
Actual demand and market conditions may be different from those projected by our management. This could have a material effect
on our operating results and financial position. If we were to make different judgments or utilize different estimates, the amount and
timing of our write-down of inventories could be materially different. Once we have written down inventory below cost, we do not
subsequently write it up.

� In accordance with ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes (�ASC 740�), we are required to make certain judgments and estimates in
determining income tax expense for financial statement purposes. Significant changes to these estimates may result in an increase or
decrease to our tax provision in a subsequent period. The calculation of our tax liabilities requires dealing with uncertainties in the
application of complex tax regulations. ASC 740 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. It is inherently difficult and
subjective to estimate such amounts. We reevaluate such uncertain tax positions on a quarterly basis based on factors such as, but not
limited to, changes in tax laws, issues settled under audit and changes in facts or circumstances. Such changes in recognition or
measurement might result in the recognition of a tax benefit or an additional charge to the tax provision in the period.

The carrying value of our net deferred tax assets reflects that we have been unable to generate sufficient taxable income in certain tax
jurisdictions. A valuation allowance is provided for deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not these items will either expire before we are
able to realize their benefit, or that future deductibility is uncertain. Management evaluates the realizability of the deferred tax assets quarterly.
The deferred tax assets are still available for us to use in the future to offset taxable income, which would result in the recognition of a tax
benefit and a reduction in our effective tax rate. Actual operating results and the underlying amount and category of income in future years could
render our current assumptions, judgments and estimates of the realizability of deferred tax assets inaccurate, which could have a material
impact on our financial position or results of operations.

� Goodwill � Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net tangible and identifiable intangible
assets acquired in a business combination. Goodwill is not subject to amortization but is subject to annual assessment, at a minimum,
for impairment in accordance with ASC Topic 350, Intangibles � Goodwill and Other (�ASC 350�). We evaluate goodwill, at a
minimum, on an annual basis and whenever an event occurs or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair
value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. Impairment of goodwill is tested at the reporting unit level by comparing the
reporting unit�s carrying value, including goodwill, to the fair value of the reporting unit. If the carrying value of the reporting unit
exceeds the fair value, goodwill may be impaired and a second step is performed to measure the amount of the impairment loss, if
any. Under this second step, the implied goodwill value is determined, in the same manner as the amount of goodwill recognized in a
business combination, to assess level of goodwill impairment, if any.

The reporting units are identified in accordance with ASC 350-20-35-33 through 35-46. Prior to January 1, 2011, our reporting units were the
Hirsch and Multicard businesses in the Identity Management reporting segment, and the SCM (subsequently renamed �ID Infrastructure�), Tagstar
(including Smartag), ACiG and Syscan businesses in the ID Products reporting segment. Following its acquisition, we began to reallocate
Smartag�s internal resources to our existing reporting units. During the first quarter of 2011, we implemented a new management structure to
unify our sourcing, production and sales activities for our RFID components business. As a result, we combined the Tagstar (including Smartag)
, ACiG and Syscan reporting units into a new reporting unit called �Transponder� and, in accordance with ASC 350-20-35-45, the goodwill
assigned to the Tagstar (including Smartag), ACiG, and Syscan reporting units was reassigned to the Transponder reporting
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unit. As discussed in Note 2 below, we recorded goodwill of $7.8 million in connection with our acquisition of idOnDemand and $2.7 million in
connection with our acquisition of polyright during the year ended December 31, 2011. The goodwill acquired as a result of the acquisition of
idOnDemand was assigned to idOnDemand, a newly created reporting unit, which was included in the Identity Management reporting segment.
The goodwill acquired as a result of the acquisition of polyright was assigned to the Multicard reporting unit. The recorded goodwill in
connection with the acquisition of polyright is designated in currency other than United States Dollars and is valued at $2.4 million as of
December 31, 2011 for the change in foreign exchange rates from the acquisition date. As of December 31, 2011, of the total goodwill of $58.4
million, $21.9 million was allocated to the Hirsch reporting unit, $19.1 million to Multicard, $7.8 million to idOnDemand, $1.2 million to ID
Infrastructure, $8.4 million to the Transponder reporting unit.

We determine the fair value of the reporting units using the income, or discounted cash flows, approach (�DCF model�) and verify the
reasonableness of such fair value calculations of the reporting units using the market approach, which utilizes comparable companies� data. The
completion of the DCF model requires that we make a number of significant assumptions to produce an estimate of future cash flows. These
assumptions include, but are not limited to, projections of future revenue, gross profit rates, working capital requirements, and discount rates. In
determining an appropriate discount rate for each reporting unit we make assumptions about the estimated cost of capital and relevant risks, as
appropriate. The projections that we use in our DCF model are updated annually and will change over time based on the historical performance
and changing business conditions for each of our reporting units. The determination of whether goodwill is impaired involves a significant level
of judgment in these assumptions, and changes in our business strategy, government regulations, or economic or market conditions could
significantly impact these judgments. The Company´s annual impairment test as of December 1, 2011 indicated that for the Hirsch, ID
Infrastructure, and IdOnDemand reporting units the estimated fair value substantially exceeded the carrying value. The estimated fair value of
the Multicard and Transponder reporting units exceeded their carrying value by approximately 14% and 12% respectively. The Company
performed a sensitivity analysis on the DCF models used for the Mulitcard and Transponder reporting units which indicated that the discount
rates used could be increased by 200 basis and not result in an estimated fair value that was less than the carrying value. Additionally, as part of
the annual goodwill impairment test we compared our total market capitalization with the aggregate estimated fair value of our reporting units to
ensure significant differences are understood. As of the December 1, 2011 annual impairment test the aggregate fair value of the reporting units
as determined by management exceeded the Company´s market capitalization by an amount that in the management´s judgment reflects a
reasonable control premium.

� We evaluate our long-lived assets and certain identifiable amortizable intangible assets for impairment in accordance with ASC
Topic 360, Property, Plant and Equipment (�ASC 360�) whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of such assets or intangibles may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a
comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future net undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by an asset. If such
assets are considered to be impaired (i.e., if the sum of its estimated future undiscounted cash flows used to test for recoverability is
less than its carrying value), the impairment loss to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the
assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets. For intangible assets, where we have determined that these have an indefinite useful life,
no amortization is recognized until its useful life is determined to be no longer indefinite. We evaluate indefinite useful life
intangible assets for impairment at a minimum on an annual basis and whenever events and changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable in accordance with ASC 350. We perform the impairment test of the
indefinite-lived intangible assets by calculating the fair value of such intangible assets and comparing the fair value of the intangible
assets with the carrying amount. If the carrying amount of such intangible assets exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is
recognized in an amount equal to that excess.
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� We recognize stock-based compensation expense for all share-based payment awards in accordance with ASC Topic 718,
Compensation � Stock Compensation (�ASC 718�). Stock-based compensation expense for expected-to-vest awards is valued under the
single-option approach and amortized on a straight-line basis, net of estimated forfeitures. We utilize the Black-Scholes-Merton
option-pricing model in order to determine the fair value of stock-based awards. The Black-Scholes-Merton model requires various
highly subjective assumptions including volatility, expected option life, and risk-free interest rate. The assumptions used in
calculating the fair value of share-based payment awards represent management�s best estimates. These estimates involve inherent
uncertainties and the application of management�s judgment. If factors change and we use different assumptions, our stock-based
compensation expense could be materially different in the future. In addition, we are required to estimate the expected forfeiture rate
and recognize expense only for those expected-to-vest shares. If our actual forfeiture rate is materially different from our estimate,
our recorded stock-based compensation expense could be different.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-08, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other, ASC Topic 350, Testing for Impairment (�ASU
2011-08�). ASU 2011-08 amends the guidance in ASC 350-20, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other-Goodwill. The intent of this ASU is to simplify
how entities, both public and non-public, test goodwill for impairment by allowing an entity to use a qualitative approach to test goodwill for
impairment. The amendments in the ASU permit an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that
the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount (Step zero) as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the
two-step goodwill impairment test described in ASC 350-20. This guidance is effective for annual and interim tests performed in fiscal years
beginning on or after December 15, 2011. Early adoption is permitted. We adopted the provisions of ASU 2011-08 effective December 1, 2011
at the time of our annual goodwill impairment test, however we bypassed the qualitative assessment for all reporting units for our 2011 annual
goodwill impairment test and proceeded directly to performing the first step of the two-step goodwill impairment test. We will evaluate whether
we will perform the qualitative assessment in fiscal year 2012.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, Comprehensive Income, ASC Topic 220, Presentation of Comprehensive Income (�ASU
2011-05�), to require an entity to present the total of comprehensive income, the components of net income, and the components of other
comprehensive income either in a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements. ASU
2011-05 eliminates the option to present the components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of equity.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-12, Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifications
of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05 (�ASU 2011-12�). ASU 2011-12
indefinitely defers certain provisions of ASU 2011-05, including the requirement to present reclassification adjustments out of accumulated
other comprehensive income by component in both the statement in which net income is presented and the statement in which other
comprehensive income is presented. ASU 2011-12 does not change the primary provisions of ASU 2011-05, which eliminate the option to
present the components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of equity. Both ASU 2011-12 and ASU 2011-05 are effective in
the first quarter of fiscal 2012 and should be applied retrospectively. We are currently evaluating the impact of our pending adoption of ASU
2011-05 on our consolidated financial statements but do not believe that it will have an impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in
U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards, ASU Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement (�ASU 2011-04�), to provide a consistent
definition of fair value and ensure that the fair value measurement and disclosure requirements are similar between U.S. GAAP and
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International Financial Reporting Standards. ASU 2011-04 changes certain fair value measurement principles and enhances the disclosure
requirements particularly for Level 3 fair value measurements. ASU 2011-04 is effective in the first quarter of fiscal 2012. Early application by
public companies is not permitted. Our adoption of ASU 2011-04 will not have an impact on our consolidated results of operations or financial
condition.

Recent Acquisitions

On January 30, 2012, through our Bluehill ID AG subsidiary we acquired approximately 58.8% of the outstanding shares of payment solution
AG, a privately-held German company that provides cashless payment solutions for stadiums, arenas and other event venues (�payment solution�).
In exchange for the shares of payment solution, we issued an aggregate of 1,357,758 shares of our common stock, which had an approximate
value of �2.35 million (or approximately $3.03 million), to 18 selling shareholders of payment solution. The shares have not been, and will not
be, registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933 and are subject to applicable restrictions on transfer. payment solution�s operating results will
be included in our consolidated results from the date of acquisition. Within the next few months, payment solution is expected to be integrated
into the operations of our existing Multicard business unit.

On July 18, 2011, through our Multicard AG subsidiary we acquired polyright SA, a Swiss provider of identity management platforms and
open-ended rights and services management solutions for higher education, healthcare and industry (�polyright�). The acquisition was made using
a combination of cash and payment of outstanding indebtedness in the aggregate amount of CHF 2.55 million (or approximately $3.1 million).
The sellers included Securitas AG, Kudelski SA and members of polyright�s management team. The sellers may receive aggregate potential
earn-out payments payable in shares of our common stock, over the 30-month period following the closing of the acquisition, subject to
achievement of specific financial and sales performance targets over such period. The number of shares, if any, issued under the earn-out will be
based on the average share price during the month preceding the date of announcement of our annual results, and will be subject to a two-year
lockup. polyright�s operating results have been included in our consolidated results since the date of acquisition. Following the acquisition,
polyright was integrated into the operations of our existing Multicard business unit.

On May 2, 2011, we acquired 95.8% of the shares of idOnDemand, Inc., a privately-held provider of identity management services based in
Pleasanton, California (�idOnDemand�). The acquisition was pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement dated April 29, 2011, under which we
paid the selling shareholders of idOnDemand initial consideration at closing of approximately $2.4 million in cash and 995,675 shares of our
common stock. In addition, the selling shareholders may receive aggregate potential earn-out payments payable in shares of our common stock
subject to achievement of specific financial and sales performance targets over a period of three years and eight months from the closing date of
the acquisition. Any shares issued in connection with the earn-out will be subject to a 12-month lock-up from date of issuance. Shares issued as
consideration to the selling shareholders at closing are subject to a three-year lock-up from the closing date of the acquisition. Of the total initial
share consideration paid to the selling shareholders, 407,289 shares were released from lock-up six months after the closing date. Beginning on
the second anniversary of the closing date, the remaining shares will be released from the lock-up in equal amounts on a monthly basis until the
expiration of the lock-up period. idOnDemand�s operating results have been included in our consolidated results since the date of acquisition. On
December 22, 2011, we entered into an agreement to purchase the remaining outstanding shares of idOnDemand from ActivIdentity Corporation
for the sum of $500,000, pursuant to an agreement among Identive, ActivIdentity Corporation and idOnDemand. Following the completion of
this share purchase on January 9, 2012, idOnDemand became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Identive.

On November 19, 2010, we acquired FCI Smartag Pte. Ltd. (�Smartag�), a Singapore-based manufacturer of high frequency (�HF�) and ultra high
frequency (�UHF�) radio frequency identification (�RFID�) inlays and inlay-based solutions and a subsidiary of FCI Asia Pte. Ltd., FCI SA and FCI
Connectors Singapore Pte. Ltd. (collectively, �FCI�). The acquisition was pursuant to a Share Purchase Agreement dated October 29, 2010, under
which we paid FCI approximately $3.2 million, consisting of a one-time payment at the close of the
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transaction of approximately $1.0 million and a debt note for approximately $2.2 million. The debt note carries an interest rate of 6% per year
and is payable within 30 months from the closing date. Smartag�s operating results have been included in our consolidated results since the date
of acquisition. Following the acquisition, Smartag was integrated into the operations of our Transponder business unit.

On April 14, 2010, we acquired RockWest Technology Group LLC, a privately-held provider of identification and security solutions based in
Denver, Colorado (�RockWest�), pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement dated March 30, 2010 and amended on April 9, 2010, under which we
issued an aggregate of 2.6 million shares of our common stock. RockWest�s operating results have been included in our consolidated results since
the date of acquisition. Following the acquisition, RockWest was integrated into the Company�s Multicard business and is doing business as
Multicard U.S.

On January 4, 2010, we acquired Bluehill ID, pursuant to the Business Combination Agreement dated as of September 20, 2009, as amended,
under which we made an offer to the Bluehill ID shareholders to acquire all of the Bluehill ID shares and issued 0.52 new shares of Identive
common stock for every one share of Bluehill ID tendered. A total of 29,422,714, or approximately 92% of Bluehill ID shares outstanding were
tendered in the offer and exchanged for a total of 15,299,797 new shares of Identive common stock. Bluehill ID�s operating results have been
included in our consolidated results since the date of acquisition. Following the acquisition, Bluehill ID�s ACiG Technology, Syscan ID and
TagStar Systems businesses were integrated into what is now our Transponder business unit and Bluehill ID�s multi-location Multicard
businesses became our Multicard business unit.

Recent Trends and Strategies for Growth

Identive is focused on building the world�s signature company in Secure ID by providing products, systems and services that are interoperable,
easy to integrate and easy to use. Our goal is to build a lasting business of scale and technology to both enable and capitalize on the growth of
the security and RFID industries. Our growth strategy is based both on technology-driven organic growth and disciplined acquisitive activity.
We pursue investments and acquisitions with a focus on expanding our business, reinforcing our market position in targeted areas and fully
leveraging our strengths and opportunities to enter new markets, as well as driving consolidation in the rapidly growing, yet fragmented markets
for identification-based technologies.

During 2011, in order to enhance our ability to address our customers and markets on a global basis, we made changes to our organizational
structure and consolidated various product brands under a single market brand, Identive. During the year we combined the operations of TagStar,
Smartag, ACiG and Syscan into a single Transponder business unit, with the goal of improving the efficiency and global capabilities of our
sourcing, production and sales activities among our RFID component businesses. In the fourth quarter of 2011 we combined our SCM
Microsystems and Arygon businesses into a new ID Infrastructure business unit, with unified sourcing, production and sales activities for our
reader, terminal and other ID Infrastructure products. The Transponder and ID Infrastructure business units comprise our ID Products segment,
and the majority of products in our ID Products segment are now sold under the Identive brand. Also during the fourth quarter of 2011, our
Hirsch Electronics business unit adopted the name Hirsch Identive.

As part of our organic growth strategy, we are focused on enhancing our ability to address emerging growth markets and extending our product
and solutions offerings through ongoing research and development programs. Additionally, to meet increasing customer demand for RFID inlays
and finished transponder products such as tags, labels and cards, during the second half of 2011, we added new manufacturing and production
equipment and lines at our facilities in Germany and Singapore, which expanded our production capacity for these products by nearly 80%. With
the rise of market activity and expectation around NFC technology, in mid-2011 we created a new dedicated group focused on NFC and
mobility applications, which is responsible for guiding and coordinating our NFC product and market strategies as well as launching new
software-based NFC services. Additionally, to meet the growing demand for �cloud based� credential issuance and management, we are investing
in the development of �Software as a Service� or �SaaS� solutions and capabilities, both in our idOnDemand business unit and in the NFC market.
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Trends in our Business

Sales Trends

Our sales increased 21% to $102.7 million in 2011 compared with 2010, as a result of both organic growth and added revenue from acquisitions.
Incremental revenue from the acquired Multicard U.S., Smartag, idOnDemand and polyright businesses was approximately $10.6 million, while
revenue from our existing business was $92.1 million in 2011, reflecting an overall organic growth rate of 8%. Outside the U.S. government
sector, where we experienced a decline in sales activity in 2011 due to ongoing budget uncertainties and project delays, we achieved an organic
growth rate of 17%. Sales growth of 105% in fiscal 2010 to $84.8 million included $39.4 million of incremental revenue from acquisitions and
organic growth of 10%.

Sales in the Americas. Sales in the Americas were $43.8 million in 2011, accounting for 43% of total revenue and down 6% compared with
$46.8 million in 2010. Sales of products and systems for employee ID programs within various U.S. government agencies comprise a significant
proportion of our revenues in the Americas region, which also includes Canada and Latin America. In general, sales in the Americas have been
negatively impacted by weakness in government spending at the federal, state and local levels throughout 2011.

In our Hirsch Identive business unit, revenue decreased by approximately 10% in 2011 compared with 2010 as a result of budget and project
delays in the deployment of enterprise security systems by U.S. government agencies. A stronger focus on delivering professional services and
on pursuing sales in the commercial sector and in other non-federal markets partly offset lower sales from federal government customers. As a
general trend, U.S. federal agencies continue to be subject to security improvement mandates under programs such as Homeland Security
Presidential Directive-12 (�HSPD-12�) and reiterated in memoranda from the Office of Management and Budget (�OMB M-11-11�). We believe
that our Hirsch Identive systems remain among the most attractive offerings in the market to help agencies move towards compliance with
federal directives and standards. However, budget and funding constraints will likely continue to impact our sales with certain agencies. To
offset this general slowdown in government spending, in 2012 we are expanding our focus on the utility and enterprise sectors as well as on
further developing our opportunities in international markets.

Sales in our Multicard U.S. business unit reflected continued demand for credential issuance and identity solutions from the education and
healthcare markets, as well as local and state governments during 2011. However, weaker government spending resulted in a decline in sales
levels in the fourth quarter of 2011. In our ID Infrastructure business unit, revenue in the Americas decreased by approximately 20% in 2011
compared with 2010, primarily as a result of reduced spending in the U.S. government sector, which resulted in fewer orders for our smart card
reader technology. With the exception of an increase in sales in the second quarter of 2011 related to a large order for mass transit applications,
Transponder revenue in the Americas remained stable throughout the year and reflected demand for transit ticketing, library labels and other
RFID applications, including NFC.

Sales in Europe and the Middle East. Sales in Europe and the Middle East were $42.2 million in 2011, accounting for 41% of total revenue and
up 41% compared with $29.8 million in 2010. The main drivers of this increase were sales of secure smart card readers and software related to
the German national ID program; sales of eHealth terminals for the German electronic healthcard program; increased sales of core RFID
components; and in the second half of the year, incremental revenue from our acquired polyright business (now part of Multicard). During 2010,
our ID Infrastructure business unit and Multicard were each selected to supply secure card readers, and in the case of Multicard, application
software, for the German government�s implementation of a new electronic citizen ID card, and received customer orders to be fulfilled over
several quarters. In 2011, shipments for the German electronic ID program accounted for approximately $7.6 million of revenue. In the fourth
quarter of 2011, we fulfilled the final orders for this program, which generated approximately $14.5 million in aggregated revenue over the past
16 months. Sales demand for our Transponder products in Europe has remained strong and stable in each of the last several quarters, driven by
demand for RFID inlays and other products for a variety of consumer ID applications, including ticketing for transit systems, ski resorts and
theme parks, and secure media tracking for libraries.
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Sales in Asia/Pacific. Sales in the Asia/Pacific region were $16.8 million in 2011, accounting for 16% of total revenue and up 104% compared
with $8.2 million in 2010. The increase was primarily the result of incremental revenue from the acquired Smartag transponder business, which
included orders for more than two million NFC tags for a mobile handset manufacturer; increased demand for Multicard credential management
and card payment solutions in Australia; and the doubling of sales levels in Japan as a result of orders for smart card readers to support
telecommunications applications. These higher sales were somewhat offset by weaker spending in the U.S. government market, which resulted
in lower demand for smart card reader chipsets from keyboard manufacturers in China.

Looking forward, we believe demand will continue to increase across our markets for products, systems and solutions that address emerging
applications such as converged access control, NFC tag use, mobile payment schemes and ID programs for citizens, consumers and employees.
The trends towards the convergence of logical and physical access and the marriage of contactless payment technology with mobile devices are
beginning to be realized and to drive new activity from governments, enterprises and consumer applications around the world. We believe that
our unique portfolio of technology, products, solutions, systems and experience position Identive to address these emergent trends and benefit
from their growth.

Seasonality and Other Factors. In our business overall, we may experience significant variations in demand for our products quarter to quarter,
and overall we typically experience a stronger demand cycle in the second half of our fiscal year. Sales of our Hirsch Identive physical access
control systems are subject to U.S. government budget cycles and are generally highest in the third quarter of each year. Sales of our ID
Infrastructure smart card readers and chips for government programs are impacted by testing and compliance schedules of government bodies as
well as roll-out schedules for application deployments, both of which contribute to variability in demand from quarter to quarter. Further, sales
of these products typically are subject to seasonality based on governmental budget cycles, with lowest sales in the first half, and in particular
the first quarter of the year, and highest sales in the second half of each year. In our Multicard business unit, a variety of localized market factors
including government budget cycles and retail demand cycles typically result in stronger demand in the second half of the year. In general, sales
of our global Transponder products also are marginally stronger in the second half of the year. Seasonality in 2011 was less pronounced due to
relatively weaker sales to the U.S. government sector.

Operating Expense Trends

Our base operating expenses (research and development, sales and marketing and general and administrative) increased 13% in 2011 compared
with 2010, primarily as a result of the inclusion of additional expenses from the acquired Multicard U.S., Smartag, idOnDemand and polyright
businesses, which also reflect strategic investment in market areas that we feel hold significant opportunity for Identive.

Over the past several quarters, we have invested in the development of new technology, products and solutions and in additional sales resources
to enhance our ability to address additional areas of the secure identification market. In our Hirsch Identive business unit, we continue to invest
to develop Hirsch Identive�s next generation product offering of software, controllers and other products. In our idOnDemand business unit, we
are investing in SaaS-based trusted identity solutions and capabilities for �cloud based� credential issuance and management. In our ID
Infrastructure business unit, we are focused on the development of new contactless readers, tokens and modules, new physical access readers to
enable converged physical and logical/cyber access, and on extending our contactless platforms, in particular to address the growing demand for
NFC-enabled devices. In our Transponder business unit, we continue to invest in enhancing and broadening our inlay designs and technology in
the areas of NFC, payment, tag on metal, document management, and library and pharmaceutical tracking applications. In our Multicard
business unit we continue to make investments to enhance our cashless payment, smart city and ID software systems. Across our business we
have a number of new patent applications in process. We attempt to balance our investments in new technologies, products and services with
careful management of our development resources so that our increased development activities do not result in unexpected or significant
changes in our overall spending on research and development.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth our statements of operations as a percentage of net revenue for the periods indicated:

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009

Net revenue 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 
Cost of revenue 58.3 56.0 53.2

Gross profit 41.7 44.0 46.8

Operating expenses:
Research and development 6.8 5.6 10.3
Selling and marketing 22.9 24.0 31.2
General and administrative 21.9 25.7 39.8
Impairment of intangibles �  �  1.6
Restructuring �  0.4 �  
Gain on sale of assets �  �  (3.4) 

Total operating expenses 51.6 55.7 79.5

Loss from operations (9.9) (11.7) (32.7) 
Loss and impairment on equity investments �  �  (5.4) 
Other income 0.2 0.3 �  
Interest expense, net (1.0) (1.0) (1.2) 
Foreign currency gains (losses), net (0.4) (0.3) 0.2

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes and non-controlling
interest (11.1) (12.7) (39.1) 
Benefit for income taxes 1.4 0.4 3.8

Loss from continuing operations (9.7) (12.3) (35.3) 
Gain from discontinued operations, net of income taxes �  0.3 0.9

Consolidated net loss (9.7) (12.0) (34.4) 
Less: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest 0.5 0.7 �  

Net loss attributable to Identive Group, Inc. (9.2)% (11.3)% (34.4)% 

The comparability of our operating results in the year ended December 31, 2011 with the year ended December 31, 2010 is impacted by our
acquisitions of RockWest (now doing business as Multicard U.S.) on April 14, 2010, Smartag on November 19, 2010, idOnDemand on May 2,
2011 and polyright on July 18, 2011. Results of the Multicard U.S., Smartag, idOnDemand and polyright businesses have been included since
their respective acquisition dates.

Revenue

Summary information by business segment for the year ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is shown below:

Fiscal
2011

% Change

2011

Fiscal
2010

% Change

2010

Fiscal
2009
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to 2010 to 2009
(In thousands)

Identity Management:
Revenues $ 56,474 19% $ 47,521 173% 17,408
Percentage of total revenues 55% 56% 42% 
ID Products:
Revenues $ 46,234 24% $ 37,322 56% $ 23,907
Percentage of total revenues 45% 44% 58% 

Total revenues $ 102,708 21% $ 84,843 105% $ 41,315
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Fiscal 2011 Revenue Compared with Fiscal 2010 Revenue

Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2011 was $102.7 million, an increase of 21% from $84.8 million in 2010. The increase in 2011
revenue compared with the prior year resulted both from the addition of $10.6 million of incremental revenue from our acquisitions, as well as
from organic growth of 9% from our existing business. Outside the U.S. government sector, where we experienced a decline in sales activity in
2011 due to ongoing budget uncertainties and project delays, we achieved an organic growth rate of 17%. Sales within our Identity Management
segment accounted for 55% of total revenue and sales within our ID Products segment accounted for 45% of revenue in 2011.

In our Identity Management segment we provide solutions and services that enable the secure management of credentials in diverse markets.
Our Identity Management segment includes the operations of our Hirsch Identive, idOnDemand and Multicard business units, which specialize
in the design and manufacturing of highly secured and integrated systems that can enhance security and better meet compliance and regulatory
requirements while providing users the benefits and convenience of simple and secure solutions. The majority of sales in our Identity
Management segment are made to customers in the government, education, enterprise and commercial markets and encompass vertical market
segments including healthcare, banking, industrial, retail and critical infrastructure. Currently, pricing pressure is not prevalent in our Identity
Management segment.

Revenue in the Identity Management segment was $56.5 million in 2011, an increase of 19% from $47.5 million in 2010. The increase primarily
was the result of $6.2 million of incremental revenue from our acquisitions, more than half of which came from nearly two quarters of sales
recognized for polyright (now part of Multicard). The remaining incremental revenue included four months of sales from RockWest (now doing
business as Multicard U.S.) and seven months of sales from idOnDemand. We also recorded organic growth of 6% in the Identity Management
segment in 2011, which resulted from higher sales from Multicard, partially offset by a significant reduction in sales of Hirsch Identive security
systems to the U.S. Government sector. Higher Multicard revenues in 2011 primarily resulted from significant orders for secure card readers and
software for the German electronic ID program, strong sales in Australia related to a government credential management program and a cashless
payment card solution for a large fuel retailer, and the inclusion of four months of incremental revenue from the acquisition of RockWest (now
doing business as Multicard U.S.). Organic growth of our non-U.S. government-related sales in the Identity Management segment was 17% in
2011.

In our ID Products segment we design and manufacture RFID products and components that are used for a number of identity-based and related
applications in the government, enterprise, transportation and financial markets. Our ID Products segment includes the results of our ID
Infrastructure business unit, which manufactures and sells smart card and NFC readers and terminals, and our Transponder business unit, which
manufactures and sells RFID inlays as well as inlay-based cards, tags, labels and stickers. The majority of sales in our ID Products segment are
made to original equipment manufacturers and system integrators. Sales in this segment are somewhat subject to pricing pressure, both for our
transponder products and in the market for our smart card reader technology, which has been shifting away from external readers and towards
lower-cost, embedded chip sets over the last several years.

Revenue in our ID Products segment was $46.2 million in 2011, an increase of 24% from $37.3 million in 2010. This increase was due both to
organic growth of 12% for our Transponder products and to $4.4 million of incremental revenue from our acquired Smartag business. Sales of
our Transponder products were driven by demand for a variety of applications, in particular transit, theme park and ski ticketing, as well as
orders for more than two million NFC tags for a mobile handset manufacturer. Sales in our ID Infrastructure business unit grew slightly in 2011
compared with the prior year, reflecting substantial orders of eHealth terminals for the German electronic health card program, strong demand
for employee ID, government and corporate programs in Europe and increased demand from a variety of markets in Asia, partially offset by
lower demand for PC/network access applications from the U.S. Government market as a result of budget uncertainties and project deferrals.
Organic growth of our non-U.S. government-related sales in the ID Products segment was 17% in 2011. Not reflected in the reported figures for
our ID Infrastructure business unit were intercompany shipments of secure card readers to Multicard for the German electronic ID program,
which totaled approximately $6.4 million in 2011.
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Fiscal 2010 Revenue Compared with Fiscal 2009 Revenue

Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2010 was $84.8 million, an increase of 105% from $41.3 million in 2009. The increase in 2010
revenue compared with the prior year was primarily the result of $39.4 million of incremental revenue from our acquisitions, as well as organic
growth of 10% from our existing business units. Sales within our Identity Management segment accounted for 56% of total revenue and sales
within our ID Products segment accounted for 44% of revenue in 2010.

Revenue in the Identity Management segment was $47.5 million in 2010, an increase of 173% from $17.4 million in 2009. The increase
primarily resulted from $26.9 million of incremental revenue from our acquisitions, which included four months of Hirsch revenue in 2010
(January through April) and all revenue recorded in 2010 from our Multicard business unit. The increase in Identity Management revenue also
resulted from organic growth of 15%, which was related to an increase in Hirsch�s sales for the eight-month period May through December 2010,
as compared with the same eight-month period of 2009. Hirsch sales in both 2010 and 2009 were driven by orders for access control products,
systems and services for U.S. government agency deployments. Sales in our Multicard business unit in 2010 were related to various RFID-based
identity management projects, which included cashless payment and contactless transport programs in the Netherlands, readers for the electronic
national ID program in Germany, employee ID and event management applications in Australia, and campus-ID and emergency management
programs in the U.S.

Revenue in our ID Products segment was $37.3 million in 2010, an increase of 56% from $23.9 million in 2009. The increase primarily was the
result of $12.5 million of incremental revenue from our acquired ACiG, Smartag, Syscan and TagStar businesses (now consolidated within our
Transponder business unit), as well as 7% organic growth in our SCM Microsystems business unit (now our ID Infrastructure business unit).
SCM�s sales growth in 2010 was primarily the result of revenue related to shipments of readers for the German electronic ID program in the
second half of the year and slight growth in sales in the U.S., offset by lower sales in Asia. Record sales of Transponder products in Europe in
the second half of the year also contributed to the revenue increase in our ID Products segment in 2010.

Gross Profit

The following table sets forth our gross profit and year-to-year change in gross profit by product segment for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009. The comparability of our operating results in 2011 versus prior years is impacted by various acquisitions as
stated above.

Fiscal
2011

% Change

2011
to 2010

Fiscal
2010

% Change

2010
to 2009

Fiscal
2009

(In thousands)
Identity Management:
Revenues $ 56,474 $ 47,521 $ 17,408
Gross profit 25,556 2% 25,013 145% 10,222
Gross profit % 45% 53% 59% 
ID Products:
Revenues $ 46,234 $ 37,322 $ 23,907
Gross profit 17,246 40% 12,345 35% 9,122
Gross profit % 37% 33% 38% 

Total
Revenues $ 102,708 $ 84,843 $ 41,315
Gross profit 42,802 15% 37,358 93% 19,344
Gross profit % 42% 44% 47% 
Gross profit for 2011 was $42.8 million, or 42% of revenue. By product segment, gross profit margin for our Identity Management segment was
45% and gross profit margin for our ID Product segment was 37% of
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revenue in 2011. Gross profit margin in our Identity Management segment in 2011 was negatively affected by lower sales in our Hirsch Identive
business unit due to budget uncertainty and project deferrals in the U.S. Government market, an unfavorable, lower margin product mix in our
Multicard business unit in Germany, and a slow sales ramp in our idOnDemand business unit. Gross profit in our ID Products segment in 2011
was affected by favorable product mix in our ID Infrastructure and Transponder business units, as well as improvement in overall average
selling price of Transponders due to the introduction of higher value NFC products for payment applications.

Gross profit for 2010 was $37.4 million, or 44% of revenue. By product segment, gross profit margin for our Identity Management segment was
53% and gross profit margin for our ID Products segment was 33% of revenue in 2010. During 2010, gross profit in the Identity Management
segment was positively impacted by stable margins from Hirsch and Multicard in the U.S., offset by unfavorable product mix in our Multicard
business unit in Europe in the first half of the year. Gross profit in our ID Products segment in 2010 was impacted by an unfavorable product
mix in our SCM Microsystems (now ID Infrastructure) business unit in the second half of the year, overall low margins in our Transponder
business unit, and a period of inefficiency related to the start up of a new RFID inlay product manufacturing line in the first quarter of 2010.

Gross profit for 2009 was $19.3 million, or 47% of revenue. During 2009, gross profit was positively impacted by the inclusion of sales of
higher-margin Hirsch products in the second, third and fourth quarters, offset by a $0.8 million write-off to inventory in the fourth quarter of
2009 related to terminals for the stalled German eHealth program. By product segment, gross profit margin for our Identity Management
segment was 59% and gross profit margin for our ID Product segment was 38% of revenue in 2009.

We expect there will be some variation in our gross profit from period to period, as our gross profit has been and will continue to be affected by
a variety of factors, including, without limitation, competition, the volume of sales in any given quarter, product configuration and mix, the
availability of new products, product enhancements, software and services, inventory write-downs and the cost and availability of components.

Research and Development

Fiscal
2011

% Change

2011
to 2010

Fiscal
2010

% Change

2010
to 2009

Fiscal
2009

(In thousands)
Expenses $ 7,025 49% $ 4,715 11% $ 4,253
Percentage of revenue 7% 6% 10% 
Research and development expenses consist primarily of employee compensation and fees for the development of hardware, software and
firmware products. We focus the bulk of our research and development activities on the development of products for new and emerging market
opportunities. Due to the timing of their respective acquisitions, the results of the Smartag, idOnDemand and polyright business units are not
included in research and development expenses for 2010. Additionally, only six months of expenses for polyright and eight months of expenses
for idOnDemand are included in 2011. There were no research and development expenses in the acquired Multicard U.S. business in any of the
periods presented.

Research and development expenses were $7.0 million in 2011, or 7% of revenue, up 49% from $4.7 million, or 6% of revenue in 2010. The
increase in research and development expenses in 2011 was primarily due to the addition of $1.5 million of expenses from the acquired Smartag,
idOnDemand and polyright businesses. Excluding the impact of these additional expenses, research and development expenses were 4% higher
in 2011 than in 2010 as a result of increased investment in core technology and new products and solutions for emerging markets. Key
investment areas included the development of �cloud based� credential issuance and management solutions in our idOnDemand business unit, next
generation software and controllers in our Hirsch Identive business unit, and new contactless, NFC and RFID products in our Transponder and
ID Infrastructure business units.
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Research and development expenses were $4.7 million in 2010, or 6% of revenue, up 11% from $4.3 million, or 10% of revenue in 2009. 2010
research and development expenses included approximately $1.8 million of additional expenses from businesses acquired during the year.
Excluding the impact of these additional expenses, research and development expenses were 33% lower in 2010 than in 2009 as a result of cost
reduction measures implemented during 2010, which included consolidation of the Company�s two technology development facilities in India
into one development center and associated headcount reductions, centralized monitoring of development activities across all our business areas,
and lower development expenses in our Hirsch Identive business unit for the development of Hirsch�s next generation of controllers. During
2009, our research and development activities focused on the development of contactless smart card readers, token and modules and a new
generation of advanced controllers for the Hirsch business unit.

We expect to modestly increase our investment in research and development as a percentage of overall revenue from 2011 levels in order to
address opportunities in new and existing growth markets.

Selling and Marketing

Fiscal
2011

% Change

2011
to 2010

Fiscal
2010

% Change

2010
to 2009

Fiscal
2009

(In thousands)
Expenses $ 23,563 16% $ 20,375 58% $ 12,886
Percentage of revenue 23% 24% 31% 
Selling and marketing expenses consist primarily of employee compensation as well as tradeshow participation, advertising and other marketing
and selling costs. We focus a significant proportion of our sales and marketing activities on new and emerging market opportunities. Due to the
timing of their respective acquisitions, the results of the Smartag, idOnDemand and polyright businesses are not included in sales and marketing
expenses for 2010 and only approximately nine months of expenses for Multicard U.S. are included for 2011. Additionally, only six months of
expenses for polyright and eight months of expenses for idOnDemand are included in 2011.

Sales and marketing expenses were $23.6 million in 2011, or 23% of revenue, up 16% from $20.4 million, or 24% of revenue in 2010. This
increase was primarily due to the addition of approximately $1.5 million of sales and marketing expenses from acquired businesses. Excluding
the impact of these additional expenses, sales and marketing expense levels were nearly unchanged in 2011 compared with the prior year. Key
sales and marketing initiatives in 2011 included programs and the allocation of resources to address new market opportunities, including NFC,
converged physical and logical access and SaaS-based solutions, and geographic regions including Asia and the Middle East.

Sales and marketing expenses were $20.4 million in 2010, or 24% of revenue, up 58% from $12.9 million, or 31% of revenue in 2009. Our 2010
sales and marketing expenses included approximately $8.4 million of additional expenses from businesses acquired during the year. Excluding
the impact of these additional expenses, sales and marketing expenses decreased 8% in 2010 as a result of cost reductions implemented during
the year.

We expect to modestly increase our investment in selling and marketing as a percentage of overall revenue from 2011 levels in order to address
opportunities in new and existing growth markets.

General and Administrative

Fiscal
2011

% Change

2011
to 2010

Fiscal
2010

% Change

2010
to 2009

Fiscal
2009

(In thousands)
Expenses $ 22,440 3% $ 21,809 33% $ 16,431
Percentage of revenue 22% 26% 40% 
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General and administrative expenses consist primarily of compensation expenses for employees performing administrative functions, and
professional fees arising from legal, auditing and other consulting services. Due to the timing of their respective acquisitions, the results of the
Smartag, idOnDemand and polyright businesses are not included in general and administrative expenses for 2010 and only approximately nine
months of expenses for Multicard U.S. are included for 2010. Additionally, only six months of expenses for polyright and eight months of
expenses for idOnDemand are included in 2011.

General and administrative expenses in 2011 were $22.4 million, or 22% of revenue, up 3% from $21.8 million, or 26% of revenue in 2010. Our
2011 general and administrative expenses include approximately $1.6 million of additional expenses from businesses acquired during the year,
as well as $0.3 million of transaction expenses related to the acquisition of idOnDemand, polyright and payment solution. General and
administrative expenses in 2010 included $1.3 million of transaction costs related to previous acquisitions. Excluding the impact of these
additional acquired expenses and transaction costs, general and administrative expenses were unchanged in 2011 compared with the prior year.

General and administrative expenses in 2010 were $21.8 million, or 26% of revenue, up 33% from $16.4 million, or 40% of revenue in 2009.
Our 2010 general and administrative expenses included approximately $10.5 million of additional expenses from businesses acquired during the
year, as well as $1.3 million in transaction expenses related to previous acquisitions. Excluding the impact of these additional acquired expenses
and transaction costs, general and administrative expenses decreased 31% in 2010 as a result of cost reductions implemented during the year,
which included salary reductions for executive officers, fee reductions for directors, headcount reductions and synergies achieved by
consolidating certain administrative services and programs for U.S. employees.

Impairment of Intangibles

Impairment of intangible assets in 2009 was related to an impairment charge related to the write-off of exclusivity fees paid to a privately-held
entity, TranZfinity, Inc. (�TranZfinity�). We had entered into an Exclusive Cooperation Agreement on April 17, 2008 with TranZfinity (the
�Cooperation Agreement�), which was amended in July 2009. The terms of the Cooperation Agreement, as amended, required TranZfinity to work
with us to develop modular USB devices for our product portfolio and to supply our customers with TranZfinity�s application software and
services supporting those devices. Pursuant to the Cooperation Agreement, we paid TranZfinity an exclusivity fee of $0.8 million for the right to
be the exclusive provider of those products. We capitalized these payments and were recording amortization expense based on the estimated
useful life.

The equity investment in TranZfinity was impaired during the fourth quarter of 2009 based on our assessment of TranZfinity�s performance and
future prospects. Additionally TranZfinity management and its shareholders decided to dissolve the TranZfinity operations. As a result, the
exclusivity fee paid to TranZfinity was considered impaired and we recorded an impairment charge of $0.6 million in our consolidated statement
of operations for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Restructuring

We recorded $0.3 million in restructuring costs in 2010 related to the closure and consolidation of facilities as well as headcount reductions
under our cost reduction program initiated in the first quarter of 2010.

Gain on Sale of Assets

During 2009, we recorded a $1.4 million gain on the sale of assets, which included a gain of $1.2 million on the sale of our office building in
India and a gain of $0.2 million on the sale of certain non-core patents that were unrelated to our current business.
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Loss and Impairment on Equity Investments

On October 1, 2008, we entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement with TranZfinity, pursuant to which we purchased a 33.7% ownership interest
for an aggregate purchase price of $2.5 million. This investment was accounted for using the equity method of accounting. During 2009, we
recorded a loss on equity investments of $2.2 million, which included the impairment of our equity method investment in TranZfinity of $1.4
million and our proportionate share of losses of $0.8 million realized by TranZfinity. We made the determination of impairment during the
fourth quarter of 2009, based on our assessment of TranZfinity�s performance and future prospects. Additionally, TranZfinity management and
shareholders concluded that TranZfinity business is no longer viable and decided to dissolve the TranZfinity�s operations.

Other Income

We recorded other income of $0.3 million in 2011 and 2010 related to a dividend distribution made by SCM PC-Card GmbH in which we had
made an investment in 1998, and this investment was written off in prior periods. The dividend distribution was made as a result of the entity�s
plan to close its operations.

Interest Expense, Net

Interest (expense) income, net consists of interest accretion expense for a liability to a related party and interest on a bank mortgage loan and
bank line of credit, offset by interest earned on invested cash. We recorded net interest expense of $1.0 million in 2011, $0.9 million in 2010 and
$0.5 million in 2009, which mainly resulted from an interest accretion expense for a liability to a related party in the Hirsch Identive business.
The expense in 2009 included eight months of interest as compared to twelve months of interest in 2011 and 2010. In addition, interest expense
in 2011 and 2010 included interest paid on mortgage loan and line of credit facilities with financial institutions. Interest income in 2011, 2010
and 2009 was immaterial.

Foreign Currency Gains (Losses), Net

We recorded foreign currency exchange losses of $(0.4) million in 2011 and $(0.2) million in 2010 and foreign currency exchange gains of $0.1
million in 2009. Changes in currency valuation in all periods presented were primarily a result of exchange rate movements between the
U.S. dollar and the Euro, Swiss Franc, and the British pound and their impact on the valuation of intercompany transaction balances.

Our foreign currency losses primarily result from the valuation of current assets and liabilities denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the respective entity in the local financial statements. Accordingly, these foreign currency losses are predominantly
non-cash items.

Income Taxes

In 2011, we recorded an income tax benefit of $1.4 million, comprised primarily of a $1.6 benefit related to a one-time release of valuation
allowance, a $0.4 million expense related to foreign subsidiaries for which no loss carryforward offset is available; a net income tax benefit of
$0.1 million related to tax credits; and a net income tax benefit of $0.1 million related to other miscellaneous items.

In 2010, we recorded an income tax benefit of $0.3 million, comprised primarily of a $0.8 million income tax benefit resulting from the current
year utilization of previously-reserved net operating losses, a $0.2 million expense for the true-up of prior year taxes; a $0.1 million expense
related to foreign subsidiaries with no loss carryforwards; and a net income tax expense of $0.2 related to other miscellaneous items.

In 2009, we recorded an income tax benefit of $1.5 million, which resulted from an income tax benefit of $1.7 million related to the Hirsch
acquisition; $0.4 million of income tax expense related to foreign subsidiaries with no loss carryforwards; a $0.3 million benefit for the true-up
of prior year taxes; and an expense of $0.1 million related to state taxes which could not be offset by net operating loss carryovers.
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Discontinued Operations

During 2003, the Company completed two transactions to sell its retail Digital Video and Digital Media Reader business. During 2006, the
Company completed the sale of substantially all the assets and some of the liabilities associated with its Digital TV solutions business. Gain
from discontinued operations in all periods was mainly related to changes in estimates for lease commitments and termination of our lease
agreement for premises leased in the UK and USA.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, our working capital, which we have defined as current assets less current liabilities, was $16.7
million, compared to $9.3 million as of December 31, 2010, an increase of approximately $7.4 million. The increase in working capital reflects a
$2.8 million net decrease in accounts receivable, inventories, income taxes receivable and other current assets, as well as a $3.8 million net
decrease in accounts payable, accrued expenses and income taxes payable, offset by a $6.4 million increase in cash and cash equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalents were $17.2 million as of December 31, 2011, an increase of approximately $6.4 million compared to $10.8 million as
of December 31, 2010 as a result of cash acquired in issuing common stock in connection with a capital raise in May 2011, partially offset by
cash paid for the idOnDemand and polyright acquisitions, capital expenditure, transition and integration activities and to fund working capital.

The following summarizes our cash flows for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 (in thousands):

12 Months Ended
December 31,

2011

12 Months Ended
December 31,

2010
Net cash used in operating activities from continuing operations $ (4,645) $ (8,358) 
Net cash used by operating activies from discontinued operations 0 (941) 
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (6,882) 4,138
Net cash provided by financing activities 17,638 11,577
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 329 (453) 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 6,440 5,963
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 10,799 4,836

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 17,239 $ 10,799

Significant commitments that will require the use of cash in future periods include obligations under operating leases, liability to a related party,
a debt note, a mortgage bank loan, inventory purchase commitments and other contractual agreements. Gross committed lease obligations were
approximately $5.0 million, liability to related party was approximately $8.4 million, the debt note was approximately $1.3 million, the
mortgage bank loan was $0.8 million and inventory and other purchase commitments were approximately $7.9 million at December 31, 2011.
Total commitments due within one year were approximately $12.5 million and commitments due thereafter were approximately $10.9 million at
December 31, 2011.

The cash provided by financing activities primarily reflects the net amounts received upon the issuance of shares of our common stock in our
May 2011 capital raise, as well as cash received from warrant exercises.

We currently expect that our current capital resources, including existing cash, cash equivalents, anticipated cash flows from operating activities,
savings from our continued cost reduction activities, and available borrowings should be sufficient to meet our operating and capital
requirements through at least the end of 2012. Our plans may be adversely impacted if we fail to realize our assumed levels of revenues and
expenses or savings
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from our cost reduction activities. If these events occur, we may need to raise additional funds through additional debt or equity financings. The
sale of additional debt or equity securities may cause dilution to existing stockholders. If sufficient funds are not available or are not available on
acceptable terms, our ability to address any unexpected changes in our funding plan, to take advantage of unexpected business opportunities or
to respond to competitive pressures could be limited or severely constrained. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that we will be able to raise
such funds if and when they are required. Failure to obtain future funding when needed or on acceptable terms would materially adversely affect
our results of operations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have not entered into off-balance sheet arrangements, or issued guarantees to third parties.

Contractual Obligations

The following summarizes expected cash requirements for contractual obligations as of December 31, 2011 (in thousands):

Total

Less Than 
1

Year
1-3

Years
3-5

Years

More Than 
5

Years
Operating leases $ 5,008 $ 2,566 $ 2,395 $ 47 $ �  
Liability to related party 8,379 1,076 2,346 2,587 2,370
Debt note 1,311 887 424 �  �  
Mortgage loan payable to bank 821 55 110 110 546
Purchase commitments and other obligations 7,948 7,942 6 �  �  

Total obligations $ 23,467 $ 12,526 $ 5,281 $ 2,744 $ 2,916

Purchases for inventories are highly dependent upon forecasts of customer demand. Due to the uncertainty in demand from our customers, we
may have to change, reschedule, or cancel purchases or purchase orders from our suppliers. These changes may lead to vendor cancellation
charges on these purchases or contractual commitments. See Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information about
the contractual obligations listed in the table above.

The Company excluded liabilities of $0.7 million as it relates to uncertain tax positions from the contractual obligations table because the
Company is unable to make reasonable estimates of the period of cash settlement with the respective taxing authority.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

We are primarily exposed to changes in currency exchange rates. Our foreign currency exposure continues to increase as we grow
internationally.

Economic Exposure

We transact business in various foreign currencies and have significant international revenues, as well as costs denominated in foreign
currencies. This exposes us to the risk of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. Our objective is to identify material foreign currency
exposures and to manage these exposures to minimize the potential effects of currency fluctuations on our reported consolidated cash flow and
results of operations.

Transaction Exposure

Our exposure to foreign currency transaction gains and losses is the result of assets and liabilities, (including inter-company transactions) that
are denominated in currencies other than the relevant entity�s functional currency. In certain circumstances, changes in the functional currency
value of these assets and liabilities create fluctuations in our reported consolidated statements of financial position, consolidated statements of
operations, and consolidated statements of cash flows. We have performed sensitivity analyses as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 using a
modeling technique that evaluated the hypothetical impact of a 10% movement in the value of the U.S. dollar compared to the functional
currency of the subsidiary, with all other variables held constant, to determine the incremental transaction gains or losses that would have been
incurred. The foreign exchange rates used were based on market rates in effect at each of December 31, 2011 and 2010. The results of this
hypothetical sensitivity analysis indicated that the impact on a hypothetical 10% movement in foreign currency exchange rates would result in
increased foreign currency gains or losses of $0.4 million and $0.5 million for 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Translation Exposure

We are also exposed to foreign exchange rate fluctuations as we convert the financial statements of our foreign subsidiaries and our investments
in equity interests into U.S. dollars in consolidation. If there is a change in foreign currency exchange rates, the conversion of the foreign
subsidiaries� financial statements into U.S. dollars results in a gain or loss which is recorded as a component of accumulated comprehensive
income in our consolidated statements of stockholders� equity and comprehensive loss.

With respect to our international operations, we have remeasured accounts which are denominated in the non-functional currencies into the
functional currency of the subsidiary and recorded the resulting gains (losses) within foreign currency gains (losses), net in our consolidated
statements of operations for the period. We remeasure all monetary assets and liabilities at the current exchange rate at the end of the period,
non-monetary assets and liabilities at historical exchange rates, and revenue and expenses at average exchange rates in effect during the period

Fixed Income Investments

We do not use derivative financial instruments in our investment portfolio. We do, however, limit our exposure to interest rate and credit risk by
establishing and strictly monitoring clear policies and guidelines for our fixed income portfolios. At the present time, the maximum duration of
any investment in our portfolio is limited to less than one year. The guidelines also establish credit quality standards, limits on exposure to one
issue or issuer, as well as to the type of instrument. Due to the limited duration and credit risk criteria we have established, our exposure to
market and credit risk is not expected to be material.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, we had $17.2 million and $10.8 million in cash and cash equivalents and no short-term investments.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Identive Group, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Identive Group, Inc. and subsidiaries (the �Company�) as of December 31,
2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders� equity and comprehensive loss, and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15.
These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company�s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2011, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such
financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein.

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company�s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control � Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 29, 2012 expressed an adverse opinion
on the Company�s internal control over financial reporting because of certain material weaknesses.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE GMBH
    WIRTSCHAFTSPRÜFUNGSGESELLSCHAFT

Munich, Germany
March 29, 2012
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IDENTIVE GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
(In thousands; except par value) 2011 2010

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,239 $ 10,799
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $268 and $484 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively 13,578 15,231
Inventories 9,263 10,584
Income taxes receivable 170 126
Prepaids and other current assets 2,256 2,088

Total current assets 42,506 38,828
Property and equipment, net 6,699 5,373
Goodwill 58,404 47,126
Intangible assets, net 36,001 33,865
Other assets 501 793

Total assets $ 144,111 $ 125,985

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 11,941 $ 12,833
Mortgage loan payable to bank and bank line of credit 55 630
Debt note 829 1,040
Liability to related party 1,076 1,058
Accrued compensation and related benefits 3,527 3,694
Deferred revenue 2,085 1,244
Other accrued expenses and liabilities 5,821 8,980
Income taxes payable 428 44

Total current liabilities 25,762 29,523

Long-term earn-out liability 5,663 �  
Long-term liability to related party 7,303 7,615
Long-term mortgage loan payable to bank 766 840
Long-term debt note 423 950
Deferred tax liability 6,094 6,795
Long-term income taxes payable 629 458

Total liabilities 46,640 46,181

Commitments and contingencies (see Note 14 and 15) �  �  
Equity:
Identive Group, Inc. stockholders� equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 10,000 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding �  �  
Common stock, $0.001 par value: 130,000 shares authorized; 58,309 and 48,276 shares issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively 58 48
Additional paid-in capital 331,758 306,203
Treasury stock, 618 shares (2,777) (2,777) 
Accumulated deficit (235,398) (225,896) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 2,038 323
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Total Identive Group, Inc. stockholders� equity 95,679 77,901
Noncontrolling interest 1,792 1,903

Total equity 97,471 79,804

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 144,111 $ 125,985

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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IDENTIVE GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,
(In thousands, except per share data) 2011 2010 2009
Net revenue $ 102,708 $ 84,843 $ 41,315
Cost of revenue 59,906 47,485 21,971

Gross profit 42,802 37,358 19,344

Operating expenses:
Research and development 7,025 4,715 4,253
Selling and marketing 23,563 20,375 12,886
General and administrative 22,440 21,809 16,431
Impairment of intangibles �  �  647
Restructuring �  337 �  
Gain on sale of assets �  �  (1,417) 

Total operating expenses 53,028 47,236 32,800

Loss from operations (10,226) (9,878) (13,456) 
Loss and impairment on equity investments �  �  (2,244) 
Other income 262 264 �  
Interest expense, net (1,049) (865) (487) 
Foreign currency gains (losses), net (398) (234) 76

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes and noncontrolling interest (11,411) (10,713) (16,111) 
Income tax benefit 1,441 345 1,549

Loss from continuing operations (9,970) (10,368) (14,562) 
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes �  220 383

Consolidated net loss (9,970) (10,148) (14,179) 
Less: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest 468 630 �  

Net loss attributable to Identive Group, Inc. $ (9,502) $ (9,518) $ (14,179) 

Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to Identive Group, Inc:
Loss from continuing operations $ (0.18) $ (0.23) $ (0.66) 

Income from discontinued operations $ �  $ 0.01 $ 0.02

Net loss $ (0.18) $ (0.22) $ (0.64) 

Weighted average shares used to compute basic and diluted loss per share 53,748 42,722 22,047

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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IDENTIVE GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Identive Group, Inc. Stockholders

Noncontrolling
Interest

Total
Equity

Comprehensive
Loss

Common Stock
Additional

Paid-in

Capital
Treasury

Stock
Accumulated

Deficit

Accumulative
Other

Comprehensive

Income(In thousands) Shares Amount
Balances, January 1, 2009 16,362 $ 16 $ 229,788 $ (2,777) $ (202,199) $ 3,298 $ �  $ 28,126

Issuance of common stock in
connection with acquisition 9,391 10 23,775 �  �  �  �  23,785
Stock-based compensation
expense �  �  347 �  �  �  �  347
Comprehensive loss:
Net loss �  �  �  �  (14,179) �  �  (14,179) (14,179) 
Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net tax of nil �  �  �  �  �  (139) �  (139) $ (139) 

Comprehensive loss $ (14,318) 

Balances, December 31, 2009 25,753 $ 26 $ 253,910 $ (2,777) $ (216,378) $ 3,159 $ �  $ 37,940

Issuance of common stock in
connection with acquisitions 17,900 18 38,758 �  �  �  �  38,776
Fair value of stock options
converted in connection with
Bluehill ID acquisition �  �  3,007 �  �  �  �  3,007
Assumption of treasury stock in
connection with Bluehill ID
acquisition �  �  �  (2,880) �  �  �  (2,880) 
Repurchase of treasury stock in
connection with Bluehill ID
acquisition �  �  (402) 2,880 �  �  �  2,478
Issuance of common shares to
acquire additional noncontrolling
interest in a subsidiary 88 �  199 �  �  �  (199) �  
Issuance of common stock upon
exercise of options 7 �  11 �  �  �  �  11
Issuance of common stock in
connection with stock bonus and
incentive plans 99 �  174 �  �  �  �  174
Issuance of common stock to
affiliates for conversion of loan 181 �  291 �  �  �  �  291
Issuance of common stock in
connection with private
placement, net of issuance costs 4,098 4 9,582 �  �  �  �  9,586
Issuance of common stock for
settlement of pre-acquisition
liabilities 150 �  343 �  �  �  �  343
Noncontrolling interest in
connection with Bluehill ID
acquisition �  �  �  �  �  �  3,057 3,057
Stock-based compensation
expense �  �  330 �  �  �  �  330
Comprehensive loss:

Edgar Filing: IDENTIVE GROUP, INC. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 77



Net loss �  �  �  �  (9,518) �  (630) (10,148) $ (10,148) 
Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net tax of nil �  �  �  �  �  (2,836) (325) (3,161) (3,161) 

Comprehensive loss $ (13,309) 

Balances, December 31, 2010 48,276 $ 48 $ 306,203 $ (2,777) $ (225,896) $ 323 $ 1,903 $ 79,804
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IDENTIVE GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Identive Group, Inc. Stockholders

Noncontrolling
Interest

Total
Equity

Comprehensive
Loss

Common Stock
Additional

Paid-in

Capital
Treasury

Stock
Accumulated

Deficit

Accumulative
Other

Comprehensive

Income(In thousands) Shares Amount
Issuance of common stock in
connection with capital raise, net of
issuance costs 7,843 8 18,204 �  �  �  �  18,212
Issuance of common stock in
connection with idOnDemand
acquisition 996 1 3,023 �  �  �  �  3,024
Issuance of common stock in
connection with earn-out agreements 137 �  316 �  �  �  �  316
Issuance of common shares to
acquire additional noncontrolling
interest in a subsidiary 3 �  8 �  �  �  (8) �  
Issuance of common stock in
connection with stock bonus and
incentive plans 567 1 1,461 �  �  �  �  1,462
Shares issued to board members as
incentive/board fees 60 �  166 �  �  �  �  166
Issuance of common stock upon
exercise of warrants 406 �  1,075 �  �  �  �  1,075
Issuance of common stock upon
exercise of options 21 �  57 �  �  �  �  57
Stock-based compensation expense �  �  439 �  �  �  �  439
Stock-based compensation expense
for ESPP �  �  134 �  �  �  �  134
Stock-based compensation expense
for options grants in connection with
stock bonus and incentive plans �  �  672 �  �  �  �  672
Noncontrolling interest in connection
with idOnDemand acquisition �  �  �  �  �  �  468 468
Comprehensive loss:
Net loss �  �  �  �  (9,502) �  (468) (9,970) $ (9,970) 
Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net tax of nil �  �  �  �  �  1,715 (103) 1,612 1,612

Comprehensive loss $ (8,358) 

Balances, December 31, 2011 58,309 $ 58 $ 331,758 $ (2,777) $ (235,398) $ 2,038 $ 1,792 $ 97,471

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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IDENTIVE GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,
(In thousands) 2011 2010 2009
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (9,970) $ (10,148) $ (14,179) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Income from discontinued operations �  (220) (383) 
Deferred income taxes (2,098) (204) (2,056) 
Depreciation and amortization 5,581 4,696 1,061
Accretion of interest to related party liability 748 772 525
Interest on debt note, bank line of credit and mortgage loan 223 79 �  
Remeasurement of contingent consideration 510 221 �  
Stock-based compensation expense 1,227 2,352 347
Gain on disposal of fixed assets �  �  (1,417) 
Impairment of intangibles �  �  647
Loss and impairment on equity investments �  �  2,244
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 2,140 (4,400) 4,855
Inventories 1,923 (2,053) 1,483
Income taxes receivable (44) 148 811
Other assets 570 (371) 331
Accounts payable (2,112) 3,307 25
Liability to related party (1,042) (1,081) (516) 
Accrued expenses (2,564) (1,971) 722
Deferred revenue (291) 1,054 �  
Income taxes payable 555 (539) (171) 

Net cash used in operating activities from continuing operations (4,645) (8,358) (5,671) 
Net cash used in operating activities from discontinued operations �  (941) (258) 

Net cash used in operating activities (4,645) (9,299) (5,929) 

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures (1,728) (758) (727) 
Net cash (paid for) acquired from acquisitions (5,154) 3,881 (10,892) 
Proceeds from sale of assets, net �  �  2,087
Sales and maturities of short-term investments �  1,015 �  

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (6,882) 4,138 (9,532) 

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs 18,212 11,532 �  
Payments on debt note and mortgage loan (1,102) (53) �  
Changes in bank line of credit, net (605) 98 �  
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon options exercised 57 �  �  
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon warrants exercised 1,076 �  �  

Net cash provided by financing activities 17,638 11,577 �  

Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 329 (453) (253) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6,440 5,963 (15,714) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 10,799 4,836 20,550

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 17,239 $ 10,799 $ 4,836
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Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Common stock issued in connection with business combinations $ 3,024 $ 41,254 $ 23,785

Conversion of stock options in connection with business combinations $ �  $ 3,007 $ �  

Common stock issued in connection with contingent consideration $ 316 $ 343 $ �  

Common stock issued in connection with stock bonus and incentive plans $ 1,628 $ 174 $ �  

Stock option grants issued in connection with stock bonus and incentive plans $ 672 $ �  $ �  

Common stock issued to affiliates for conversion of loan $ �  $ 291 $ �  

Debt note issued in connection with business acquisition $ �  $ 1,990 $ �  

Fair value of contingent consideration in connection with business combinations $ 5,060 $ 298 $ �  

Cash paid for interest expense $ 1,049 $ 865 $ 487

Income taxes paid $ 50 $ 91 $ 792

Property and equipment subject to accounts payable $ 979 $ �  $ �  

Income taxes received $ 83 $ 14 $ (1,078) 

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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IDENTIVE GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Identive Group, Inc. (�Identive� or the �Company,�) provides secure identification (�Secure ID�) solutions that combine the convenience of radio
frequency identification (�RFID�) with the security of smart card technology to enable people to easily and securely interact with and manage
digital devices, systems and data. The Company�s offerings include hardware products, software, integrated systems and services to address the
global markets for credential management, physical and logical or cyber access control, integrated ID solutions and a host of near field
communications (�NFC�) and RFID-enabled applications for customers in the government, enterprise, consumer, education, healthcare and
transportation sectors. Identive�s growth model is principally based on strong technology-driven organic growth, supported by disciplined
acquisitive expansion.

On April 30, 2009, the Company acquired Hirsch Electronics Corporation (�Hirsch�), a privately-held California corporation that designs,
engineers, manufactures and markets software, hardware and services in the security management system/physical access control market. On
January 4, 2010, the Company acquired Bluehill ID AG (�Bluehill ID�), a Swiss industrial holding group focused on the radio frequency
identification (RFID)/identification and security industries. On April 14, 2010, the Company acquired RockWest Technology Group LLC
(�RockWest�), a privately held provider of identification and security solutions based in Denver, Colorado. On November 19, 2010, the Company
acquired FCI Smartag Pte., Ltd. (�Smartag�), a Singapore-based manufacturer of high frequency (�HF�) and ultra high frequency (�UHF�) radio
frequency identification (�RFID�) inlays and inlay-based solutions including labels and tags used for asset tracking, cards and stickers used for
e-payment and ticketing transactions, and NFC labels used to enable secure payments with mobile devices. On May 2, 2011, the Company
acquired 95.8% of the shares of idOnDemand, Inc. (�idOnDemand�), a privately-held provider of cloud-based identity management services based
in Pleasanton, California. The remaining shares of idOnDemand were acquired on January 9, 2012. On July 18, 2011, through its Multicard AG
subsidiary, the Company acquired polyright SA (�polyright�), a Swiss provider of identity management platforms and open-ended rights and
services management solutions for higher education, healthcare and industry. The results for the acquired businesses are included in the
Company�s consolidated statements of operations since their respective dates of acquisition. As a result of the timing of these acquisitions, the
Company�s operating results for the periods presented are not directly comparable.

Business areas of focus within Identive include the ID Infrastructure business unit, formerly SCM Microsystems and Arygon Technologies; the
Transponder business unit, formerly ACiG Technology, Smartag, Syscan ID and TagStar Systems; and the Hirsch Identive, idOnDemand and
Multicard business units. Corporate headquarters are co-located with the headquarters of the Company�s Hirsch Identive business unit in Santa
Ana, California and European operational headquarters are in Ismaning, Germany. The Company maintains facilities in Chennai, India for
technology research and development and in Australia, Canada, Germany, Hong Kong, Japan, the Netherlands, Singapore, Switzerland, the UK
and the U.S. for individual business operations and sales. The Company was founded in 1990 in Munich, Germany and was incorporated in 1996
under the laws of the State of Delaware.

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation � The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the
Company and its wholly and majority owned subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates � The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (�GAAP�) in the U.S.
requires the Company�s management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Such management estimates include an allowance for doubtful accounts receivable, lower of
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cost or market adjustments, valuation allowances against deferred income taxes, estimates related to recovery of long-lived assets and goodwill,
liability for contingent consideration, accruals of product warranty, restructuring accruals, and other liabilities. Estimates are revised as
additional information becomes available. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Reclassifications � Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period amounts to conform to current period presentation.

Cash Equivalents � The Company considers all highly liquid debt investments with maturities of three months or less at the date of acquisition to
be cash equivalents. The Company�s cash equivalents consist primarily of amounts held in treasury money market funds. Amounts held primarily
in treasury money market funds totaled approximately $1,506,000 and $36,000 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts � The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on the Company�s assessment of the collectibility of customer
accounts. The Company regularly reviews its receivables that remain outstanding past their applicable payment terms and establishes allowance
and potential write-offs by considering factors such as historical experience, credit quality, age of the accounts receivable balances, and current
economic conditions that may affect a customer�s ability to pay. Although the Company expects to collect net amounts due as stated on the
consolidated balance sheets, actual collections may differ from these estimated amounts.

Inventories � Inventories are stated at the lower of standard cost, which approximates cost, or market value. Inventory is written down for excess
inventory, technical obsolescence and no ability to sell based primarily on historical sales and expectations forfuture use. The Company operates
in an industry characterized by technological change. The planning of production and inventory levels is based on internal forecasts of customer
demand, which are highly unpredictable and can fluctuate substantially. Should the demand for the Company�s products prove to be significantly
less than anticipated, the ultimate realizable value of the Company�s inventory could be substantially less than amounts in the consolidated
balance sheets. Once inventory has been written down below cost, it is not subsequently written up.

Property and Equipment � Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation and amortization are computed
using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of three to seven years for furniture, fixture and office equipment, five to seven years
for plant and machinery, five years for automobiles, three years for purchased software and twenty years for buildings. Leasehold improvements
are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or their estimated useful life.

Goodwill � Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired
in a business combination. Goodwill is not subject to amortization but is subject to annual assessment, at a minimum, for impairment in
accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) Accounting Standards Codification (�ASC�) Topic 350, Intangibles � Goodwill
and Other (�ASC 350�). The Company evaluates goodwill, at a minimum, on an annual basis and whenever events and changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Impairment of goodwill is tested at the reporting unit level, which is one
level below its operating segment level. The Company first assesses qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of events or
circumstances leads to a determination that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If,
after assessing the totality of events or circumstances, it is determined it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than
its carrying amount, then the Company performs the first step of the two-step impairment test by calculating the fair value of the reporting unit
and comparing the fair value with the carrying amount of the reporting unit, including goodwill. If the carrying value of the reporting unit
exceeds the fair value, goodwill is considered impaired and a second step is performed to measure the amount of the impairment loss, if any.
Under this second step, the implied fair value of goodwill value is determined, in the same manner as the amount of goodwill recognized in a
business combination, to assess level of goodwill impairment, if any. The
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implied fair value of goodwill as determined above is compared to the carrying value of goodwill. If the carrying value of goodwill exceeds the
implied fair value of goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized equal to that excess (i.e., write goodwill down to the implied fair value of
goodwill amount).

The Company determines the fair value of the reporting units using the income, or discounted cash flows, approach (�DCF model�) and verifies
the reasonableness of such fair value calculations of the reporting units using the market approach, which utilizes comparable companies� data.
The completion of the DCF model requires that the Company make a number of significant assumptions to produce an estimate of future cash
flows. These assumptions include projections of future revenue, costs and working capital changes. In addition, the Company makes
assumptions about the estimated cost of capital and other relevant variables, as required, in estimating the fair value of its reporting units. The
projections used by the Company in its DCF model are updated annually and will change over time based on the historical performance and
changing business conditions for each of the Company�s reporting units. The determination of whether goodwill is impaired involves a
significant level of judgment in these assumptions, and changes in the Company�s business strategy, government regulations, or economic or
market conditions could significantly impact these judgments. The Company will continue to monitor market conditions and other factors to
determine if interim impairment tests are necessary in future periods.

The reporting units are identified in accordance with ASC 350-20-35-33 through 35-46. As discussed in Note 8 below, the Company performed
its annual impairment analysis as of December 1, 2011 and no impairment existed at that time.

Intangible and Long-lived Assets � The Company evaluates its long-lived assets and amortizable intangible assets in accordance with ASC Topic
360, Property, Plant and Equipment (�ASC 360�). The Company evaluates its long-lived assets and certain identifiable amortizable intangible
assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets or intangibles may not be
recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future net
undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by an asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired (i.e., if the sum of its estimated future
undiscounted cash flows used to test for recoverability is less than its carrying value), the impairment loss to be recognized is measured by the
amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. Intangible assets with definite lives are being amortized
over the estimated useful lives of the related assets as disclosed in Note 8 below. Each period the Company evaluates the estimated remaining
useful life of purchased intangible assets and whether events or changes in circumstances warrant a revision to the remaining period of
amortization. For intangible assets, where the Company has determined that these have an indefinite useful life, no amortization is recognized
until its useful life is determined to be no longer indefinite. The Company evaluates indefinite useful life intangible assets for impairment at a
minimum on an annual basis and whenever events and changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable in accordance with ASC 350. The Company performs the impairment test of the indefinite lived intangible assets by calculating the
fair value of such intangible assets and comparing the fair value of the intangible assets with the carrying amount. If the carrying amount of such
intangible assets exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess. As discussed in Note 8 below, no
impairment existed as of year-end.

Product Warranty � The Company accrues the estimated cost of product warranties at the time of sale. The Company�s warranty obligation is
affected by actual warranty costs, including material usage or service delivery costs incurred in correcting a product failure. If actual material
usage or service delivery costs differ from estimates, revisions to the estimated warranty liability would be required. Historically the warranty
accrual and the expense amounts have been immaterial.

Revenue Recognition � Revenue is recognized when all of the following criteria have been met:

� Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists. The Company generally relies upon sales contracts or agreements, and customer
purchase orders to determine the existence of an arrangement.
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� Delivery has occurred. The Company uses shipping terms and related documents, or written evidence of customer acceptance, when
applicable, to verify delivery or performance.

� Sales price is fixed or determinable. The Company assesses whether the sales price is fixed or determinable based on the payment
terms and whether the sales price is subject to refund or adjustment.

� Collectability is reasonably assured. The Company assesses collectability based on creditworthiness of customers as determined by
credit checks and customer payment histories. The Company records accounts receivable net of allowance for doubtful accounts,
estimated customer returns, and pricing credits.

In 2011, the Company adopted the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (�ASU�) No. 2009-13, Revenue Recognition (Topic 605) �
Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements (�ASU 2009-13�). ASU 2009-13 changes the requirements for establishing separate units of
accounting in a multiple element arrangement and eliminates the residual method of allocation and requires the allocation of arrangement
consideration to each deliverable to be based on the relative selling price. The relative selling price method allocates any discount in the
arrangement proportionately to each deliverable on the basis of the deliverable�s estimated fair value. Concurrently with issuing ASU 2009-13,
the FASB also issued ASU No. 2009-14, Software (Topic 985) � Certain Revenue Arrangements That Include Software Elements (�ASU 2009-14�)
which amends the scope of software revenue guidance in Accounting Standards Codification (�ASC�) Subtopic 985-605, Software-Revenue
Recognition (�ASC 985-605�), to exclude tangible products containing software and non-software components that function together to deliver
the product�s essential functionality. ASU 2009-14 provides that tangible products containing software components and non-software
components, that function together to deliver the tangible product�s essential functionality, are no longer within the scope of the software revenue
guidance in ASC 985-605 and should follow the guidance in ASU 2009-13 for multiple-element arrangements. All non-essential and standalone
software components will continue to be accounted for under the guidance of ASC 985-605.

ASU 2009-13 and ASU 2009-14 are effective prospectively for revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years
beginning on or after June 15, 2010. The Company prospectively adopted the provisions of ASU 2009-13 and ASU 2009-14 effective January 1,
2011. The Company has assessed the effects of ASU 2009-13 and ASU 2009-14 and has concluded that the adoption of these standards had no
material impact on the condensed consolidated results of operations and financial position for the year ended December 31, 2011. This was
because the Company�s determination of separate units of accounting in a multiple element arrangement under the previous standard (ASC
605-25, Multiple Elements Arrangements) is not impacted by ASU 2009-13. ASU 2009-13 generally does not change the determination of units
of accounting for the Company�s revenue arrangements. The Company�s revenue is derived primarily from sales of hardware products, and to a
lesser extent, from the license of proprietary software products and software components in revenue arrangements that are considered
standalone. As a result, ASU 2009-14 did not have any impact during the year ended December 31, 2011 and revenues from such software
products will continue to be recognized under the guidance of ASC 985-605. The Company cannot reasonably estimate the effect of adopting
these standards on future financial periods as the impact will vary depending on the nature and volume of new or materially modified deals in
any given period.

ASU 2009-13 establishes a selling price hierarchy for determining the selling price of a deliverable in revenue arrangements. The revenue is
generated from sales to direct end-users and to distributors. When a sales arrangement contains multiple elements and software and non-software
components function together to deliver the tangible products� essential functionality, the Company allocates revenue to each element based on a
selling price hierarchy. The selling price for a deliverable is based on its vendor-specific objective evidence (�VSOE�) if available, third-party
evidence (�TPE�) if VSOE is not available, or estimated selling price (�ESP�) if neither VSOE nor TPE is available. The Company then recognizes
revenue on each deliverable in accordance with its policies for product and service revenue recognition. VSOE of selling price is based on the
price charged when
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the element is sold separately. TPE of selling price is established by evaluating largely interchangeable competitor products or services in
stand-alone sales to similarly situated customers. The best estimate of selling price is established considering multiple factors, including, but not
limited to, pricing practices in different geographies and through different sales channels, gross margin objectives, internal costs, competitor
pricing strategies and industry technology lifecycles. Some of the Company�s products contain a significant element of proprietary technology
and its solutions offer substantially different features and functionality; as a result, the comparable pricing of products with similar functionality
typically cannot be obtained. Additionally, as the Company is unable to reliably determine what competitors products� selling prices are on a
stand-alone basis, the Company is not typically able to determine TPE for such products. Therefore ESP is used for such products in the selling
price hierarchy for allocating the total arrangement consideration.

The Company evaluates each deliverable in an arrangement to determine whether they represent separate units of accounting in accordance with
the provisions of ASU 2009-13. Certain sales arrangements of the Company�s hardware products are bundled with its professional services and
maintenance contracts, and in some cases with its software products. Professional services include security system integration, system migration,
database conversion services, etc. In such multiple element arrangements, revenue is allocated to each separate unit of accounting for each of the
non-software deliverables and to the software deliverables using the relative selling prices of each of the deliverables in the arrangement based
on the aforementioned selling price hierarchy. Allocation of the consideration is determined at arrangement inception on the basis of each unit�s
relative selling price. The Company accounts for software sales in accordance with ASC 985-605 and hardware sales in accordance with ASU
2009-13, when all the revenue recognition criteria noted above have been met. The revenue from professional services contracts is recognized
upon completion of such services and the revenue from maintenance contracts is deferred and amortized ratably over the period of the
maintenance contracts. If the professional services project includes independent milestones, revenue is recognized as milestones are met and
upon acceptance from the customer.

Research and Development � Costs to research, design, and develop the Company�s products are expensed as incurred and development expenses
are expensed as incurred and consist primarily of employee compensation and fees for the development of prototype products. Software
development costs are capitalized beginning when a product�s technological feasibility has been established and ending when a product is
available for general release to customers. Generally, the Company�s products are released soon after technological feasibility has been
established. As a result, costs subsequent to achieving technological feasibility have not been significant, and all software development costs
have been expensed as incurred.

Freight Costs � The Company reflects the cost of shipping its products to customers as a cost of revenue. Reimbursements received from
customers for freight costs are recognized as revenue.

Income Taxes � The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes (�ASC 740�), which requires the asset
and liability approach for financial accounting and reporting of income taxes. Deferred income taxes reflect the recognition of future tax
consequences of events that have been recognized in the Company�s financial statements or tax returns. The carrying value of net deferred tax
assets reflects that the Company has been unable to generate sufficient taxable income in certain tax jurisdictions. A valuation allowance is
provided to reduce the net deferred tax asset to an amount that is more likely than not to be realized. The deferred tax assets are still available for
the Company to use in the future to offset taxable income, which would result in the recognition of a tax benefit and a reduction in the
Company�s effective tax rate. Actual operating results and the underlying amount and category of income in future years could render the
Company�s current assumptions, judgments and estimates of the realizability of deferred tax assets inaccurate, which could have a material
impact on its financial position or results of operations.

The Company accounts for uncertain tax positions in accordance with ASC 740, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes
recognized in an enterprise�s financial statements. It prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of a tax

66

Edgar Filing: IDENTIVE GROUP, INC. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 86



Table of Contents

position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. ASC 740 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. Such changes in recognition or measurement might result in the recognition of a tax
benefit or an additional charge to the tax provision in the period. See Note 11 below for further information regarding the Company�s tax
disclosures.

Stock-based Compensation � The Company accounts for all stock-based payment awards granted after December 31, 2005, and granted prior to
but not yet vested as of December 31, 2005, including employee stock options, restricted stock awards, performance share awards, employee
stock purchase plan, in accordance with ASC Topic 718, Compensation-Stock Compensation (�ASC 718�). The Company elected to use the
modified prospective transition method as permitted by ASC 718. Under the fair value recognition provisions of this topic, stock-based
compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company changed its method of attributing the value of stock-based compensation to expense from the
accelerated multiple-option approach to the straight-line single option method. Compensation expense for all stock-based payment awards
granted prior to January 1, 2006 will continue to be recognized using the accelerated multiple-option approach while compensation expense for
all share-based payment awards granted on or subsequent to January 1, 2006 will continue to be recognized using the straight-line single-option
approach. Employee stock options awards granted after January 1, 2006 are valued under the single-option approach and amortized on a
straight-line basis, net of estimated forfeitures. The value of the portion of the stock options award that is ultimately expected-to-vest is
recognized as expense over the requisite service periods in the Company�s consolidated statements of operations. See Note 4 below for further
information regarding the Company�s stock-based compensation assumptions and expenses.

The Company has elected to use the Black-Scholes-Merton (�BSM�) option-pricing model to estimate the fair value of its options, which
incorporates various subjective assumptions including volatility, risk-free interest rate, expected life, and dividend yield to calculate the fair
value of stock option awards. Since the Company has been publicly traded for many years, it utilizes its own historical volatility in valuing its
stock option grants. The expected life of an award is based on historical experience, the terms and conditions of the stock awards granted to
employees, as well as the potential effect from options that have not been exercised at the time. The assumptions used in calculating the fair
value of share-based payment awards represent management�s best estimates. These estimates involve inherent uncertainties and the application
of management�s judgment. If factors change and the Company uses different assumptions, its stock-based compensation expense could be
materially different in the future. In addition, the Company is estimates the expected forfeiture rate and recognizes expense only for those
awards which are ultimately expected-to-vest shares. If the actual forfeiture rate is materially different from the Company�s estimate, the
recorded stock-based compensation expense could be different. ASC 718 requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if
necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.

Concentration of Credit Risk � Financial instruments that potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of
cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The Company invests only in high-quality credit instruments and maintains its cash and cash
equivalents in money market funds with high-quality institutions and, therefore, bear minimal risk. The Company primarily sells its products to
customers in the U.S., Asia and Europe. No customer represented 10% of the Company�s accounts receivable balance at December 31, 2011 or
December 31, 2010. The Company does not require collateral or other security to support accounts receivable. To reduce risk, the Company�s
management performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers� financial condition. The Company maintains allowances for potential credit
losses in its consolidated financial statements.

Net Loss Per Share � Basic and diluted net loss per share is based upon the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted net loss per share is based upon the weighted average number of common shares and dilutive-potential common share
equivalents outstanding during the period, if applicable. Dilutive-potential common share equivalents are excluded from the computation in loss
periods as
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their effect would be antidilutive. As the Company has incurred losses from continuing operations during each of the last three fiscal years,
shares issuable under stock options are excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share as their effect is anti-dilutive.

Comprehensive Loss � ASC Topic 220, Comprehensive Income (�ASC 220�) requires an enterprise to report, by major components and as a single
total, the change in net assets during the period from non-owner sources. Comprehensive loss for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009 has been disclosed within the consolidated statements of shareholders� equity and comprehensive loss. Other accumulated comprehensive
income includes net foreign currency translation gains (losses) that are excluded from net loss.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions � The functional currencies of the Company�s foreign subsidiaries are the local currencies, except
for the Singapore subsidiary, which uses the U.S. dollar as its functional currency. For those subsidiaries whose functional currency is the local
currency, the Company translates assets and liabilities to U.S. dollars using period-end exchange rates and translates revenues and expenses
using average exchange rates during the period. Exchange gains and losses arising from translation of foreign entity financial statements are
included as a component of other comprehensive loss and gains and losses from transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the Company are included in the Company�s consolidated statements of operations. The Company recorded a currency (loss) gain
of $(0.4) million in 2011, $(0.2) million in 2010 and $0.1 million in 2009.

As of September 30, 2011, the Company recorded a prior-period adjustment of $1.3 million related to foreign currency translation of goodwill
and intangible assets which were acquired as a result of its acquisition of Bluehill ID on January 4, 2010. Upon its acquisition of Bluehill ID, the
Company had not pushed down goodwill and intangible assets in 2010 in accordance with ASC 830-30-45-11 and the entire amount of goodwill
and intangible assets were recorded at the parent level. The related amounts of goodwill and intangible assets were designated in Euros and were
translated to the reporting currency at each reporting period until the second quarter of 2011. During the third quarter of 2011, the Company
decided to push-down the goodwill and intangible assets to each legal entity to which they related in their relevant functional currencies, which
in some cases was different than the Euro. As of September 30, 2011, the translated amounts of goodwill and intangible assets to the reporting
currency were different than had they been translated under the old methodology in 2010. As a result, the Company recorded an adjustment of
$1.3 million to goodwill and intangible assets with an offset to other comprehensive loss for the nine month period ended September 30, 2011.
The Company has concluded that the effect of the adjustment was immaterial to the Company�s 2010 annual, 2011 quarters and 2011 full year
financial statements. As a result, the Company will not amend its previous filed financial statements with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements and Accounting Changes

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-08, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other, ASC Topic 350, Testing for Impairment (�ASU
2011-08�). ASU 2011-08 amends the guidance in ASC 350-20, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other-Goodwill. The intent of this ASU is to simplify
how entities, both public and non-public, test goodwill for impairment by allowing an entity to use a qualitative approach to test goodwill for
impairment. The amendments in the ASU permit an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that
the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount (Step zero) as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the
two-step goodwill impairment test described in ASC 350-20. This guidance is effective for annual and interim tests performed in fiscal years
beginning on or after December 15, 2011. Early adoption is permitted. The Company adopted the provisions of ASU 2011-08 effective
December 1, 2011 at the time of its annual goodwill impairment test, however the Company by-passed the qualitative assessment for all
reporting units for its 2011 annual goodwill impairment test and proceeded directly to performing the first step of the two-step goodwill
impairment test. The Company will evaluate whether it will perform the qualitative assessment in fiscal year 2012.
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In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, Comprehensive Income, ASC Topic 220, Presentation of Comprehensive Income (�ASU
2011-05�), to require an entity to present the total of comprehensive income, the components of net income, and the components of other
comprehensive income either in a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements. ASU
2011-05 eliminates the option to present the components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of equity.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-12, Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifications
of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05 (�ASU 2011-12�). ASU 2011-12
indefinitely defers certain provisions of ASU 2011-05, including the requirement to present reclassification adjustments out of accumulated
other comprehensive income by component in both the statement in which net income is presented and the statement in which other
comprehensive income is presented. ASU 2011-12 does not change the primary provisions of ASU 2011-05, which eliminate the option to
present the components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of equity. Both ASU 2011-12 and ASU 2011-05 are effective in
the first quarter of fiscal 2012 and should be applied retrospectively. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of its pending adoption of
ASU 2011-05 on its consolidated financial statements but does not believe that it will have an impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in
U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards, ASU Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement (�ASU 2011-04�), to provide a consistent
definition of fair value and ensure that the fair value measurement and disclosure requirements are similar between U.S. GAAP and International
Financial Reporting Standards. ASU 2011-04 changes certain fair value measurement principles and enhances the disclosure requirements
particularly for Level 3 fair value measurements. ASU 2011-04 is effective in the first quarter of fiscal 2012. Early application by public
companies is not permitted. The Company�s adoption of ASU 2011-04 is not expected to have an impact on its consolidated results of operations
or financial condition.

2. Acquisitions

Acquisition of polyright SA

Multicard AG, a subsidiary of the Company, completed the acquisition and acquired all of the outstanding shares of polyright SA (�polyright�), on
July 18, 2011 (�polyright acquisition date�), for a combination of cash and payment of outstanding indebtedness in the aggregate amount of CHF
2.55 million (or approximately $3.1 million). The sellers included Securitas AG, Kudelski SA and members of polyright management. The
sellers may receive aggregate potential earn-out payments payable in shares of the Company�s common stock over the 30-month period
following the closing of the acquisition, subject to achievement of specific financial and sales performance targets over such period. The number
of such shares, if any, issued under the earn-out will be based on the average share price during the month preceding the date of announcement
of the Company�s annual results, and will be subject to a two-year lockup. polyright is a provider of identity management platforms and
open-ended rights and services management solutions for higher education, healthcare and industry.

Founded in 1997 and with offices in Sion, Zurich and Lausanne, polyright is a provider of identity management platforms and open-ended rights
and services management solutions for higher education, healthcare and industry in Switzerland. polyright�s core competence is the development,
installation and maintenance of single-credential, multi-function identity management and cashless payment solutions integrated with third-party
systems such as enterprise resource planning or access control. polyright�s platform allows integration of such functions as personnel and user
management, physical and logical access control, cashless payment, and use of third-party services such as car parking, bicycle/vehicle rental,
printing and photocopying and similar applications. The Company believes that polyright�s position in the education and healthcare markets in
Switzerland provides a strong addition to its Multicard business in the loyalty and commercial sectors, and polyright�s relationship with leading
clients in Switzerland as well as its direct link to consumers is an important attraction for the Company.
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The polyright acquisition is accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with ASC Topic 805, Business
Combinations (�ASC 805�). Under the acquisition method of accounting, the total purchase consideration, assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed is measured at fair value as of the date of acquisition when control is obtained. The fair value of the consideration transferred and the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed was determined by the Company and in doing so relied in part upon a third-party valuation report to
measure the purchase consideration, identifiable intangible assets acquired and obligations related to deferred revenue and earn-out payments.
The following table summarizes the fair value of total consideration transferred for the polyright acquisition, the total fair value of net
identifiable assets acquired at the polyright acquisition date and the resulting goodwill recorded (in thousands):

Cash consideration $  3,133
Fair value of contingent consideration 302

Fair value of total consideration transferred 3,435
Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired (716) 

Goodwill $ 2,719

The fair value of the contingent consideration is based on achieving certain revenue and profit targets as defined under the acquisition
agreement. These contingent payments were probability weighted and discounted to present value. An additional discount was applied to reflect
the restriction on the resale or transfer of such shares. The key assumptions used in calculating the fair value of contingent consideration are as
follows: 21.7% discount rate and probability adjusted revenues between $2.9 million and $7.1 million. The fair value of the contingent
consideration was classified as liability in accordance with ASC Topic 480, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity (�ASC 480�). As of
December 31, 2011, there were no significant changes in the range of outcomes for contingent consideration recognized as of the acquisition
date, although the Company recognized $42,000 of expenses as a result of passage of time (reduced impact of discounting) in accordance with
ASC 480 which has been included in general and administration expenses in the consolidated statement of operations.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the polyright acquisition date. The
estimated fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition is based on management�s best estimates.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of July 18, 2011 (in thousands):

Cash and cash equivalents $ 375
Accounts receivable 623
Inventory 589
Property and equipment 88
Other current assets 170
Accounts payable (316) 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (810) 
Deferred revenue (1,155) 
Intangible assets subject to amortization
Customer relationships 1,290
Order backlog 246
Deferred tax liabilities in connection with acquired intangible assets (384) 

Fair value of polyright net identifiable assets acquired $ 716

Intangible assets of $1.5 million consist primarily of customer relationships and order backlog. Customer relationships relate to polyright�s ability
to sell existing, in-process and future versions of its products to its existing customers. Order backlog represents future revenue to be derived
from confirmed orders. The customer
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relationships were valued using the income approach based on DCF and using a discount rate of 24%. The discount rate used in the present
value calculation was derived from a weighted average cost of capital (�WACC�) analysis, adjusted to reflect additional risks related to each asset�s
characteristics. The intangible assets of $1.5 million are subject to amortization and the Company expects to amortize these intangible assets on
a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives of approximately one to six years.

Of the total purchase consideration, $2.7 million was recognized as goodwill, which represents the excess of the purchase consideration of an
acquired business over the fair value of the underlying net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The goodwill arising from the polyright
acquisition is largely attributable to the synergies expected to be realized and is assigned to the Company�s Identity Management reportable
segment in accordance with ASC 350. None of the goodwill recorded as part of the polyright acquisition will be deductible for income tax
purposes.

The amounts of revenue and earnings of polyright included in the Company�s consolidated statement of operations from the polyright acquisition
date through December 31, 2011 are as follows (in thousands):

Revenues $  3,496
Net loss $ 524

Acquisition of idOnDemand, Inc.

The Company completed the acquisition of idOnDemand, Inc. (�idOnDemand�) on May 2, 2011 (the �idOnDemand acquisition date�), pursuant to a
Stock Purchase Agreement dated April 29, 2011 between the Company and certain shareholders (the �Selling Shareholders�) of idOnDemand,
under which the Company has acquired approximately 95.8% of the shares of idOnDemand in exchange for cash and shares of the Company�s
common stock. idOnDemand was a privately held corporation and is a provider of service-based identity credential provisioning and
management. idOnDemand is headquartered in Pleasanton, California and maintains data centers in Santa Clara, California and Canberra,
Australia. Initial consideration at closing consisted of approximately $2.4 million in cash and 995,675 shares of the Company�s common
stock. Shares issued at closing to the Selling Shareholders are subject to a three-year lock-up period from the closing date of the acquisition. Of
the total initial share consideration paid to the Selling Shareholders, 407,289 shares were released in November 2011 from the lock-up on the
six-month anniversary of the closing date. Beginning on the second anniversary of the closing date, the remaining shares will be released from
the lock-up in equal amounts on a monthly basis until the expiration of the lock-up period.

The shares of the Company�s common stock issued at closing were issued in reliance upon available exemptions from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the �Securities Act�), including Section 4(2) thereof and Regulation S thereunder, as well
as comparable exemptions under applicable state and foreign securities laws. In addition, Selling Shareholders may receive potential earn-out
payments over a period of three years and eight months from the idOnDemand acquisition date, payable in shares of the Company�s common
stock and subject to achievement of specific financial and sales performance targets. Any shares issued in connection with the earn-out will be
subject to a 12-month lock-up from date of issuance.

idOnDemand is a pioneer of the Software as a Service (SaaS) business model, delivering a managed identity service that allows organizations to
use a single, globally-trusted credential for secure access to buildings, computers, mobile devices and corporate information stored in the cloud.
Moreover, idOnDemand�s service-based solutions provide identity management at a lower cost and with more control than traditional in-house
systems. Based on its own strong IP portfolio and IP licensed from ActivIdentity, idOnDemand�s technology supports a range of corporate
standards, including the strict security and authentication requirements of U.S. government specifications. idOnDemand�s SaaS model enhances
the Company�s ability to provide electronic security credentials for employees, citizens and consumers, with one of the most cost-effective and
secure approaches available. idOnDemand�s commitment to a standards-based approach and its ability to customize
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solutions is very attractive to the Company, as this significantly decreases the challenge and expense of converging physical access systems with
IT security. Additionally, this transaction further strengthens Identive�s position in the growing NFC solutions market through idOnDemand�s
patent-pending One-Time Password (�OTP�) corporate mobile authentication technology.

The idOnDemand acquisition is accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with ASC 805. Under the acquisition
method of accounting, the total purchase consideration, assets acquired and the liabilities assumed is measured at fair value as of the date of
acquisition when control is obtained. The fair value of the consideration transferred and the assets acquired and liabilities assumed was
determined by the Company and in doing so relied in part upon a third-party valuation report to measure the purchase consideration, identifiable
intangible assets acquired and obligations related to earn-out payments.

Subsequent to the filing of the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2011, the Company obtained additional
information related to idOnDemand�s customer base and product offerings which impacted the preliminary purchase price allocation and
measurement of contingent consideration. As a result of this new information, the fair value of contingent consideration, the fair value of
noncontrolling interest as well as the fair value of net identifiable assets acquired was decreased by $5.3 million, $0.2 million and $0.3 million,
respectively as of September 30, 2011, with a corresponding adjustment to goodwill. The following table summarizes the remeasured fair value
of total consideration for idOnDemand controlling and noncontrolling interest, the total fair value of net identifiable assets acquired at the
idOnDemand acquisition date and the resulting goodwill recorded (in thousands):

Cash consideration $ 2,396
Fair value of common stock 3,024
Fair value of contingent consideration 4,758

Fair value of total consideration transferred 10,178
Fair value of noncontrolling interest 468

Fair value of controlling and noncontrolling interest 10,646
Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired (2,847) 

Goodwill $ 7,799

The fair value of the shares of the Company�s common stock issued in connection with the acquisition was determined using the closing market
price of the Company�s common stock as of the idOnDemand acquisition date of $3.64 per share and then discounted to reflect the restriction on
the resale or transfer of shares under the Securities Act. The fair value of the contingent consideration was based on achieving certain revenue
and profit targets as defined under the Stock Purchase Agreement. These contingent payments were probability weighted and also discounted to
present value. The key assumptions in calculating the fair value of contingent consideration are as follows: 22.9% discount rate and probability
adjusted revenues between $1.6 million and $14.5 million. The fair-value of the contingent consideration was classified as liability in accordance
with ASC 480. As of December 31, 2011, there were no significant changes in the range of outcomes for the contingent consideration
recognized as a result of the acquisition of idOnDemand, although the Company recognized $0.7 million of expenses as a result of passage of
time (reduced impact of discounting) in accordance with ASC 480 which has been included in general and administration expenses in the
consolidated statement of operations. The acquisition-date fair value of the noncontrolling interests is derived by determining the fair value of
the acquired business as a whole and then subtracting the consideration transferred by the Company for its controlling interest in idOnDemand.
Subsequent to the year-end, the Company acquired the remaining noncontrolling interests in January 2012 and idOnDemand is now a 100%
owned subsidiary.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed (including measurement period
adjustments) at the idOnDemand acquisition date. The estimated fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the
acquisition is based on management�s best estimates.
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Assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of May 2, 2011 (in thousands):

Accounts receivable $ 65
Inventory 70
Property and equipment 96
Other assets 291
Accounts payable (123) 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (116) 
Deferred revenue (148) 
Intangible assets subject to amortization
Developed technology 2,700
Patents 790
Customer relationships 390
Trade secrets 300
Order backlog 17
Trade name 60
Deferred tax liabilities in connection with acquired intangible assets and inventory fair value adjustment, net (1,545) 

Fair value of idOnDemand net identifiable assets acquired $ 2,847

Intangible assets of $4.3 million consist primarily of developed technology, patents, customer relationships, trade secrets, order backlog, and
trade name. Developed technology, patents and trade secrets relate to idOnDemand�s technology and knowhow which is currently generating
revenue. Customer relationships relate to idOnDemand�s ability to sell existing, in-process and future versions of its products to its existing
customers. Trade names represent future value to be derived from the use of existing trade names. Order backlog represents future revenue to be
derived from confirmed orders. Developed technology, patents and trade name were valued using the relief from royalty method based on
discounted cash flow (�DCF�). A discount rate of 18% was used to value developed technology and trade name and 20% to value patents. The
customer relationships and trade secrets were valued using the income approach based on DCF and using a discount rate of 20%. The discount
rates used in the present value calculations were derived from a weighted average cost of capital (�WACC�) analysis, adjusted to reflect additional
risks related to each asset�s characteristics. The intangible assets of $4.3 million are subject to amortization and the Company expects to amortize
these intangible assets on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives of approximately one to twelve years.

Of the total purchase consideration, $7.8 million was recognized as goodwill, which represents the excess of the purchase consideration of an
acquired business over the fair value of the underlying net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The goodwill arising from the idOnDemand
acquisition is largely attributable to the synergies expected to be realized and is assigned to the Company�s Identity Management reportable
segment in accordance with ASC 350. None of the goodwill recorded as part of the idOnDemand acquisition will be deductible for United States
federal income tax purposes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities resulting from the acquisition of idOnDemand have been netted, where applicable. Following the idOnDemand
acquisition, idOnDemand has become part of the U.S. tax group of the Company�s entities. Accordingly, the deferred tax liability of $1.5 million
which was recognized in the purchase price accounting has been netted with the Company�s existing deferred tax assets. As a result, there was a
$1.5 million reversal of the Company�s valuation allowance. In accordance with ASC 805, the reversal of the valuation allowance was recorded
as a tax benefit in the 2011 second quarter financial statements.

The Company recognized $0.2 million of acquisition-related costs that were expensed in the year ended December 31, 2011. These costs are
included as part of general and administration costs in the consolidated statement of operations.
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The amounts of revenue and earnings of idOnDemand included in the Company�s consolidated statement of operations from the idOnDemand
acquisition date through December 31, 2011 are as follows (in thousands):

Revenues $ 841
Net loss $ 2,557

Acquisition of FCI Smartag Pte. Ltd.

The Company completed the acquisition of FCI Smartag Pte. Ltd. (�Smartag�) on November 19, 2010 (the �Smartag acquisition date�). The
Company paid approximately $3.2 million to acquire all the shares and intellectual property of Smartag, consisting of a one-time cash payment
at the close of the transaction of $1.0 million and a debt note for approximately $2.2 million. The debt note carries an interest rate of 6% per year
and is payable within 30 months from the closing date.

Certain closing balance sheet items in connection with the acquisition of Smartag were subject to post-closing adjustment which was finalized
during the second quarter of 2011. As a result, the net assets acquired increased by $0.1 million and the purchase consideration was increased by
$0.2 million which were accounted for as measurement period adjustments in the second quarter of 2011 with a corresponding adjustment to
goodwill. The fair value of total consideration transferred was determined to be $3.2 million. The Company recognized identifiable intangible
assets of $0.3 million related to the acquisition of Smartag, which are being amortized on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives of
approximately one to five years.

Acquisition of RockWest Technology Group LLC (now doing business as Multicard U.S.)

The Company completed the acquisition of RockWest Technology Group LLC (�RockWest�) on April 14, 2010 (the �RockWest acquisition date�).
As a part of the purchase consideration for the acquisition, the Company issued an aggregate of 2.6 million restricted shares of its common stock
to the sellers of RockWest. The shares issued to the Sellers are subject to a 24-month lock-up from the closing date of the acquisition.
Additionally, the Sellers are eligible to receive limited earn-out payments (�contingent consideration�), based on achieving certain revenue and
profit targets as defined under the Share Purchase Agreement, in the form of shares of common stock subject to a 12-month lock-up period.

The fair value of total consideration transferred, which included contingent consideration, was determined to be $4.5 million as of the RockWest
acquisition date. The fair value of the contingent consideration is classified as liability in accordance with ASC 480. The Company recognized
identifiable intangible assets of $2.2 million and goodwill of $3.0 million related to the acquisition of RockWest. The Company is amortizing the
intangible assets on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives of approximately one to six years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities resulting from the acquisition of RockWest have been netted, where applicable. Following the RockWest
acquisition, RockWest has become part of the U.S. tax group of the Company�s entities. Accordingly, the deferred tax liability of $0.6 million
which was recognized in the purchase price accounting has been netted with the Company�s existing deferred tax assets. As a result, there was a
$0.6 million reversal of the Company�s valuation allowance. In accordance with ASC 805, the release of the valuation allowance was recorded as
a tax benefit in the 2010 second quarter financial statements.

Acquisition of Bluehill ID AG

The Company completed the acquisition of Bluehill ID AG (�Bluehill ID�) on January 4, 2010 (the �Bluehill acquisition date�), in accordance with
the Business Combination Agreement dated as of September 20, 2009, as amended (the �Business Combination Agreement�). A total of
29,422,714, or approximately 92% of Bluehill ID shares outstanding were exchanged for a total of 15,299,797 new shares of the Company�s
common stock.
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Prior to the acquisition, Bluehill ID had granted to BH Capital Management AG (�BHCM�), a company controlled and owned by Ayman S.
Ashour and Mountain Partners AG, an option to purchase up to 3,914,790 bearer shares in Bluehill ID at an exercise price of CHF 1.00 per share
exercisable until June 30, 2014 pursuant to a Call Option Agreement dated September 8, 2009. Mr. Ashour is the former chief executive officer
of Bluehill ID and the current Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company; Mountain Partners AG is a significant stockholder of the
Company and an affiliate of Daniel S. Wenzel, a former director of Bluehill ID and currently a director of the Company. Pursuant to the terms of
the Business Combination Agreement, these options were converted at the closing of the transaction into an option to purchase up to 2,035,691
shares of the Company�s common stock at an exercise price of euro 1.28 per share.

The Bluehill ID acquisition is accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with ASC 805. The fair value of total
consideration transferred and fair value of noncontrolling interest was determined to be $40.6 million as of the Bluehill ID acquisition date. The
Company recognized identifiable intangible assets of $13.9 million and goodwill of $23.3 million related to the acquisition of Bluehill ID. The
Company is amortizing the intangible assets on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives of approximately one to ten years.

Pro forma financial information:

The results for the acquired polyright, idOnDemand, Smartag and RockWest businesses are included in the Company�s consolidated statements
of operations since their respective acquisition dates. As a result of the timing of these acquisitions, the Company�s consolidated results for the
periods presented are not directly comparable. The pro forma financial information is presented for informational purposes only and is not
intended to represent or be indicative of the results of operations that would have been achieved if the polyright, idOnDemand, Smartag, and
RockWest acquisitions had been completed as of the date indicated, and should not be taken as representative of the Company�s future
consolidated results of operations or financial condition. The unaudited pro forma financial information in the table below summarizes the
results of operations of the combined entity, as though the acquisitions had occurred as of the beginning of the periods presented. Preparation of
the pro forma financial information for all periods presented required management to make certain judgments and estimates to determine the pro
forma adjustments such as purchase accounting adjustments, which include, among others, cost of sales resulted from step up of inventory at fair
value, amortization charges from acquired intangible assets, and income tax effects.

Pro forma results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows (in thousands, unaudited):

Year Ended
December 31,

2011 2010
Revenues $ 106,232 $ 99,947
Net loss (11,323) $ 15,048
Weighted average common shares outstanding used in loss per common share � basic
and diluted 54,743 46,317

Net loss per common share � basic and diluted $ (0.21) $ 0.32

3. Fair Value Measurements

The Company determines the fair values of its financial instruments based on a fair value hierarchy, which requires an entity to maximize the
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The classification of a financial asset or
liability within the hierarchy is based upon the
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lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The fair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputs into three levels that may be
used to measure fair value: ASC Topic 820 � Fair Value Measurement and Disclosures (�ASC 820�):

� Level 1 � Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets;

� Level 2 � Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are
not active and model-derived valuations, in which all significant inputs are observable in active markets; and

� Level 3 � Valuations derived from valuation techniques, in which one or more significant inputs are unobservable.
The Company uses the following classifications to measure different financial instruments at fair value, including an indication of the level in
the fair value hierarchy in which each instrument is generally classified:

Cash equivalents include money market fund deposits with maturities of three months or less at the date of acquisition. These financial
instruments are classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

Assets and liabilities that are measured and recognized at fair value on a recurring basis have been classified under the appropriate level of the
fair value hierarchy as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and are as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets:
Money market fund deposits $ 1,506 $ �  $ �  $ 1,506 $ 36 $ �  $ �  $ 36

Liabilities:
Contingent consideration $ �  $ �  $ 5,765 $ 5,765 $ �  $ �  $ 519 $ 519
Money market fund deposits are included in cash and cash equivalents on the Company�s consolidated balance sheets.

76

Edgar Filing: IDENTIVE GROUP, INC. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 97



Table of Contents

As discussed in Note 2 above, the sellers of polyright, idOnDemand and RockWest are eligible to receive limited earn-out payments (�contingent
consideration�) in the form of shares of common stock subject to certain lock-up periods. The fair value of the contingent consideration is based
on achieving certain revenue and profit targets as defined under the applicable acquisition agreement and is payable in shares of the Company�s
common stock. These contingent payments are probability weighted and are discounted to reflect the restriction on the resale or transfer of such
shares. The valuation of the contingent consideration is classified as a Level 3 measurement, because it is based on significant unobservable
inputs and involved management judgment and assumptions about achieving revenue and profits targets and discount rates. The fair value of the
contingent consideration is classified as liability and is remeasured each reporting period in accordance with ASC 480. The contingent
consideration above as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, includes the short-term portion of zero and $0.5 million, respectively,
relating to the RockWest acquisition and $0.1 million and zero, respectively, relating to the polyright acquisition, which is included in the other
accrued expenses and liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. As of December 31, 2011, the Company remeasured the total contingent
consideration to fair value and recognized $0.5 million as an expense during the year ended December 31, 2011, which has been included in
general and administration in the consolidated statements of operations. Below is the summary of contingent consideration by acquisition (in
thousands):

2011 2010

Maximum
amount
payable

Amount
paid

Expense
(income)

recognized for
changes in
fair value

Amount
outstanding

Maximum
amount
payable

Amount
paid

Expense
(income)

recognized for
changes in
fair value

Amount
outstanding

Contingent consideration:
RockWest $ 960 $ 281 $ (238) $ �  $ 960 $ �  $ 221 $ 519
idOnDemand $ 21,000 $ �  $ 706 $ 5,463 $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  
polyright $ 600 $ �  $ 42 $ 302 $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  

$ 22,560 $ 281 $ 510 $ 5,765 $ 960 $ �  $ 221 $ 519

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Non-recurring Basis

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were no assets or liabilities that are measured and recognized at fair value on a non-recurring basis.

4. Stockholders� Equity of Identive Group, Inc.

Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, 40,000 of which have been designated as Series A Participating
Preferred Stock, par value $0.001 per share. No shares of the Company�s preferred stock, including the Series A Participating Preferred Stock,
were outstanding as of December 31, 2011. Identive�s Board of Directors may from time to time, without further action by the Company�s
stockholders, direct the issuance of shares of preferred stock in series and may, at the time of issuance, determine the rights, preferences and
limitations of each series, including voting rights, dividend rights and redemption and liquidation preferences. Satisfaction of any dividend
preferences of outstanding shares of preferred stock would reduce the amount of funds available for the payment of dividends on shares of the
Company�s common stock. Holders of shares of preferred stock may be entitled to receive a preference payment in the event of any liquidation,
dissolution or winding-up of the Company before any payment is made to the holders of shares of the Company�s common stock. Upon the
affirmative vote of Identive�s Board of Directors, without stockholder approval, the Company may issue shares of preferred stock with voting and
conversion rights which could adversely affect the holders of shares of its common stock.
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Stockholders Rights Plan

On November 8, 2002, the Company�s Board of Directors approved a stockholders rights plan. Under the plan, the Company declared a dividend
of one preferred share purchase right for each share of the Company�s common stock held by the Company�s stockholders of record as of the
close of business on November 25, 2002. Each preferred share purchase right entitles the holder to purchase from the Company one
one-thousandth of a share of Series A participating preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share, at a price of $30.00, subject to adjustment. The
rights will become exercisable only upon the occurrence of certain events. If a person or group acquires, or announces a tender or exchange offer
that would result in the acquisition of 15% or more of the Company�s common stock while the stockholders rights plan remains in place, then,
unless the rights are redeemed by the Company for $0.001 per right, the rights will become exercisable by all rights holders except the acquiring
person or group for shares of the Company or the third-party acquirer having a value of twice the right�s then-current exercise price. The
stockholders rights plan may have the effect of deterring or delaying a change in control of the Company.

On December 10, 2008, November 16, 2009 and November 15, 2010, the Company and the rights agent entered into amendments to the rights
agreement to provide, among other things, that the execution or delivery of the Hirsch merger agreement and the business combination with
Bluehill ID, respectively, the public announcement and consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby, and the issuance of shares in the
Company�s November 2010 private placement offering would not cause the rights to become exercisable under the purchase agreement.

Public Offering

In May 2011 the Company issued 7,843,137 shares of common stock at a price of $2.55 per share in an underwritten public offering for a net
consideration of approximately $18.2 million after incurring approximately $0.4 million in underwriting discounts and commissions and
issuance costs related to the offering.

Private Placement

In November 2010, the Company issued 4,097,626 shares of common stock at a price of $2.525 per share and warrants to purchase an additional
4,097,626 shares of its common stock at an exercise price of $2.65 per share in a private placement to accredited and other qualified investors
(the �Investors� or �Warrant holders�), for net consideration of approximately $9.6 million after incurring approximately $0.8 million as issuance
costs related to the private placement. The warrants are exercisable beginning on the date of issuance and ending on the fifth anniversary of the
date of issuance. Any portion of warrants not exercised prior to the expiration date will become void and of no value and such warrants shall be
terminated and no longer outstanding. The Company calculated the fair value of the warrants using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and
determined the fair value to be $6.3 million. The warrants are classified as equity in accordance with ASC Topic 505, Equity (�ASC 505�) as the
settlement of the warrants will be in shares.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company issued 0.4 million shares of its common stock to the warrant holders upon exercise of
the warrants as disclosed in the consolidated statements of equity and comprehensive loss.

Acquisition Warrants

As part of the consideration paid by the Company in connection with the acquisition of Hirsch Electronics, the Company issued approximately
4.7 million warrants to purchase shares of the Company�s common stock at an exercise price of $3.00, in exchange for the outstanding capital
stock of Hirsch. Also, as part of the Hirsch transaction, the Company issued 0.2 million warrants to purchase shares of the Company�s common
stock in exchange for outstanding Hirsch warrants at exercise prices in the range between $2.42 and $3.03, with a weighted average exercise
price of $2.79. All warrants issued in connection with the Hirsch transaction will
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become exercisable for a period of two years on April 30, 2012. The Company measured the fair value of the warrants using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model and determined the fair value to be $1.5 million. The warrants are classified as equity in accordance with ASC 505 as the
settlement of the warrants will be in shares.

2011 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (�ESPP�)

In June 2011, Identive�s stockholders approved the 2011 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the �ESPP�). Initially, 2.0 million shares of common
stock are reserved for issuance over the term of the ESPP, which is ten years. In addition, on the first day of each fiscal year commencing with
fiscal year 2012, the aggregate number of shares reserved for issuance under the ESPP is automatically increased by a number equal to the
lowest of (i) 750,000 shares, (ii) two percent of all shares outstanding at the end of the previous year, or (iii) an amount determined by the Board.
If any option granted under the ESPP expires or terminates for any reason without having been exercised in full, the unpurchased shares subject
to that option will again be available for issuance under the ESPP. Under the ESPP, eligible employees may purchase shares of common stock at
85% of the lesser of fair market value of the Company�s common stock at the beginning of or end of the applicable offering period. Each offering
period lasts for six months. The first six-month exercise period under the ESPP commenced on July 1, 2011 and no shares have been issued as of
December 31, 2011. The Company recognized approximately $134,000 in stock compensation expense related to ESPP during the year ended
December 31, 2011, of which approximately $21,000 is included in cost of revenue, approximately $31,000 in research and development,
approximately $43,000 in sales and marketing and approximately $39,000 in general and administrative in the consolidated statements of
operations. As of December 31, 2011, there was $0.4 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to the ESPP that is expected to be
recognized on a straight-line basis over the remaining vesting periods.

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

The Company has various stock-based compensation plans to attract, motivate, retain and reward employees, directors and consultants by
providing its Board of Directors (the �Board�) or a committee thereof the discretion to award equity incentives to these persons. The Company�s
stock-based compensation plans, the majority of which are stockholder approved, consist of the Director Option Plan, 1997 Stock Option Plan,
2000 Stock Option Plan, 2007 Stock Option Plan (�the 2007 Plan�), the Bluehill ID AG Executive Bonus Plan and Share Option Plan (the �Bluehill
Plans�), the 2010 Bonus and Incentive Plan (the �2010 Plan�), and the 2011 Incentive Compensation Plan (the �2011 Plan�).

Stock Bonus and Incentive Plans

In connection with its acquisition of Bluehill ID AG in January 2010, the Company assumed the Bluehill Plans, pursuant to which options to
purchase 2.1 million shares of the Company�s common stock may be granted to executives, key employees and other service providers, including
the Chief Executive Officer (�CEO�) and Chief Financial Officer (�CFO�), based upon the achievement of certain performance targets or other terms
and conditions as determined by the administrator of the plans. No grants have been made under these plans since the date of assumption.

In June 2010, Identive�s stockholders approved the 2010 Plan under which cash and equity-based awards may be granted to executive officers,
including the CEO and CFO, and other key employees (�Participants�) of the Company and its subsidiaries and members of the Company�s Board,
as designated from time to time by the Compensation Committee of the Board (the �Committee�). An aggregate of 3.0 million shares of the
Company�s common stock were reserved for issuance under the 2010 Plan as equity-based awards, including shares, nonqualified stock options,
restricted stock or deferred stock awards. These awards provide the executives and employees with the opportunity to earn shares of common
stock depending on the extent to which certain performance goals are met. For services rendered, the executives shall be paid an incentive bonus
to be received in cash and shares of the Company with certain lock-up periods. In addition, the executives and employees are
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entitled to receive a grant of non-qualified stock options in an amount equal to 20% of the number of U.S. dollars in the participant�s base salary.
The Committee may make incentive awards based on such terms, conditions and criteria as it considers appropriate, including awards that are
subject to the achievement of certain performance criteria. Stock awards are generally fully vested at the time of grant, but subject to a 24-month
lock-up from the date of grant. Since the award of share-based payments described above represents an obligation to issue a variable number of
Company�s shares determined on the basis of a monetary value derived solely on variations in an operating performance measure (and not on the
basis of variations in the fair value of the entity�s equity shares), the award is considered a share-based liability in accordance with ASC 480 and
is remeasured to fair value each reporting period. While the Company will maintain its current 2010 Plan for making performance-based awards
to Participants, all future equity awards granted under the 2010 Plan will be issued pursuant to the 2011 Plan. As of December 31, 2011, a total
of 0.7 million shares have been issued pursuant to the 2010 Plan, of which 0.1 million were issued during the fiscal year ended December 31,
2010 as disclosed in the consolidated statements of equity and comprehensive loss.

On June 6, 2011, Identive�s stockholders approved the 2011 Plan, which is administered by the Compensation Committee of the Company�s
Board of Directors. The plan is to provide stock options, stock units, restricted shares, and stock appreciation rights to be granted to officers,
directors, employees, consultants, and other persons who provide services to the Company or any related entity. The 2011 Plan serves as a
successor plan to the Company�s 2007 Plan. The Company reserved 4.0 million shares of common stock plus any remaining common stock
available for delivery under the 2007 Plan and the 2010 Plan as of June 6, 2011. In aggregate, as of June 6, 2011, 8.6 million shares were
available for future grants under the 2011 Plan, including shares rolled over from 2007 Plan and 2010 Plan.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense (Share Bonus and Incentive Plans)

The following table illustrates the stock-based compensation expense resulting from stock bonus and incentive plans included in the
consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009

Cost of revenue $ 5 $ 0 $ �  
Research and development 39 86 �  
Selling and marketing 108 290 �  
General and administrative 503 1,647 �  

Total $ 655 $ 2,023 $ �  

Of the total amounts for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, an amount of $0.4 million, $1.9 million and zero was accrued for
and included in the accrued compensation and related benefits in the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

Stock Option Plans

Stock options plans are generally time-based and expire seven to ten years from the date of grant. Vesting varies, with some options vesting 25%
each year over four years; some vesting 1/12th per month over one year; some vesting 100% after one year; and some vesting 1/12th per month,
commencing four years from the date of grant. The Director Option Plan and 1997 Stock Option Plan both expired in March 2007. The 2000
Stock Option Plan expired in December 2010 and as noted above, the 2007 Plan was discontinued in June 2011 in connection with the approval
of the 2011 Plan. As a result, options will no longer be granted under any of these plans.

As of December 31, 2011, an aggregate of approximately 0.3 million granted options were outstanding under Director Option Plan and 1997
Stock Option Plan, 0.3 million granted options were outstanding under the
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2000 Stock Option Plan, 1.4 million granted options were outstanding under the 2007 Plan, and 0.3 million granted options were outstanding
under the 2011 Plan. These outstanding options remain exercisable in accordance with the terms of the original grant agreements under the
respective plans.

A summary of the activity under the Company�s stock-based compensation plans for the year ended December 31, 2011 is as follows:

Shares
Available
for Grant

Stock Options Stock Awards

Number
Outstanding

Average
Exercise Price

per share

Average
Intrinsic

Value

Remaining
Contractual

Life (in years)
Number
Granted

Fair
Value

Balance at January 1, 2009 (1,042,442
exercisable at $9.04) 1,135,219 1,836,691 $ 6.51 $ 13,652 5.62
Authorized 2,000,000
Granted (791,687) 791,687 $ 2.46 0 0
Cancelled or Expired 143,842 (283,107) $ 11.24

Balance at December 31, 2009
(1,094,194 exercisable at $6.60) 2,487,374 2,345,271 $ 4.57 $ 21,736 5.48

Authorized 5,080,000
Granted (167,947) 69,250 $ 1.88 98,697 $ 174,350
Cancelled or Expired 142,850 (596,833) $ 7.36
Exercised (7,500) $ 1.50

Balance at December 31, 2010
(1,100,076 exercisable at $4.11) 7,542,277 1,810,188 $ 3.56 $ 128,300 4.66

Authorized 4,000,000
Granted (1,447,980) 820,716 $ 2.53 627,264 $ 1,627,969
Cancelled or Expired 20,035 (343,082) $ 7.27
Exercised (21,001) $ 2.36

Balance at December 31, 2011 10,114,332 2,266,821 $ 2.86 $ 49,298 5.9

Vested or expected to vest at
December 31, 2011 2,179,800 $ 2.88 $ 41,895 5.83

Exercisable at December 31, 2011 1,698,588 $ 3.00 $ 11,929 5.43

The following table summarizes information about options outstanding as of December 31, 2011:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Range of Exercise Prices
Number

Outstanding

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Life
(Years)

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price
Number

Exercisable

Weighted
Average

Exercise

Price
$ 1.51 - $ 2.40 563,087 5.59 $ 2.25 296,608 $ 2.32
$ 2.41 - $ 2.64 762,876 8.46 2.55 538,203 2.59
$ 2.65 - $ 3.12 535,960 4.12 2.99 476,607 2.99
$ 3.13 - $ 8.34 399,898 3.94 4.01 382,170 4.01
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$ 1.51- $10.74 2,266,821 5.90 $ 2.86 1,698,588 $ 3.00
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The weighted-average grant date fair value per option for options granted during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 was $2.53,
$1.88 and $1.38, respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, 21,001, 7,500, and zero options, respectively, were
exercised. Cash proceeds from the exercise of stock options were $56,591, $11,250 and zero during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010,
and 2009, respectively.

The fair value of option grants was estimated by using the Black-Scholes-Merton model with the following weighted-average assumptions for
each of the three years ended December 31:

2011 2010 2009
Risk-free interest rate 0.69% 1.58% 1.81% 
Expected volatility 102.4% 89% 75% 
Expected term in years 4.24 3.92 4.00
Dividend yield None None None

Risk-Free Interest Rate: The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant for the expected term of
the option.

Expected Volatility: The Company�s computation of expected volatility for the three years ended December 31, 2011 is based on the historical
volatility of the Company�s stock for a time period equivalent to the expected term.

Expected Term: The Company�s expected term represents the period that the Company�s stock-based awards are expected to be outstanding and
was determined for the three years ended December 31, 2011 based on historical experience of similar awards, giving consideration to the
contractual terms of the stock-based awards, vesting schedules and expectations of future employee behavior.

Dividend Yield: The dividend yield assumption is based on the Company�s history and expectation of dividend payouts.

Forfeiture Rates: Compensation expense recognized in the consolidated statements of operations for the three years ended December 31, 2011 is
based on awards ultimately expected to vest, and reflects estimated forfeitures. ASC 718, Compensation-Stock Compensation, requires
forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense (Stock Options)

The following table illustrates the stock-based compensation expense resulting from stock options included in the consolidated statements of
operations for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Cost of revenue $ 15 $ 14 $ 15
Research and development 12 (14) 30
Selling and marketing 333 222 159
General and administrative 79 330 143

Stock-based compensation expense before income taxes $ 439 $ 552 $ 347
Income tax benefit 0 0 0

Stock-based compensation expense after income taxes $ 439 $ 552 $ 347
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At December 31, 2011, there was $0.6 million of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense, net of estimated forfeitures related to
non-vested options, that is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of two years.

Common Stock Reserved for Future Issuance

As of December 31, 2011, the Company has reserved an aggregate of approximately 14.4 million shares of its common stock for future issuance
under its various equity incentive plans, of which approximately 8.0 million shares are reserved for future grants under the 2011 Plan and 2010
Plan, approximately 2.3 million shares are reserved for future issuance pursuant to outstanding options under all stock options and incentive
plans, 2.0 million shares are reserved for future issuance under the ESPP and approximately 2.1 million shares are reserved for future issuance
under the Bluehill Plans.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company has reserved an aggregate of approximately 3.3 million shares of common stock for future issuance in
connection with its acquisition of Bluehill ID, consisting of approximately 2.0 million shares for the outstanding options assumed at the closing
of the Bluehill ID acquisition and approximately 1.3 million shares for the noncontrolling shareholders of Bluehill ID.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company has reserved an aggregate of approximately 2.6 million shares of common stock for future issuance for
the contingent consideration in connection with its acquisition of idOnDemand and polyright, consisting of approximately 2.5 million shares for
idOnDemand and approximately 0.1 million shares for polyright.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company has reserved an aggregate of approximately 8.6 million shares of common stock for future issuance
pursuant to outstanding warrants, consisting of approximately 3.7 million shares pursuant to outstanding warrants in connection with the
November 2010 private placement as described above and approximately 4.9 million shares pursuant to outstanding warrants in connection with
the Hirsch acquisition.

Comprehensive Loss Attributable to Identive Group, Inc.

Comprehensive loss consists of the following (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009

Net loss $ (9,970) $ (10,148) $ (14,179) 
Other comprehensive loss
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment (1,612) (3,161) (139) 

Total comprehensive loss (11,582) (13,309) (14,318) 
Less: comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling interest 571 955 �  

Comprehensive loss attributable to Identive Group, Inc. $ (11,011) $ (12,354) $ (14,318) 
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5. Net Loss per Common Share Attributable to Identive Group, Inc.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net loss per common share attributable to Identive Group, Inc. (in thousands,
except per share amounts):

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Net loss attributable to Identive Group, Inc.:
Continuing operations $ (9,502) $ (9,738) $ (14,562) 
Discontinued operations �  220 383

Net loss attributable to Identive Group, Inc. $ (9,502) $ (9,518) $ (14,179) 

Weighted average shares used in (loss) income per common share � basic and diluted 53,748 42,722 22,047
Net (loss) income per common share attributable to Identive Group, Inc. � basic and diluted
Continuing operations $ (0.18) $ (0.23) $ (0.66) 
Discontinued operations $ �  $ 0.01 $ 0.02

Net loss per common share attributable to Identive Group, Inc. � basic and diluted $ (0.18) $ (0.22) $ (0.64) 

Basic and diluted net loss per share is based upon the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. For the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, common stock equivalents consisting of outstanding stock options and warrants were excluded from
the calculation of diluted loss per share because these securities were anti-dilutive due to the net loss in the respective period. For the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, the total number of shares excluded from diluted loss per share relating to these securities was
2,181,441, 2,675,297, and 52,330, respectively in each period.

6. Inventories

The Company�s inventories are stated at the lower of standard cost, which approximates actual cost, or market. Inventories consist of (in
thousands):

December 31
2011 2010

Raw materials $ 4,243 $ 4,164
Work in progress 160 241
Finished goods 4,860 6,179

Total $ 9,263 $ 10,584

7. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, net consists of (in thousands):

December 31
2011 2010

Land, building and leasehold improvements $ 2,277 $ 2,082
Furniture, fixture and office equipment 5,755 5,601
Plant and machinery 5,255 3,485
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Automobiles �  61
Purchased software 1,299 1,279

Total 14,586 12,508
Accumulated depreciation (7,887) (7,135) 

Property and equipment, net $ 6,699 $ 5,373
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The Company recorded depreciation expense, including amortization expense on capitalized leased assets, in the amount of approximately $1.5
million, $1.0 million, and $0.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The net increase of $0.8 million in
accumulated depreciation is due to depreciation expense of $1.5 million recorded during the year, offset by $0.5 million change in foreign
exchange rates between the balance sheet dates and disposal of fully depreciated assets of $0.2 million.

8. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill

The following table presents goodwill by segment as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and changes in the carrying amount of goodwill (in
thousands):

Identity
Total Management ID Products

Balance at December 31, 2009 $ 21,895 $ 21,895 $ �  
Goodwill acquired during the period 26,948 17,098 9,850
Currency translation adjustment (1,717) (1,038) (679) 

Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 47,126 $ 37,955 $ 9,171
Goodwill acquired during the period 10,518 10,518 �  
Goodwill measurement period adjustment 118 �  118
Currency translation adjustment 642 365 277

Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 58,404 $ 48,838 $ 9,566

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company recorded goodwill of $10.5 million in connection with its acquisition of idOnDemand
and polyright as described in Note 2 above. In addition, the Company also adjusted goodwill by $0.1 million in connection with its acquisition of
Smartag as a measurement period adjustment. The goodwill related to the Bluehill and polyright acquisitions is designated in a currency other
than United States Dollars and is adjusted each reporting period for the change in foreign exchange rates between the balance sheet dates. In
accordance with its accounting policy and ASC 350, the Company tests its goodwill and any other intangibles with indefinite lives annually for
impairment and assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment on an interim basis. The Company performed its annual impairment test
for all reporting units on December 1, 2011 and 2010 and concluded that there was no impairment to goodwill during the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010.
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Intangible Assets

The following table summarizes the gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization for the intangible assets resulting from acquisitions:

(In thousands)
Order

Backlog
Trade
Secrets Patents

Existing
Technology

Customer
Relationship

Trade
Name Total

Cost:

Amortization period 0.25-1 year 1 -2 years 12 years 6 -15 years 4 -15 years

1 - 3 years
and

Indefinite

Balance at December 31, 2009 $ �  $ �  $ �  $ 4,600 $ 10,350 $ 7,800 $ 22,750

Acquired as part of Bluehill ID
acquisition 734 �  �  784 10,918 1,491 13,927
Acquired as part of RockWest
acquisition 30 �  �  �  2,210 �  2,240
Acquired as part of Smartag
acquisition (10) �  �  160 70 40 260
Currency translation
adjustment (30) �  �  (82) (806) (110) (1,028) 

Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 724 $ �  $ �  $ 5,462 $ 22,742 $ 9,221 $ 38,149
Acquired as a part of
idOnDemand acquisition 17 300 790 2,700 390 60 $ 4,257
Acquired as a part of polyright
acquisition 246 �  �  �  1,290 �  $ 1,536
Currency translation
adjustment (39) �  �  8 373 86 $ 428

Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 948 $ 300 $ 790 $ 8,170 $ 24,795 $ 9,367 $ 44,370

Accumulated Amortization:
Balance at December 31, 2009 $ �  $ �  $ �  $ 208 $ 460 $ �  $ 668

Amortization expense 728 �  �  385 2,525 1 3,639
Currency translation
adjustment (10) �  �  2 (15) �  (23) 

Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 718 $ �  $ �  $ 595 $ 2,970 $ 1 $ 4,284
Amortization expense 235 120 44 715 2,946 37 $ 4,097
Currency translation
adjustment (5) �  �  (15) 8 �  $ (12) 

Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 948 $ 120 $ 44 $ 1,295 $ 5,924 $ 38 $ 8,369

Intangible assets, net at
December 31, 2011 $ �  $ 180 $ 746 $ 6,875 $ 18,871 $ 9,329 $ 36,001

Intangible Assets, net at
December 31, 2010 $ 6 $ �  $ �  $ 4,867 $ 19,772 $ 9,220 $ 33,865
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During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company recorded intangible assets of $5.8 million in connection with its acquisition of
idOnDemand and polyright as described in Note 2 above. The intangibles acquired in connection with acquisitions of polyright and Bluehill ID
are designated in a currency other than United States Dollars and are adjusted each reporting period for the change in foreign exchange rates
between the balance sheet dates.

Intangible assets of $36.0 million and $33.9 million as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively, include intangible assets
which are not subject to amortization of $9.3 million and $9.2 million as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. Intangible
assets subject to amortization will be amortized over their useful lives as mentioned in the table above. The Company performed its impairment
test for both amortizable and unamortizable intangible assets in accordance with its accounting policy as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and
concluded that there was no impairment to intangible assets during the years then ended.

The following table illustrates the amortization expense included in the consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009 (in thousand):

Year Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009

Cost of revenue $ 1,114 $ 1,113 $ 208
Selling and marketing $ 2,983 $ 2,526 $ 460

Total $ 4,097 $ 3,639 $ 668

The estimated future amortization expense of purchased intangible assets with definite lives for the next five years is as follows (in thousands):

Year ending December 31:
2012 $ 4,397
2013 3,962
2014 2,990
2015 2,989
2016 and thereafter 12,396

Total $ 26,734

9. Related-Party Transactions

Prior to the acquisition of Hirsch by the Company, effective November 1994, Hirsch had entered into a settlement agreement (the �1994
Settlement Agreement�) with two limited partnerships, Secure Keyboards, Ltd. (�Secure Keyboards�) and Secure Networks, Ltd. (�Secure
Networks�). Secure Keyboards and Secure Networks were related to Hirsch through certain common shareholders and limited partners, including
Hirsch�s then President Lawrence Midland, who is now a Senior Vice President and a director of the Company. Following the acquisition,
Mr. Midland continues to own 30% of Secure Keyboards and 9% of Secure Networks.

On April 8, 2009, Secure Keyboards, Secure Networks and Hirsch amended and restated the 1994 Settlement Agreement to replace the
royalty-based payment arrangement under the 1994 Settlement Agreement with a new, definitive installment payment schedule with contractual
payments to be made in future periods through 2020 (the �2009 Settlement Agreement�). Prior to the acquisition of Hirsch by the Company, the
Company was not a party to the 2009 Settlement Agreement. The Company has, however, provided Secure Keyboards and Secure Networks
with a limited guarantee of Hirsch�s payment obligations under the 2009 Settlement Agreement (the �Guarantee�). The 2009 Settlement Agreement
and the Guarantee became effective
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upon the acquisition of Hirsch on April 30, 2009. Hirsch�s annual payment to Secure Keyboards and Secure Networks in any given year under
the 2009 Settlement Agreement is subject to increase based on the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index during the prior calendar
year.

The final payment to Secure Networks is due on January 30, 2012 and the final payment to Secure Keyboards is due on January 30, 2021.
Hirsch�s payment obligations under the 2009 Settlement Agreement will continue through the calendar year period ending December 31, 2020,
unless Hirsch elects at any time on or after January 1, 2012 to earlier satisfy its obligations by making a lump-sum payment to Secure
Keyboards.

The Company recognized $0.8 million and $0.8 million of expense during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, in its
consolidated statements of operations for the interest accreted on the discounted liability amount.

The payment amounts for related party liability for the next five years is as follows (in thousands):

Year ending December 31:
2012 $ 1,076
2013 1,131
2014 1,187
2015 1,247
2016 and thereafter 7,766
Present value discount factor (4,028) 

Total $ 8,379

10. Debt Note, Mortgage Loan and Line of Credit Payable to Bank

In connection with its acquisition of Smartag, the Company issued a debt note with a face value of $2.2 million to FCI Asia Pte. Ltd. The debt
note carries an interest rate of 6% per year, compounded daily and is payable within 30 months from the closing date. The Company is obligated
to pay the principal and accrued interest on a quarterly basis beginning February 19, 2011. The Company may at any time prepay the principal
amount of this debt note, in whole or in part, together with accrued interest thereon, without penalty. The discount for prepayment shall be 10%
on any remaining amount outstanding under the debt note. The debt note is secured by the grant of first-priority ranking legal security over all
the shares and assets of Smartag. The Company recorded interest expense on the debt note of $134,000 and $3,000 during the year ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. As of December 31, 2011 approximately $1.3 million was outstanding under the debt note, of which
$0.8 million was shown as a current liability on the consolidated balance sheet.

In connection with its acquisition of Bluehill ID, the Company acquired an obligation for a mortgage loan and a related revolving line of credit
payable to a bank. The mortgage loan and the revolving line of credit are related to one of the 100% owned subsidiaries of Bluehill ID and are
secured by the land and building to which it relates as well as total inventory, machinery, stock, products and raw materials of the subsidiary.
Amounts outstanding under the mortgage loan accrue interest at 5.50%, and interest is payable monthly. The mortgage loan will mature in 2026.
The Company is obligated to pay a monthly amount of approximately $4,900, over the life of the mortgage loan towards the principal amount in
addition to monthly interest payments. The total amount that can be advanced under the line of credit is approximately $310,000. The advances
on the revolving line of credit accrue interest at a base rate determined by the bank plus 2%, payable quarterly. Any advances over the limit will
accrue interest at 10.75%. The revolving line of credit is ongoing with no specific end date. The Company recorded interest expense of
approximately $84,000 and $71,000 during the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010
approximately $0.8 million and $0.9 million, respectively was outstanding under the mortgage loan. As of December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010, zero and approximately $0.2 million in advances were outstanding under the revolving line of credit.
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In addition, one of the Company�s subsidiaries had a revolving line of credit payable to a bank. The revolving line of credit matured on March 10,
2011 and the balance was fully paid off on April 7, 2011. The Company recorded interest expense on the line of credit of $5,600 during the year
ended December 31, 2011. As of December 31, 2010, approximately $0.2 million was outstanding under the revolving line of credit.

11. Income Taxes

Loss before income taxes for domestic and non-U.S. continuing operations is as follows:

(In thousands) 2011 2010 2009
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes:
U.S. $ (7,856) $ (3,131) $ (7,744) 
Foreign (3,555) (7,582) (8,367) 

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes $ (11,411) $ (10,713) $ (16,111) 

The benefit (provision) for income taxes consisted of the following:

December 31,
(In thousands) 2011 2010 2009
Deferred:
Federal $ 2,098 $ 341 $ 1,541
State �  250 573
Foreign �  �  306

$ 2,098 $ 591 $ 2,420

Current
Federal $ (173) $ (166) $ (45) 
State (91) 22 (152) 
Foreign (393) (102) (674) 

Total current (657) (246) (871) 

Total benefit (provision) for income taxes $ 1,441 $ 345 $ 1,549

Significant items making up deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

December 31,
(In thousands) 2011 2010
Deferred tax assets:
Allowances not currently deductible for tax purposes $ 4,557 $ 3,853
Net operating loss carryforwards 44,502 43,006
Accrued and other 214 139

49,273 46,998
Less valuation allowance (43,189) (42,537) 

6,084 4,461
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Deferred tax liability:
Depreciation and amortization (9,202) (9,795) 
Other (2,976) (1,461) 

Net deferred tax liability $ (6,094) $ (6,795) 

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company would have had a tax expense of $0.5 million, except for the utilization of net
operating loss carryforwards for which the Company had previously established a
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full valuation allowance. Because of the full valuation allowance recorded for the deferred tax assets, the benefit from the utilization of this tax
attribute had not been previously recognized.

A valuation allowance of $43.2 million and $42.5 million at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively, has been recorded to
offset the related net deferred tax assets as the Company is unable to conclude that it is more likely than not that such deferred tax assets will be
realized. The net deferred tax liabilities are primarily from foreign tax liabilities as well as intangibles acquired as a result of the acquisitions of
Hirsch and Bluehill ID, which are not deductible for tax purposes. Federal and state deferred tax assets cannot be used to offset foreign deferred
tax liabilities.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company has net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $52.1 million for federal, $29.8 million for state
and $99.7 million for foreign income tax purposes. If not utilized, these carryforwards will begin to expire beginning in 2012 for federal
purposes and have already begun to expire for state and foreign purposes.

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 (the �Act�) limits the use of net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards in certain situations where changes occur
in the stock ownership. The Company completed its acquisition of Bluehill ID on January 4, 2010 which resulted in a stock ownership change as
defined by the Act. This transaction resulted in limitations on the annual utilization of federal and state net operating loss carryforwards. As a
result, the Company reevaluated its deferred tax assets available under the Act. The loss carryforward amounts, excluding the valuation
allowance, presented above have been adjusted for the limitation resulting from the change in ownership in accordance with the provisions of the
Act. Since the valuation allowance was recorded against the loss carryforwards, this limitation did not result in an impact to the Company�s
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2010.

The Company intends to distribute earnings from one of its foreign subsidiaries in 2012 and a deferred tax liability has been calculated for this
future distribution. The Company has no present intention of remitting undistributed earnings of other foreign subsidiaries, and accordingly, no
deferred tax liability has been established relative to these undistributed earnings.

The provision for taxes reconciles to the amount computed by applying the statutory federal tax rate to the loss before income taxes from
continuing operation is as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Statutory federal tax rate 34% 34% 34% 
Acquisition Adjustments (2)% (2)% 11% 
State taxes, net of federal benefit 2% 3% (0)% 
Foreign taxes benefits provided for at rates other than U.S. statutory rate (3)% (1)% (0)% 
Change in valuation allowance (17)% (26)% (27)% 
Permanent Differences (1)% (5)% (9)% 
Other 0% 0% 1% 

Effective income tax expense rate 13% 3% 10% 

During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company adopted the provisions of, and accounted for uncertain tax positions in accordance with
ASC 740. ASC 740 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise�s financial statements. It prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to
be taken in a tax return. ASC 740 also provides guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods,
disclosure, and transition.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits with an impact on the Company�s consolidated balance sheets
or results of operations is as follows:

(In thousands) 2011 2010 2009
Balance at January 1 $ 494 $ 357 $ 136
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year 0 19 63
Additions for tax positions of prior years 135 136 158
Reductions for tax positions of prior years 0 (18) 0

Balance at December 31 $ 629 $ 494 $ 357

While timing of the resolution and/or finalization of tax audits is uncertain, the Company does not believe that its unrecognized tax benefits as
disclosed in the above table would materially change in the next 12 months.

In addition, as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company recognized liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits of $2.6 million, $2.0
million and $2.0 million, respectively, which were accounted for as a decrease to deferred tax assets. Since there was a full valuation allowance
against these deferred tax assets, there was no impact on the Company�s consolidated balance sheets or results of operations for the years 2011,
2010 and 2009. Also the subsequent recognition, if any, of these previously unrecognized tax benefits would not affect the effective tax rate.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense. As of December 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009, approximately $172,000, $129,000 and $95,000, respectively, of accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions.

The Company files U.S. federal, U.S. state and foreign tax returns. The Company generally is no longer subject to tax examinations for years
prior to 2007. However, if loss carryforwards of tax years prior to 2007 are utilized in the U.S., these tax years may become subject to
investigation by the tax authorities.

12. Segment Reporting, Geographic Information and Major Customers

ASC Topic 280 � Segment Reporting (�ASC 280�) establishes standards for the reporting by public business enterprises of information about
operating segments, products and services, geographic areas, and major customers. The method for determining what information to report is
based on the way that management organizes the operating segments within the Company for making operating decisions and assessing financial
performance. An operating segment is defined as a component of an enterprise that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenue and incur expenses and about which separate financial information is available. The Company�s chief operating decision makers
(�CODM�) are considered to be its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

The Company currently has two business segments that reflect the Company�s current organizational structure and focus on providing secure
identification solutions. The Company�s reportable segments are �Identity Management Solutions & Services� (�Identity Management�)
and�Identification Products & Components� (�ID Products�).

� In the Identity Management segment the Company designs, supplies and manages solutions, systems and services that enable the
secure management of credentials in diverse markets. These credentials are used for the identification of people and the granting of
rights and privileges based on defined policies. The Company�s Identity Management offerings include integrated physical and
logical (i.e., PC, network or cyber) access systems, integrated ID solutions, cashless payment solutions and cloud-based credential
management systems, all of which are designed to enable organizations to enhance convenience and speed for users while supporting
greater security and compliance to regulatory requirements. The Company sells its Identity Management solutions under the Hirsch
Identive,

91

Edgar Filing: IDENTIVE GROUP, INC. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 116



Table of Contents

idOnDemand and Multicard brands, as well as additional country or market specific brands. The Company�s Identity Management
end customers operate in the government, education, enterprise and commercial markets and can be found in multiple vertical market
segments including healthcare, banking, industrial, retail and critical infrastructure. Business units in the Identity Management
segment include Hirsch Identive, idOnDemand and Multicard (which includes polyright) and these business units were aggregated
based on similar economic characteristics and products offerings as well as type of customers.

� In the ID Products segment the Company designs and manufactures both standard and highly specialized RFID and
smart card technology-based products and components, including NFC products and components, that are used in the
government, enterprise and consumer markets for a number of identity-based and related applications, including logical
access, physical access, eHealth, eGovernment, citizen ID, mobile payments, loyalty schemes, and transportation and
event ticketing. The ID Products segment includes the results of the Company�s ID Infrastructure (formerly SCM
Microsystems) and Transponder business units and these business units were aggregated based on similar economic
characteristics and distribution channels as well as type of customers. The Company�s ID Infrastructure and
Transponder products are primarily sold under the Identive brand.

The CODM reviews financial information and business performance for each operating segment and also at the Identity Management and ID
Products reportable segment level. The Company evaluates the performance of its segments at the revenue and gross margin level. The CODM
does not review operating expenses or asset information for purposes of assessing performance or allocating resources.

Summary information by segment for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2011 2010 2009
Identity Management:
Revenues from external customers $ 56,473 $ 47,521 $ 17,408
Intersegment revenue 375 348 584

Total Identity Management revenue 56,848 47,869 17,992
Elimination of intersegment revenues (375) (348) (584) 

Total revenue $ 56,473 $ 47,521 $ 17,408

Gross profit $ 25,556 $ 25,013 $ 10,222

Gross profit % 45% 53% 59% 
ID Products:
Revenues from external customers $ 46,235 $ 37,322 $ 23,907
Intersegment revenue 5,304 2,078 309

Total ID Products revenue 51,539 39,400 24,216
Elimination of intersegment revenues (5,304) (2,078) (309) 

Total revenue $ 46,235 $ 37,322 $ 23,907

Gross profit $ 17,246 $ 12,345 $ 9,122

Gross profit % 37% 33% 38% 
Total:
Net revenue $ 102,708 $ 84,843 $ 41,315
Gross profit 42,802 37,358 19,344
Gross profit % 42% 44% 47% 
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Geographic revenue is based on selling location. Information regarding revenue by geographic region is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2011 2010 2009
Revenues:
Americas $ 43,754 $ 46,793 $ 24,712
Europe 42,171 29,824 10,005
Asia-Pacific 16,783 8,226 6,598

Total $ 102,708 $ 84,843 $ 41,315

Revenues:
Americas 43% 55% 60% 
Europe 41% 35% 24% 
Asia-Pacific 16% 10% 16% 

Total 100% 100% 100% 

No customers exceeded 10% of total revenue for 2011, 2010 or 2009. No customer represented 10% of the Company�s accounts receivable
balance at December 31, 2011 or 2010.

The Company tracks assets by physical location. Long-lived assets by geographic location as of December 2011, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

December 31,
(in thousands) 2011 2010 2009
Property and equipment, net:
Americas $ 656 $ 411 $ 242
Europe 3,970 1,267 385
Asia-Pacific 2,073 3,695 56

Total $ 6,699 $ 5,373 $ 683

13. Other Financial Information

Loss and Impairment on Equity Investment and Intangible Assets

On October 1, 2008, the Company entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement with TranZfinity, Inc., a privately held entity (�TranZfinity�),
pursuant to which the Company purchased a 33.7% ownership interest for an aggregate purchase price of $2.5 million. This investment was
accounted for using the equity method of accounting. In addition, the Company had entered into an Exclusive Cooperation Agreement on
April 17, 2008 with TranZfinity (the �Cooperation Agreement�), which was amended in July 2009. The terms of the Cooperation Agreement, as
amended, required TranZfinity to work with the Company to develop modular USB devices for the Company�s product portfolio and to supply
the Company�s customers with TranZfinity�s application software and services supporting those devices. Pursuant to the Cooperation Agreement,
the Company paid TranZfinity an exclusivity fee of $0.8 million for the right to be the exclusive provider of those products. The Company
capitalized these payments and was recording amortization expense based on the estimated useful life.

The equity investment in TranZfinity was impaired during the fourth quarter of 2009 based on the Company�s assessment of TranZfinity�s
performance and future prospects. Additionally TranZfinity management and its shareholders concluded that TranZfinity business was no longer
viable and decided to dissolve the TranZfinity operations. As a result, during 2009, the Company recorded a charge of $2.2 million,
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which included an impairment loss of $1.4 million of the Company�s equity method investment in TranZfinity and its proportionate share of
losses of $0.8 million realized by TranZfinity. In addition, the exclusivity fee paid to TranZfinity was also considered impaired and the
Company recorded an impairment charge of $0.6 million related to the write-off of exclusivity fees in its consolidated statement of operations
for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Gain on Sale of Assets

During 2009, the Company recorded a $1.4 million gain on the sale of assets, which included a gain of $1.2 million on the sale of its office
building in India and a gain of $0.2 million on the sale of certain non-core patents that were unrelated to its current business.

Discontinued Operations

During 2003, the Company completed two transactions to sell its retail Digital Video and Digital Media Reader business. During 2006, the
Company completed the sale of substantially all the assets and some of the liabilities associated with its Digital TV solutions business. Gain
from discontinued operations in all periods was mainly related to changes in estimates for lease commitments and termination of its lease
agreement for premises leased in the UK and USA.

Restructuring

In 2010, the Company implemented a restructuring plan (the �2010 Restructuring Plan�) in an effort to better align its business operations with the
current market and macroeconomic conditions. The 2010 Restructuring Plan included a worldwide workforce reduction, the restructuring of
certain business functions and the closure of certain facilities. The Company incurred restructuring charges of $0.3 million related to the closure
and consolidation of facilities as well as headcount reductions.

14. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, the Company could be subject to claims arising in the ordinary course of business or be a defendant in lawsuits. While the
outcome of such claims or other proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, the Company�s management expects that any such liabilities, to
the extent not provided for by insurance or otherwise, would not have a material effect on the Company�s financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows.

15. Commitments

The Company leases its facilities, certain equipment, and automobiles under non-cancelable operating lease agreements. Those lease agreements
existing as of December 31, 2011 expire at various dates during the next five years.

The Company recognized rent expense of $2.0 million, $2.2 million and $1.4 million in its consolidated statement of operations for the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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Purchases for inventories are highly dependent upon forecasts of customer demand. Due to the uncertainty in demand from its customers, the
Company may have to change, reschedule, or cancel purchases or purchase orders from its suppliers. These changes may lead to vendor
cancellation charges on these purchases or contractual commitments. The following table summarizes the Company�s principal contractual
obligations as of December 31, 2011:

(In thousands)
Operating

Lease
Purchase

Commitments

Other
Contractual
Obligations Total

2012 $ 2,566 $ 7,942 $ 493 $ 11,001
2013 1,563 6 7 1,576
2014 647 �  �  647
2015 185 �  �  185
2016 and thereafter 47 �  �  47

$ 5,008 $ 7,948 $ 500 $ 13,456

The Company provides warranties on certain product sales, which range from 12 to 24 months, and allowances for estimated warranty costs are
recorded during the period of sale. The determination of such allowances requires the Company to make estimates of product return rates and
expected costs to repair or to replace the products under warranty. The Company currently establishes warranty reserves based on historical
warranty costs for each product line combined with liability estimates based on the prior 12 months� sales activities. If actual return rates and/or
repair and replacement costs differ significantly from the Company�s estimates, adjustments to recognize additional cost of sales may be required
in future periods. Historically the warranty accrual and the expense amounts have been immaterial.

16. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for 2011 and 2010:

Quarter Ended
(In thousands, except per share data; Unaudited) March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2011:
Net revenue $ 22,420 $ 25,612 $ 26,752 $ 27,924
Gross profit 9,380 10,214 11,830 11,378
Loss from operations (2,043) (2,974) (3,026) (2,183) 
Loss from continuing operations attributable to Identive Group, Inc (1,862) (1,557) (3,686) (2,397) 
Gain from discontinued operations, net of income taxes 0 0 0 0
Net loss attributable to Identive Group, Inc (1,862) (1,557) (3,686) (2,397) 
Basic and diluted income (loss) per share attributable to Identive Group,
Inc.:
Loss from continuing operations $ (0.04) $ (0.03) $ (0.06) $ (0.04) 
Income from discontinued operations $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
Net loss per share $ (0.04) $ (0.03) $ (0.06) $ (0.04) 
Weighted average shares used to compute basic and diluted loss per share: 47,741 52,001 57,579 57,574
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Quarter Ended
(In thousands, except per share data; Unaudited) March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

Restated (1)
2010:
Net revenue $ 15,346 $ 21,178 $ 20,511 $ 27,808
Gross profit 6,737 9,844 8,948 11,829
Loss from operations (5,489) (1,658) (2,251) (480) 
Loss from continuing operations attributable to Identive Group, Inc. (5,975) (859) (2,001) (903) 
Gain (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (77) 170 (24) 151
Net loss attributable to Identive Group, Inc. (6,052) (689) (2,025) (752) 
Basic and diluted income (loss) per share attributable to Identive Group,
Inc.:
Loss from continuing operations $ (0.15) $ (0.02) $ (0.05) $ (0.02) 
Income from discontinued operations $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
Net loss per share $ (0.15) $ (0.02) $ (0.05) $ (0.02) 
Weighted average shares used to compute basic and diluted loss per share: 39,755 42,668 43,279 45,120

(1) As stated in Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in its 2010 Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Company had determined that
an error occurred in the recognition of revenue related to the sale of readers for the German national ID program as reported in the third
quarter of 2010. Upon review of Accounting Standards Codification 605, Revenue Recognition, the Company had concluded that not all
criteria for recognizing the sale were in fact met until the fourth quarter of 2010. As a result, revenue and cost of revenue of approximately
$2.8 million and $1.6 million, respectively reported in the Company�s Form 10-Q for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2010 were overstated, resulting in an impact of $1.2 million on gross profit, operating loss and net loss in such periods. The loss per share
was understated by $(0.03). The amounts presented for the quarter ended September 30, 2010 in the table above have been restated to
correct the impact of such error.

17. Subsequent Events

On January 9, 2012, the Company purchased the remaining outstanding shares of idOnDemand from ActivIdentity Corporation for the sum of
$0.5 million, pursuant to an agreement among Identive, ActivIdentity Corporation and idOnDemand dated December 22, 2011. Following the
completion of this share purchase, idOnDemand became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

On January 30, 2012, through its a majority-owned subsidiary Bluehill ID AG, the Company acquired approximately 58.8% of the outstanding
shares of payment solution AG, a company organized under the laws of Germany (�payment solution�). The acquisition was made pursuant to the
terms and conditions contained in Share Exchange Agreements, each dated January 30, 2012 (the �Agreements�), and entered into individually
with 18 selling shareholders of payment solution (the �Selling Shareholders�) in Germany and Switzerland. In exchange for the shares of payment
solution, the Company issued an aggregate of 1,357,758 shares, or approximately 2.4% of its outstanding Common Stock, to the Selling
Shareholders, having a value of approximately �2.35 million (or approximately $3.03 million). Mountain Partners AG, a significant stockholder
of the Company, was a selling shareholder and held approximately 10.0% of payment solution. Daniel Wenzel, a director of the Company, is an
affiliate of Mountain Partners.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, the Company carried out an evaluation, as required in Rule 13a-15(b) under the
Exchange Act, under the supervision and with the participation of members of our senior management, including our CEO and CFO, of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company�s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange
Act). Disclosure controls and procedures are those controls and other procedures of the Company that are designed to provide reasonable
assurance that the information required to be disclosed in our SEC reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act (i) is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms, and (ii) is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our CEO and CFO, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Based on our evaluation, management, including the CEO and CFO, concluded that as of December 31, 2011, our disclosure controls and
procedures were not effective because of the material weaknesses described below in Management�s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting. Notwithstanding the material weakness discussed below, our management, including our CEO and CFO, has concluded that the
consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K present fairly, in all material respects, our financial position, results of operations
and cash flows for the periods presented in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Management�s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f)
under the Exchange Act, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States, or GAAP. Internal control
over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP. Internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and or directors; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company�s assets that could have a material effect on the interim or annual consolidated
financial statements.

A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can only provide reasonable assurances that the objectives of the control system
are met. Because there are inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control
issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been or will be detected.

A deficiency in internal control over financial reporting exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the company�s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.
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Management, including our CEO and CFO, assessed our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011. In making the
assessment of internal control over financial reporting, management based its assessment on the criteria issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (�COSO�) in �Internal Control � Integrated Framework.� Management�s assessment included evaluation
of such elements as the design and operating effectiveness of key financial reporting controls, process documentation, accounting policies, and
our overall control environment. This assessment is supported by testing and monitoring performed by our internal accounting and finance
organization.

Management has excluded the non-integrated idOnDemand and polyright businesses from the assessment of internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2011 because those businesses were acquired by the Company during fiscal 2011. idOnDemand�s operations and
polyright�s operations are a component of the Company�s Identity Management Solutions & Services reporting segment. The total assets and total
net revenue of the non-integrated idOnDemand and polyright operations represent approximately 12% and 4%, respectively, of our related
consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Based on management�s assessment, including consideration of the control deficiencies discussed below, management has concluded that the
Company�s internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of December 31, 2011, due to the material weaknesses described below.

The material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting identified are as follows:

Insufficient Number of Accounting Personnel � Management determined that the Company has an insufficient number of accounting personnel
with appropriate knowledge, experience or training in GAAP to provide effective oversight and review of transactions and the preparation of
financial statements, particularly at the subsidiary level. As a result, the Company was required to make some year-end audit adjustments,
thereby creating an environment where a reasonable possibility exists that a material error could occur in our interim or annual financial
statements and not be prevented or detected in a timely manner.

Inadequate Design of Controls Related to Revenue Recognition � Management determined that the Company�s design and implementation of
controls over the revenue process was inadequate. Specifically, the Company does not have an appropriate amount of preventive and detective
controls to accurately evaluate, approve and record complex revenue transactions. This material weakness resulted in year-end audit
adjustments, thereby creating a situation where a reasonable possibility exists that a material error related to revenue recognition could occur in
our interim or annual financial statements and not be prevented or detected in a timely manner.

Our independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche GmbH, who also audited our consolidated financial statements,
independently assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, as stated in their report which
is included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Remediation of Material Weaknesses

Management is in the process of developing a remediation plan to address the internal control deficiencies identified above, and the audit
committee of the Company�s Board of Directors will monitor the implementation of the remediation plan. While management is still in the
process of developing its remediation plan and cannot reasonably estimate when the remediation plan will be implemented, the Company
expects remedial measures may include hiring additional accounting personnel with sufficient GAAP competence, implementing of regular
GAAP accounting and financial reporting training programs for our existing accounting and reporting personnel, revising the Company�s revenue
recognition policy and providing appropriate training on the policy or engaging a third-party firm to assist it in developing appropriate remedial
measures.

In addition, under the direction of the audit committee, management will continue to review and make necessary changes to the overall design of
the Company�s internal control environment, as well as to policies and
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procedures to improve the overall effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. As the Company continues to evaluate and work to
improve its internal control over financial reporting, management may determine to take additional measures to address control deficiencies.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Identive Group, Inc.:

We have audited Identive Group, Inc. and subsidiaries� (the �Company�s�) internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based
on criteria established in Internal Control � Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. As described in Management�s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, management excluded from its assessment the
internal control over financial reporting at idOnDemand, Inc. and polyright SA, which were acquired on May 2, 2011 and July 18, 2011,
respectively and whose financial statements aggregated constitute 11% and 12% of net assets and total assets, respectively, 4% of net revenue,
and 32% of net loss of the consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011. Accordingly, our audit did
not include the internal control over financial reporting at IdOnDemand, Inc. and polyright SA. The Company�s management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, included in the accompanying Management�s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Company�s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

A company�s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company�s principal executive and
principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company�s board of directors, management, and other
personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company�s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company�s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the company�s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. The following material weaknesses have been identified and included in management�s assessment:

� Insufficient Number of Accounting Personnel � The Company did not have a sufficient number of personnel having appropriate
knowledge, experience and training in the application of accounting
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principles generally accepted in the United States of America (�GAAP�) to provide effective oversight and review of recorded
transactions and preparation of the financial statements. This material weakness resulted in numerous year-end audit adjustments and
created a financial reporting environment in which a reasonable possibility exists that a material error could occur in the interim or
annual financial statements and not be prevented or detected in a timely manner.

� Inadequate Design of Controls Related to Revenue Recognition � The Company did not design and implement adequate controls over
the revenue process. Specifically, the Company does not have an appropriate amount of preventive and detective controls to
accurately evaluate, approve and record complex revenue transactions. This material weakness resulted in year-end audit adjustments
and creates a situation in which a reasonable possibility exists that a material error related to revenue recognition could occur in the
interim or annual financial statements and not be prevented or detected in a timely manner.

These material weaknesses were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011, of the Company and this report does not
affect our report on such financial statements and financial statement schedule.

In our opinion, because of the effect of the material weaknesses identified above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the
Company has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on the criteria established in
Internal Control � Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011, of the Company and our report dated
March 29, 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE GMBH
    WIRTSCHAFTSPRÜFUNGSGESELLSCHAFT

Munich, Germany
March 29, 2012
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We made no changes to our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2011 that have materially affected,
or that are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. During 2011, the Company acquired idOnDemand
and polyright. The integration of the idOnDemand and polyright operations into the Company is ongoing and will be substantially complete in
the second quarter of 2012. As a result of these ongoing integration efforts, new policies, controls and procedures are being implemented at
idOnDemand and polyright. Due to these changes and the status of this integration, management has excluded the non-integrated idOnDemand
and polyright operations from management�s assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The information required by Item 10 concerning our directors and officers will be set forth under the captions �Business Experience of Directors�
and �Policy for Director Recommendations and Nominations� in our Proxy Statement relating to our 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders,
referred to in this Annual Report on Form 10-K as the �Proxy Statement,� which we expect to file within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year
pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of Form 10-K. Such information is incorporated herein by reference. The information required by this item
concerning compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act is incorporated by reference to the section captioned �Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance� that will be set forth in our Proxy Statement. The information required by this item concerning our code of
ethics is incorporated by reference to the section captioned �Code of Conduct and Ethics� in our Proxy Statement. The information required by this
item concerning the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors is incorporated by reference to the section captioned �Board Meetings and
Committees� in our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information required by Item 11 will be contained in our Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Item 12 will be set forth under the captions �Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management� and
�Equity Compensation Plan Information� in our Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information required by Item 13 will be set forth under the caption �Certain Relationships and Related Transactions� in our Proxy Statement,
which information is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
The information required by Item 14 will be set forth under the caption �Principal Accountant Fees and Services� in our Proxy Statement, which
information is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE
(a) 2. Financial Statement Schedule

The following financial statement schedule should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto above.

Schedule II � Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Classification

Balance at
Beginning 

of
Period Additions Deductions

Balance at
End of
Period

(In thousands)
Deferred tax assets valuation allowances
Year ended December 31, 2009 37,982 2,864 �  40,846
Year ended December 31, 2010 40,846 1,692 �  42,538
Year ended December 31, 2011 42,538 652 �  43,189
Accounts receivable allowances
Year ended December 31, 2009 689 208 31 866
Year ended December 31, 2010 866 331 714 483
Year ended December 31, 2011 483 114 329 268
Warranty accrual
Year ended December 31, 2009 16 8 16 8
Year ended December 31, 2010 8 154 �  162
Year ended December 31, 2011 162 60 �  222
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3. Exhibits

Exhibit
Number Description of Document

  2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger among SCM Microsystems, Inc., Deer Acquisition, Inc., Hart Acquisition LLC and Hirsch
Electronics Corporation dated as of December 10, 2008. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed on December 11, 2008 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

  2.2 Business Combination Agreement, dated September 20, 2009, between SCM Microsystems, Inc. and Bluehill ID AG. (Filed
previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on September 21, 2009 (SEC File No.
000-29440).)

  2.3 Amendment to Business Combination Agreement, dated October 20, 2009, between SCM Microsystems, Inc. and Bluehill
ID AG. (Filed previously within Annex A of the Company�s Registration Statement on Form S-4/A, filed on November 10,
2009 (SEC File No. 333-162618).)

  2.4 Share Purchase Agreement between SCM Microsystems, Inc. d/b/a/ Identive Group, Dr. George Levy, Mr. Matt McDaniel,
GL Investments, LLC, Mr. Hugo Garcia, Mr. Stan Kenney and RockWest Technology Group LLC dated March 30, 2010.
(Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on March 31, 2010 ( SEC File No.
000-29440).)

  2.5 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated April 29, 2011, between Identive Group, Inc. and the Selling Shareholders of
idOnDemand, Inc. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 4, 2011 (SEC
File No. 000-2944).)

  3.1 Fourth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s
Registration Statement on Form S-4/A, filed on November 10, 2009 (SEC File No. 333-162618).)

  3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Fourth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation. (Filed previously as an exhibit to
the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2010, filed on May 17, 2010 (SEC File No.
000-29440).)

  3.3 Certificate of Amendment to Fourth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation. (Filed previously as an exhibit to
the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on June 17, 2010 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

  3.4 Certificate of Amendment to Fourth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (Filed previously as an exhibit to
the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on June 7, 2011 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

  3.5 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Registrant. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002, filed on November 14, 2002 (SEC File No. 000-22689).)

  3.6 Certificate of Designation of Rights, Preferences and Privileges of Series A Participating Preferred Stock of SCM
Microsystems, Inc. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Registration Statement on Form 8-A, filed on
November 14, 2002 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

  4.1 Specimen Registrant�s Common Stock Certificate. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed on August 16, 2010 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

  4.2 Form of Warrant Certificate issued in connection with the acquisition of Hirsch Electronics. (Filed previously as an exhibit
to SCM�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2009, filed on May 15, 2009 (SEC File
No. 000-29440).)
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Exhibit
Number Description of Document

  4.3 Form of Warrant issued in connection with Private Placement. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed on November 15, 2010 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

  4.4 Preferred Stock Rights Agreement, dated as of November 8, 2002, between SCM Microsystems, Inc. and American Stock
Transfer and Trust Company. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Registration Statement on Form 8-A, filed on
November 14, 2002 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

  4.5 First Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated as of December 10, 2008, between SCM Microsystems, Inc. and American
Stock Transfer and Trust Company. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
December 11, 2008 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

  4.6 Second Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated as of November 16, 2009, between SCM Microsystems, Inc. and American
Stock Transfer and Trust Company. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
November 16, 2009 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

  4.7 Third Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated as of November 15, 2010, between Identive Group, Inc. and American Stock
Transfer and Trust Company (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
November 15, 2010 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

10.1* Form of Director and Officer Indemnification Agreement. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed on March 25, 2009 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

10.2 Sublease Agreement, dated December 14, 2000 between Microtech International and Golden Goose LLC. (Filed previously as
an exhibit to the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000, filed on April 2, 2001 (SEC
File No. 000-22689).)

10.3 Tenancy Agreement dated August 31, 2001 between SCM Microsystems GmbH and Claus Czaika. (Filed previously as an
exhibit to the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001, filed on March 26, 2002 (SEC
File No. 000-22689).)

10.4 Addendum No. 1 to the Lease Agreement of August 31, 2001, dated February 4, 2004. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the
Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008, filed on March 31, 2009 (SEC File
No. 000-29440).)

10.5 Addendum No. 2 to the Lease Agreement of August 31, 2001, dated June 2, 2008. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the
Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008, filed on March 31, 2009 (SEC File
No. 000-29440).)

10.6* Amended 2007 Stock Option Plan. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2009, filed on November 16, 2009 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

10.7* Employment Agreement of Lawrence W. Midland, dated December 10, 2008. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the
Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on May 4, 2009 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

10.8 Stockholder Agreement, dated December 10, 2008. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form
8-K, filed on May 4, 2009 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

10.9 Settlement Agreement, dated April 8, 2009. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed on April 9, 2009 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

10.10 Amended and Restated 1994 Settlement Agreement, dated April 8, 2009. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on May 4, 2009 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)
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Exhibit
Number Description of Document

10.11 Limited Guarantee, dated April 8, 2009. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
on April 9, 2009 (see SEC File No. 000-29440).)

10.12* Employment Agreement by and between Ayman S. Ashour and Bluehill ID Services AG, dated December 1, 2009. (Filed
previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on January 4, 2010 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

10.13* Employment Agreement by and between SCM Microsystems, Inc. and Joseph Tassone, dated February 22, 2010. (Filed
previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on February 25, 2010 (SEC File No.
000-29440).)

10.14* Termination Agreement and Release by and between SCM Microsystems, Inc. and Felix Marx, dated March 1, 2010. (Filed
previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on March 1, 2010 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

10.15* Employment Agreement by and between SCM Microsystems, Inc. and Felix Marx, dated March 1, 2010. (Filed previously as
an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on March 1, 2010 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

10.16* Termination Agreement and Release by and between SCM Microsystems, Inc. and Manfred Mueller, dated February 28,
2010. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K/A, filed on March 1, 2010 (SEC File No.
000-29440).)

10.17* Employment Agreement by and between SCM Microsystems, Inc. and Manfred Mueller, dated February 28, 2010. (Filed
previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on March 1, 2010 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

10.18* Employment Agreement between Bluehill ID AG and John Rogers dated January 5, 2009. (Filed previously as an exhibit to
the Company�s Quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2010, filed on May 17, 2010 (SEC File No.
000-29440))

10.19* Amendment No. 1 to the Employment Agreement between Bluehill ID AG and John Rogers dated March 16, 2010. (Filed
previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2010, filed on
May 17, 2010 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

10.20* Bluehill ID AG Executive Bonus Plan (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Registration Statement on Form S-8
(SEC File No. 333-166181).)

10.21* Bluehill ID AG Executive Share Option Plan (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Registration Statement on Form
S-8 (SEC File No. 333-166181).)

10.22* Identive Group, Inc. 2010 Bonus and Incentive Plan. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form
8-K, filed on June 17, 2010 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

10.23* Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated July 12, 2010, by and between Identive Group, Inc. and Lawrence Midland.
(Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed July 15, 2010 (SEC File no. 000-29440).)

10.24* Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated August 23, 2010, by and between Identive Group, Inc. and Felix Marx. (Filed
previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed August 27, 2010 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

10.25 Form of Subscription Agreement November 2010. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form
8-K, filed on November 15, 2010 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

10.26* Termination Agreement with Felix Marx dated December 7, 2010. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, filed on March 7, 2011 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)
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  10.27* Executive Employment Agreement, dated May 4, 2011, by and between Identive Group, Inc. and Melvin
Denton-Thompson (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on May 5, 2011
(SEC File No. 000-29440).)

  10.28* 2011 Incentive Compensation Plan (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
June 7, 2011 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

  10.29* 2011 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
June 7, 2011 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

  10.30* Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement, dated December 21, 2011, by and between Identive Group, Inc.
and Larry Midland (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed December 28, 2011
(SEC File No. 000-29440).)

  10.31 Form of Share Exchange Agreement, dated January 30, 2012, between Bluehill ID AG and each selling shareholder (Filed
previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed February 3, 2012 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

  10.32* Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated February 16, 2012, by and between Identive Group, Inc. and Dr.
Manfred Mueller (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed February 21, 2012
(SEC File No. 000-29440).)

  14.1 Code of Conduct and Ethics revised October 2008. (Filed previously as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed on October 28, 2008 (SEC File No. 000-29440).)

  21.1 + Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

  23.1 + Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

  31.1 + Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

  31.2 + Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

  32 + Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS** XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

* Denotes management compensatory arrangement.
** Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the interactive files on Exhibit 101 hereto are deemed not filed or part of a registration statement

or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise are not subject to liability under those sections.

+ Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Registrant

IDENTIVE GROUP, INC.

By: /S/    AYMAN S. ASHOUR        

Ayman S. Ashour
Chief Executive Officer and

Chairman of the Board
March 29, 2012

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Capacity in Which Signed Date

/S/    AYMAN S. ASHOUR        

Ayman S. Ashour

Chief Executive Officer and

Chairman of the Board

(Principal Executive Officer) and Director

March 29, 2012

/S/    MELVIN DENTON-THOMPSON        Chief Financial Officer and Secretary

(Principal Financial Officer)

March 29, 2012
Melvin Denton-Thompson

/S/    KAMAL KANT GUPTA        

Kamal Kant Gupta

Vice-President Finance and

Corporate Controller

(Principal Accounting Officer)

March 29, 2012

/S/    RICHARD A. CLARKE        Director March 29, 2012
Richard A. Clarke

/S/    STEVEN HUMPHREYS        Director March 29, 2012
Steven Humphreys

/S/    PHIL LIBIN        Director March 29, 2012
Phil Libin

/S/    HANS LIEBLER        Director March 29, 2012
Hans Liebler

/S/    LAWRENCE W. MIDLAND        Director March 29, 2012
Lawrence W. Midland
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/S/    SIMON TURNER        Director March 29, 2012
Simon Turner

/S/    DANIEL S. WENZEL        Director March 29, 2012
Daniel S. Wenzel
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